Peter Sloman

‘*‘A R d . CHIEF EXECUTIVE
ea I ng Civic Offices, Bridge Street,

Reading RG1 2LU
@ 0118 937 3787

v.iy Borough Council

Working better with you
To: Councillors Edwards (Chair), Grashoff Direct: @ 0118 937 2368
and Page e-mail:
g julie.quarmby@reading.gov.uk
22 January 2020
Your contact is: Julie Quarmby - Committee Services

NOTICE OF MEETING - LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 2 - 30 JANUARY 2020

A meeting of the Licensing Applications Sub-Committee 2 will be held on Thursday, 30 January
2020 at 9.30 am in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Bridge Street, Reading, RG1 2LU. The

Agenda for the meeting is set out below.

ACTION WARDS
AFFECTED

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Councillors to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests
they may have in relation to the items for consideration;

(b) Councillors to declare whether they wish to speak on the
grounds they:

(i) Have submitted a relevant representation as an
interested party; or

(i1) Will be speaking on behalf of an interested party.

2. MINUTES BOROUGH
WIDE
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of Licensing
Applications Sub-Committee 2 held on 8 January 2020 as a
correct record.

3. APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE - ABBEY
MATCHBOX

To consider an application for the review of a Premises
Licence for Matchbox, 5-6 Friar Street, Reading, RG1 1DB.

4. APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE - ABBEY
THE HUT

Page No

7-166

167 -
292

CIVIC OFFICES EMERGENCY EVACUATION: If an alarm sounds, leave by the nearest fire exit quickly and calmly
and assemble on the corner of Bridge Street and Fobney Street. You will be advised when it is safe to re-enter

the building.

www.reading.gov.uk | facebook.com/ReadingCouncil | twitter.com/ReadingCouncil
DX 40124 Reading (Castle Street)



To consider an application for the grant of a Premises
Licence in respect of The Hut, 39 St Marys Butts, Reading,
RG1 1LG.



Agenda ltem 2
LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 2 MINUTES - 8 JANUARY 2020

Present: Councillors Edwards (Chair), Woodward and Skeats

11.  APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE -
YATES’S.

The Assistant Director of Planning, Transport and Regulatory Services submitted a
report on an application by the Chief Constable of Thames Valley Police for the
summary review of a Premises Licence for Yates’s, 7-9 Friar Street, Reading, RG1
1DB.

The report stated that Thames Valley Police had requested a summary review
because the premises had been associated with serious disorder. There had been
two recent incidents of note. The first had taken place on 1 January 2020,
following a fight within the venue which premises security had been unable to
contain or de-escalate. This had resulted in police having to enter the premises
and later 20 police officers had needed to form a police line to disperse the crowd
when the venue was closed. The second incident had taken place three days later
and had again required the formation of a police line to assist with the dispersal of
a crowd of approximately 150 people. Thames Valley Police had submitted a
Certificate under Section 53A (1)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003, which stated that
the summary review was necessary to uphold the licensing objectives of the
prevention of crime and disorder, protection of children from harm and public
safety.

A copy of the summary review application and appendices was attached to the
report at Appendix RS-I.

The report stated that the Premises Licence Holder was Stonegate Pub Company
Limited and the Designated Premises Supervisor was Mr John Button. The existing
Premises Licence, a copy of which was attached to the report at Appendix RS-2,
permitted the following:

Hours for the Exhibition of Films

Monday to Thursday 0700 hours until 0200 hours
Sunday 0700 hours until 0230 hours
Sunday 0700 hours until 0000 hours

Non Standard Hours:

All Bank Holiday Sunday and Mondays until 0300 hours the following morning.
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 0300 hours the following morning. An
additional hour to be the standard and non-standard timings on the day when
British Summertime commences.

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on New Year’s Day.

Hours for the Performance of Live Music

Monday to Thursday 1000 hours until 0200 hours
Sunday 1000 hours until 0230 hours

Page 3



LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 2 MINUTES - 8 JANUARY 2020

Sunday 1000 hours until 0000 hours

Non Standard Hours:

All Bank Holiday Sunday and Mondays until 0300 hours the following morning.
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 0300 hours the following morning. An
additional hour to be the standard and non-standard timings on the day when
British Summertime commences.

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on New Year’s Day.

Hours for the Performance of Recorded Music

Monday to Thursday 0800 hours until 0200 hours
Sunday 0800 hours until 0230 hours
Sunday 0800 hours until 0000 hours

Non Standard Hours:

All Bank Holiday Sunday and Mondays until 0300 hours the following morning.
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 0300 hours the following morning. An
additional hour to be the standard and non-standard timings on the day when
British Summertime commences.

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on New Year’s Day.

Hours for the Performance of Dance

Monday to Thursday 1000 hours until 0200 hours
Sunday 1000 hours until 0230 hours
Sunday 1000 hours until 0000 hours

Non Standard Hours:

All Bank Holiday Sunday and Mondays until 0300 hours the following morning.
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 0300 hours the following morning. An
additional hour to be the standard and non-standard timings on the day when
British Summertime commences.

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on New Year’s Day.

Hours for provision of anything similar to Live Music. Recorded Music and
Performance of Dance

Monday to Thursday 1000 hours until 0200 hours
Sunday 1000 hours until 0230 hours
Sunday 1000 hours until 0000 hours

Non Standard Hours:

All Bank Holiday Sunday and Mondays until 0300 hours the following morning.
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 0300 hours the following morning. An
additional hour to be the standard and non-standard timings on the day when
British Summertime commences.

Page 4



LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 2 MINUTES - 8 JANUARY 2020

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on New Year’s Day.

Hours for the provision of Late Night Refreshment

Monday to Thursday 2300 hours until 0200 hours
Sunday 2300 hours until 0230 hours
Sunday 2300 hours until 0000 hours

Non Standard Hours:

All Bank Holiday Sunday and Mondays until 0300 hours the following morning.
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 0300 hours the following morning. An
additional hour to be the standard and non-standard timings on the day when
British Summertime commences.

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on New Year’s Day.

Hours for the Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Monday to Thursday 0800 hours until 0200 hours
Sunday 0800 hours until 0230 hours
Sunday 0800 hours until 0000 hours

Non Standard Hours:

All Bank Holiday Sunday and Mondays until 0300 hours the following morning.
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 0300 hours the following morning. An
additional hour to be the standard and non-standard timings on the day when
British Summertime commences.

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on New Year’s Day.

Hours the Premises was Open to the Public

Monday to Thursday 0700 hours until 0230 hours
Sunday 0700 hours until 0300 hours
Sunday 0700 hours until 0030 hours

Non Standard timings:

All Bank Holiday Sunday and Mondays until 0330 hours the following morning.
Christmas Eve and Boxing Day until 0330 hours the following morning. An
additional hour to be the standard and non-standard timings on the day when
British Summertime commences.

From the end of permitted hours on New Year’s Eve to the start of permitted hours
on New Year’s Day.

The report stated that in determining the application the Licensing Authority had a
duty to carry out its functions with a view to promoting the four licensing
objectives, as follows:

e The prevention of crime and disorder;
e Public safety;

Page 5



LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 2 MINUTES - 8 JANUARY 2020

e The prevention of public nuisance;
e The protection of children from harm.

The report further stated that, in determining the application, the Sub-Committee
could take the following interim steps:

The modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

The exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the licence;
The removal of the Designated premises Supervisor from the licence;

The suspension of the licence.

Any interim steps would take effect immediately and stay in force until the
determination of the review. The review hearing must be held within 28 days of
the application and had been arranged for 31 January 2020.

The report set out paragraphs 1.5, 12.1, 12.2, 12.5, 12.6, 12.13, 12.14, 12.15,
9.12, 11.10, 11.12, 11.18, 11.24 to 11.28 from the Secretary of State’s Guidance to
the Licensing Act 2003 issued in April 2018. The report also set out paragraphs
5.13 and 5.15 of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.

Simon Wheeler, Thames Valley Police, was present at the meeting and addressed
the Sub-Committee on the review application. He was accompanied by Declan
Smyth and officers Nara Fisher and Jason Jones of Thames Valley Police

Mr Michael Bromley-Martin, QC, was present at the meeting as representative of
Stonegate Pub Company Limited. He was accompanied by Mr Paul Wright, Director
of Operational Licensing, Stonegate Pub Company Limited and Mr Graeme Cushion,
solicitor, Poppleston Allen.

Robert Smalley, Licensing and Enforcement Officer, presented the summary review
report at the meeting.

Resolved -

(1)  That, having regard to the four licensing objectives and the oral and
written representations made, the Secretary of State’s guidance
issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018), the
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, the Sub-Committee
concluded that it was appropriate and proportionate to suspend the
Premises Licence in respect of Yates’s, 7-9 Friar Street, until the
determination of the application for review, as the Sub-Committee
considered that the two incidents on 1 and 4 January 2020 were so
serious that a period of immediate suspension was necessary.

(2)  That Stonegate Pub Company Limited was requested to ensure that
sufficient and adequate cancellation of pre-booked events be
advertised widely and on social media platforms.

The meeting opened at 10.00 am and closed at 12.00pm.

Page 6



V“y Borough Council g

Working better with you

LICENSING ACT 2003 HEARING - THURSDAY 30t JANUARY 2020 @ 0930HRS
APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE

1. Premises:
Matchbox

5-6 Friar Street
Reading

RG1 1DB

2. Applicants Requesting Review:
Thames Valley Police

3. Grounds for Review

The application is for the review of premises licence (LP8000317) in respect of the
above-mentioned premises. The application has been submitted by Thames Valley
Police, who are a named responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003, in
regards to the objectives of prevention of crime and disorder and public safety. The
reason for the application is that a number of violent incidents have occurred at the
premises in the previous 24 months that are linked to high risk events. The most
recent of which happened on the 7t" December 2019 where a large-scale disorder
occurred at the premises which involved the assault of a door supervisor and
multiple arrests for assault/affray.

5. Date of closure of period for representations: 05t January 2020

6. Representations received:

During the 28 day consultation period, representations were received in regards to
this review application from:

Reading Borough Council - Licensing - Attached as Appendix RS-2

7. Background

This premises is located on Friar Street near St Laurence’s Church and is within the
Council’s Cumulative Impact Area.

The Premises Licence Holder is: Greene King Brewing & Retailing Ltd
The DPS is: Mr Robert Smith

The premises currently has the benefit of a premises licence. A copy of the current
licence is attached at Appendix RS-3

Page 7 1



8. Licensing Objectives and Reading Borough Council’s Licensing Policy
Statement

In determining this application the Licensing Authority has a duty to carry out its
functions with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives, which are as
follows:-

the prevention of crime and disorder;
public safety

the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

In determining this application, the Licensing Authority must also have regard to the
representations received, the Licensing Authority’s statement of licensing policy and
any relevant section of the statutory guidance to licensing authorities.

9. Power of Licensing Authority on the determination of a Review

In determining the review application the sub-committee can take such steps as it
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, which are:

1. Take no further action

2. To issue formal warnings to the premises supervisor and/or premises licence
holder

3. Modify the conditions of the licence (including, but not limited to hours of

operation of licensable activities)

Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence
Remove the designated premises licence supervisor

Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months
Revoke the licence.

No v

Where the sub-committee takes a step mentioned in 3 or 4 it may provide that the
modification or exclusion is to have effect for a period not exceeding three months or
permanently.

Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April

2018)

Licensing objectives and aims

1.2 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

1.3 The licensing objectives are:

« The prevention of crime and disorder;
o Public safety;
« The prevention of public nuisance; and

Page 8 2




» The protection of children from harm.

1.4 Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration
at all times.

1.5 However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work. They include:

e protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social
behaviour and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

e giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those
premises that are causing problems;

Purpose

1.7 This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out
of their functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’
courts hearing appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely
available for the benefit of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers and
the general public. It is a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring
consistent application of licensing powers across England and Wales and for

gromoting fairnessE egual treatment and grogortionalitg.

1.8 The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind
police officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the
four licensing objectives.

The role of responsible authorities (eg Police)

9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in
some cases it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing
authority’s main source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For
example, the police have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should
have good working relationships with those operating in their local area. The police
should usually therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on
matters relating to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective.
However, any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may make representations
with regard to any of the licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such
representations. Licensing authorities must therefore consider all relevant
representations from responsible authorities carefully, even where the reason for a
particular responsible authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of a
particular objective may not be immediately apparent. However, it remains
incumbent on_all responsible authorities to ensure that their_representations can
withstand the scrutiny to which they would be subject at a hearing.

Page 9 3



Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities

9.13 Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities. A similar
framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not require
responsible authorities to make representations about applications for the grant of
premises licences or to take any other steps in respect of different licensing
processes. It is, therefore, for the licensing authority to determine when it considers
it appropriate to act in its capacity as a responsible authority; the licensing authority
should make this decision in accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003
Act.

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing
determinations should be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into
account any representations or objections that have been received from responsible
authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises
user as the case may be.

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what
it is intended to achieve.

The Review Process

11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and
club premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where
problems associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation
of a premises licence or club premises certificate.

11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises
certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing
authority to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the
premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about
problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders
early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible
they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to
address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is
expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in
promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be
used to undermine this co-operation.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it
may exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the

Page 10 4




promotion of the licensing objectives.

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take
any further steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition,
there is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the
licence holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of
time. It is expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as
an important mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively
promoted and that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder.

11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental
health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement - either orally or
in writing - that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address
concerns, licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should
take this into account when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly,
licensing authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties which a
licence holder has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers
is appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

« modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new
conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by
reducing the hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;

+ exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to

not within the incidental live and recorded music exemption);

» remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider
that the problems are the result of poor management;

« suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

« revoke the licence.

11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and
they are not part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why
representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed
pending the outcome of any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the
conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is
for the licensing authority to determine whether the problems associated with the
alleged crimes are taking place on the premises and affecting the promotion of the
licensing objectives. Where a review follows a conviction, it would also not be for
the licensing authority to attempt to go beyond any finding by the courts, which
should be treated as a matter of undisputed evidence before them.

Reading Borough Council Licensing Policy Statement (2018)

1.5 This licensing policy aims to make Reading’s night time economy an economy for
all. A diverse range of responsibly run premises are to be encouraged. The licensing
authority wishes to discourage drunkenness and a move away from alcohol led

verticatdrinking —estabtishments.—We—woutd—expect Tesponsibly Tun premises to
actively promote the licensing objectives through promoting extra seating at their

Page 11 5




premises; instigating effective dispersal from their premises at the conclusion of
licensable activities and engagement with the licensing authority and other
responsible authorities in policies, initiatives and strategies

that promote Reading as a safe, healthy, diverse and vibrant night time economy
suitable for all.

1.6 The predominantly urban nature of Reading as a town means that an appropriate
balance needs to be struck between the needs of local business and the needs of
local residents. This licensing policy seeks to encourage all stakeholders to engage in
the licensing process so that the needs of all can be taken into account and issues
dealt with in a spirit of partnership and cooperation.

Other Initiatives

2.19 Reading’s night time economy has achieved Purple Flag and Best Bar None
status. These are nationally recognised schemes meaning the town has achieved a
level of excellence and we would expect all licence holders and potential applicants
to take cognisance of these standards and practices. The Authority and it’s partners
shall seek to work with all stakeholders in the town to maintain these standards. The
town also has a very successful and well attended Pubwatch scheme both in the town
centre and in the outer areas of Reading. This scheme is supported by Thames Valley
Police and Reading Borough Council and is a particularly useful forum for licence
holders to share information, best practice and work in a collaborative manner so as
to make the night time economy as vibrant and safe as possible for all. The Authority
would expect all prospective applicants and current licence holders to make use of
their local Pubwatch scheme and engage fully in any relevant initiatives that stem
from it.

Crime and Disorder Act 1998

3.2 This Act requires local authorities and other bodies to consider crime and
disorder reduction. Section 17 of the Act states that it shall be the duty of each
authority, to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that is reasonably can to
prevent, crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour
adversely affecting the local environment). This links specifically with the licensing
objective of prevention of crime and disorder and the licensing authority will take
into account all reasonable measures that actively promote this licensing objective.

Other Legislation that the Licensing Authority will consider

3.7 The Licensing Authority will also have cognisance to the following legislation
when it decides to discharge it’s responsibilities under the Licensing Act. This list is
not exhaustive:

- Environmental Protection Act 1990 which deals with noise and nuisance

- Regulatory Reform Order 2005 which deals with fire safety

- Highways Act 1980 which deals with pavement café licences

- Reading Borough Council Act 2013 which deals with street trading and touting
- Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and Food Hygiene regualtions

Page 12 6




- Planning legislation (see paragraphs 2.2-2.9 of this policy)

Licensable Activities
4.15 This policy relates to all applications for the following licensable activities:

- The sale of alcohol by retail

- The supply of alcohol to club members

- The provision of regulated entertainment:
- Performance of a play

- Performance of a film

- An indoor sporting event

- Boxing or wrestling

- Performance of live music

- Performance of recorded music

- Performance of dance

- The provision of late night refreshment (the sale of hot food and drink between
2300hrs and 0500hrs)

Review of a premises licence or club premises certificate

5.13 Any premises that has a premises licence or club premises certificate may have
that licence reviewed by any of the named Responsible authorities - including the
Licensing Authority in it’s role as a Responsible Authority. Thames Valley Police may

also submit a Summary Review if there is a premises associated with serious crime _
%WWM&%W;
there is a clear separation of functions between the officer acting as the licensing
authority and the officer acting as a responsible authority.

5.15 The Act provides strict guidelines, timescales and procedures for review
applications and hearings and the Authority will deal with every review application in
accordance with these rules.

7. Licensing Hours

General Approach

7.1 The Licensing Act 2003 gives the licensing authority the power to make decisions
about the hours during which premises can conduct licensable activities as part of
the implementation of this policy. The licensing authority will make appropriate
decisions on licensing hours for the locality of each premises. All applications will be
considered on its individual merits.

7.2 When an application receives representations, the authority may consider
reducing the opening hours and times for licensable activities if it considers it
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

7.4 Where it is deemed appropriate and proportionate to do so, the authority may
seek to reduce the hours for licensable activities in order to promote an orderly and
gradual dispersal from a certain area or certain premises.

Page 13 7



Enforcement Approach

9.12 Where offences are found to have been carried out on licensed premises, the
Authority has a number of enforcement options available to it. The Authority will
work with partner agencies to determine which enforcement option is appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The seriousness of the offences found
will be taken into consideration as well as any previous issues of non-compliance or
criminality that have taken place at the licensed premises.

9.13 The enforcement options available to the Authority are wide-ranging. The
Authority may consider, for example, that a letter detailing the issues found during
an inspection followed by a period of time to rectify them is sufficient to promote
the licensing objectives. Similarly, the Authority may consider that the breaches are
sufficiently serious to warrant an immediate performance meeting with a licence
holder so that a discussion can take place about the adequacy of the processes in
place at the premises. This could, for example, lead to recommendations being put
to the licence holder to implement much more robust conditions and processes to
avoid a repeat of the breaches found. The authority may also decide to prosecute
relevant persons for offences being carried out on licensed premises. Licence holders
should note that the authority can take one or more of these options available to it
at the same time for the same offences should it be deemed appropriate to do so.

9.15 Licensed premises that have a history of non-compliance over a period of
months and years and/or incidents of serious crime taking place at that premises,
will likely find that the Authority will initiate a review with a view to asking for the
licence to be considered for revocation.

9.16 When considering what enforcement action to take, the Authority will always
consider what is the most appropriate and proportionate step to promote the
licensing objectives. The Authority is not required to wait for offences to occur
before deciding it needs to take appropriate action. Case law - notably East Lindsey
District Council v Abu Hanif - states that the promotion of the licensing objectives
requires a prospective consideration of what is warranted in the public interest
having regard to the twin considerations of prevention and deterrence. Similarly, the
Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act makes clear that there is no
requirement for the Authority to wait for the outcome of any criminal proceedings
before it initiates any enforcement action. This is the approach that the Authority
will take when considering what, if any, action should be taken when condition
breaches and other criminal activity is found at licensed premises.

9.18 Any responsible authority or person defined as ‘any other person’ within the Act
can initiate a review of any premises licence or club premises certificate. When
another responsible authority or other person initiates a review, the Authority will
deal with it as the Licensing Authority and may also wish to make representation in
support of the review within it’s role as a responsible authority if it has relevant
information.

9.20 The Authority shall endeavour to work with licence holders and applicants
where it is believed that steps can be taken to rectify issues identified at licensed

Page 14 8




premises. However it cannot merely continue that approach if it has previously failed
or the li holder i ve. It is tt ibility of all i hald 1
responsible authorities to ensure that licensed premises are not undermining the
promotion of the licensing objectives and that licensable activity is carried out
lawfully. The Authority will work with partners to determine what action is
appropriate for each premises where issues are discovered. Each premises and the
action required for each will be assessed on it’s own individual merits.

9.21 The Council, in determining a review application can take the following steps in
order to promote the licensing objectives:

- modify the conditions on the licence

- exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence

- remove the designated premises supervisor

- suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months
- revoke the premises licence

Relevant Case law for consideration

(R) on the application of Hope and Glory Public House v Westminster City Council
(2011) EWCA Civ31

East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif (2016)

Daniel Thwaites plc v Wirral Magistrates’ Court and Others

10. Appendices

Appendix RS-1: Review application & appendices

Appendix RS-2: Representation from Reading Borough Council

Appendix RS-3: Current premises licence for Matchbox

Appendix RS-4: Additional Information and CCTV footage submitted by Thames
Valley Police on 08/01/2020

Page 15 9




Page 16



s Classification: OFFICIAL A P ,Ql\Cl\ X

West Berkshire Council

i(s—1L

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section S1 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in part 1 below:

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Matchbox
5/6 Friar Street

Post town Reading ‘ Post code (if known) RG11DX

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Greene King Brewing & Retailing Ltd

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

LP9000452

Part 2 - Applicant details

ITam
Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A) O
or (B) below)

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X
3) a member of the club to which this application relates ]

(please complete (A) below)

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 17



Classification: OFFICIAL

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Please tick v yes

Mr [ Mrs [ Miss [ Ms [ Other title
(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v' yes
I am 18 years old or over L]

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 18




Classification: OFFICIAL

C) DETAILS OF RESP ) b L

Name and address

Thames Valley Police

C/O Reading Licensing Dept
Reading Police Station
Castle Street

Reading

RG1 7TH

Telephone number (if any)
101

E-mail address (optional)
Licensing@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v’
1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public-safety
_3) the prevention of public nuisance

IXEXIX

=~ 4)1he protection ol children from harm

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 19



Classification: OFFICIAL

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

Thames Valley Police (TVP) as a responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003 and under
the objectives of prevention of crime and disorder and public safety make an application for the
review of Premises Licence No.LP9000452 Matchbox, 5/6 Friar Street, Reading, Berkshire, RGI
1DX.

O the 7" December 2019 a large scale disorder occurred at Matchbox which involved the assault
of a door supervisor and a number of arrests for assault/affray requiring multiple police officers
over an extended period to maintain order on the streets.

This high risk event was one of a string of events over a 24 month period during which police
have made a number of interventions in an attempt for the managers of this premises to act in a
responsible manner which supports and does not undermine the licensing objectives.

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 20




, Classification: OFFICIAL

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

Matchbox has suffered a number of disorders and incidents involving violence over the previous
twenty four months linked to high risk events. Thames Valley Police have made a number of
interventions via performance meetings and letters with the premises in order to reduce this type
of incident, and to attempt to prevent the premises from undermining the licensing objectives.

In October 2019 Thames Valley Police were assured that the premises was to be used as a micro-
brewery/ low risk premises in the near future.

Unfortunately we became aware that throughout the December 2019 period that a number of
events of a high risk nature had been scheduled to be held at the premises.

Concerns were raised in relation to this on the evening of the 6™ December 2019 in line with
similar advice that had been provided to persons previously running the premises in a face to face
meeting with the duty manager.

Unfortunately during this visit the staff failed to inform Thames Valley Police of a high risk event
due to take place at the premises that night and sadly but predictably the inevitable disorders and
assaults occurred.

On the 7" December 2019 at approximately 0200 — 2058 hours persons attending an event within
Matchbox became involved in an altercation within the venue and were removed. During the
ensuing melee’ a door supervisor was assaulted by a thrown chair and the windows/ door to the
premises was damaged.

This incident spilled onto the streets where a number of arrests were made and persons involved in

woemmen oy ASSaUlS) public orderincidents, oo o e e e e e g

A large number of officers (approximately 30) had to attend to restore order to the streets and
disperse the large crowds in what was a hostile environment for officers.

This incident was both predictable and preventable and had the premises licence holders and
venue management team adhered to police warnings and previous interventions this may have
been averted.

Due to the nature of this event and serious concerns in relation to the prevention of crime and
disorder and seriousness of this individual incident and failure of the premises licence holders to
address previous concerns Thames Valley Police had seriously considered a summary review of
this premises licence.

However, having spoken to Mr James Morgan a director of the Big Smoke Brew Co. the current
management company of the premises he has taken the responsible step to voluntarily close the
premises until the New Year where he has stated they intend to re-brand the premises and close at
an earlier time.

Therefore, and armed with this information Thames Valley Police have taken the reasonable step
to submit this premises licence review rather than a summary review in lieu of their decision to
close the premises.

However the concerns of Thames Valley Police remain in relation to the current premises licence
holders failure to promote the licensing objectives and although an offer has been made in relation
to an undertaking to change this premises to a format that should not cause future crime and
disorder we do not believe it to be sensible or prudent to leave that fact to chance.

In this situation and in order to ensure that the licensing objectives are promoted we believe that it

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 21



Classification: OFFICIAL

is both necessary and proportionate for us to bring this review in order that the licensing sub-
committee can review the available evidence in relation to this and other incidents and make an
informed decision in relation to this premises licence.

Currently Thames Valley Police would wish that the sub-committee weighs up all available
options to them, including both revocation of the licence and the amendment of licensable
activities, sale of alcohol and hours open to the public etc.

Thames Valley Police believe that if this premises is to be re-branded and the sub-committee is
convinced that this is to be the intention of the premises licence holders, that the hours of
operation should be reduced to reflect the nature of that business to the following:

1100 — 0030 — Hours for the sale of alcohol (Mon — Sun)
1100 - 0100 — hours open to the public (Mon — Sun)

Furthermore, Thames Valley Police would urge the consideration of amending the premises
licence conditions to reflect that of the re-branded version in order that incidents such as that being
observed at this premises can no longer be allowed to occur.

In conclusion Thames Valley Police have taken this most serious step of applying for the review
of this premises licence as clearly from the evidence above there are inherent issues in relation to a
failure to promote the four licensing objectives.

Sadly to date minimal attempts have been made at any stage to rectify our concerns even after
numerous interventions by the responsible authorities to prevent high risk events.

. the modification of the conditions of the premises licence;

Thames Valley Police are of the opinion that the conditions on the licence would have to be
amended if the licence were to be allowed to remain in force in either its current hourly, late night
format or if a reduced hour micro-brewery premises were to be put into place.

. the exclusion of a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;

The only licensable activity if excluded which may impact this premises licence would be the
removal of the sale of alcohol and in this would in effect have the same effect as the revocation of
the premises licence on a business such as this.

. the removal of the designated premises supervisor from the licence;

Thames Valley Police are of the opinion that the issues at this premises relate directly to the
direction of the business and not the individual DPS.

¢ the suspension of the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; and

This may be an option that the licensing sub-committee consider, and could be used when
improvements are expected and thus require time to be implemented and may be useful if and

when the sub-committee are convinced the business model is due to change and may allow for a
time to bed in new processes.

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 22




Classification: OFFICIAL

Secretary of States Section 182 Guidance

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of
their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the
licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A failure
by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a
review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged
and reviews should not be used to undermine this cooperation.

11.19 Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is appropriate,
it may take any of the following steps:

. modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the hours of
opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;

. exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude the
performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live
and recorded music exemption);

. remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that the
problems are the result of poor management;

. suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

. revoke the licence.

11.20  In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes
and-should-always be no-more than-an-appropriate-and proportionate-response-to address-the

%

11.21  For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal
and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual.

11.22 Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be an
inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review hearings are
generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a succession of designated
premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of deeper problems that impact upon the
licensing objectives.

Furthermore Thames Valley Police recommend that when considering what enforcement action to
take, the Authority will always consider what is the most appropriate and proportionate step to
promote the licensing objectives. Thames Valley Police suggest that the authority is not required
to wait for offences to occur before deciding it needs to take appropriate action. Case law —
notably East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif — states that the promotion of the licensing
objectives requires a prospective consideration of what is warranted in the public interest having
regard to the twin considerations of prevention and deterrence and respectfully ask that the
licensing Sub-Committee take cognisance of this factor with regards to this review application.

A full transcript of this Case Law is provided below.

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 23



Classification: OFFICIAL

QBD, ADMINISTRATIVE COURT

Neutral Citation Number: [2016] EWHC 1265 (Admin)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE

QUEEN'S BENCH DIVISION

THE ADMINISTRATIVE COURT

Before:

MR JUSTICE JAY

Between:

C0O/345/2016

Rovyal Courts of Justice

Strand

London WC2ZA 2LL

Thursday, 14 April 2016

EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL

ABU HANIF

Appellant

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 24




Classification: OFFICIAL

(TRADING AS ZARA'S RESTAURANT AND TAKEAWAY)

Respondent

Computer- Aided Transcript of the Stenograph Notes of
WordWave International Limited trading as DTI
165 Fleet Street London EC4A 2DY
Tel No: 020 7404 1400 Fax No: 020 7404 1424

(Official Shorthand Writers to the Court)

Mr P Kolvin QC & Mr D Dadds (instructed by David Dadds LLP) appeared on
behalf of the Appellant

The Respondent did not appear and was not represented

JUDGMENT

(Approved)

Crown copyright©

; MR JUSTICE JAY: This is an appeal by way of case stated from the decision
of the Lincoln Magistrates' Court, District Judge Veits, given on 23 June 2015,
whereby he allowed an appeal from the revocation of a premises licence by
the licensing authority.

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 25



Classification: OFFICIAL

2.

The appellant, the East Lindsey District Council, is the licensing authority.
The

Magistrates' Court in the usual way is not a party to these proceedings. The
respondent, Mr Abu Hanif, trading as Zara's Restaurant and Takeaway, is the licence
holder. He through a licensing consultant has submitted correspondence making
various limited points, but indicating that he would not be taking any part in these
proceedings.

The premises in question are Zara's Restaurant and Takeaway situated in
North Summercoates on the Lincolnshire coast. They are licensed to sell
alcohol ancillary to the supply of food. The restaurant is owned and managed
by the licensee, Mr Hanif. On 29 April 2014, the premises were the subject of
a joint visit by the police and immigration officers, and it was discovered that
Mr Miah was working in the kitchen as a chef. It was common ground that
Mr Miah had no current entitlement to remain in the UK, let alone to work. 1
was told that he arrived here illegally some years ago. Furthermore, it was
also accepted by the respondent that he (i) employed Mr Miah without
paperwork showing a right to work in the United Kingdom; (ii) paid Mr Miah
cash in hand; (iii) paid Mr Miah less than the minimum wage; (iv) did not
keep or maintain PAYE records; (v) purported to deduct tax from Mr Miah's
salary; and (vi) did not account to HMRC for the tax deducted.

The police then applied for a review of the respondent's licence under section
51 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the matter came before the appellant's
subcommittee on 30 June 2014. The subcommittee decided to revoke the
respondent's licence. Its reasons were as follows:

"The subcommittee were satisfied that Mr Hanif did not take the appropriate
checks of staff members having knowledge that there were problems
previously at the other premises with overstayers, and that he continued to
allow staff to work at Zara's restaurant without making appropriate checks.

The subcommittee were satisfied that Mr Hanif had not undertaken the
relevant checks to ensure the employee concerned was eligible to work in the
United Kingdom. Instead of not allowing employees to work if they had not
provided the correct documentation he allowed them to work and paid cash in
hand. With all this in mind the subcommittee were satisfied that Mr Hanif had
knowingly employed person/s unlawfully in the United Kingdom.

The subcommittee considered the evidence by Mr Kheng on behalf of Mr
Hanif and the Home Office section 182 Guidance to Licensing Authorities.
The subcommittee were of the view that the premises licence should be
revoked and that revocation was an appropriate step with a view to promoting
the crime prevention licensing objective."

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 26




Classification: OFFICIAL

8. The respondent then appealed to the Magistrates' Court. There was a hearing
on 27 March 2015, and on 23 June the district judge decided to allow the
respondent's appeal. On 1 September 2015, the district judge determined the
issue of costs and on 7 January 2016 he stated the case. The appeal to the
district judge was de novo, but he accepted that he could only allow the appeal
if the subcommittee's decision was "wrong", the burden being on the appellant
before him to establish that.

9. Looking now at the stated case, the district judge noted that the respondent
had received a civil penalty for employing an illegal worker under section 15
of the Immigration, Asylum and Nationality Act 2006. An immigration
officer gave evidence to the effect that although by virtue of section 21 a
criminal offence was committed, such proceedings were rarely brought. The
district judge also noted that the police and the Council’s licensing officer
were no longer saying that the respondent was a serial offender, but a redacted
report which was placed before the subcommittee still gave the impression
that he "was in a much worse position than he actually was". As for the
failure to pay the minimum wage, the district judge said this:

A. "In his evidence before me Mr Hanif accepted that he had not paid the minimum
wage and this in itself can be a criminal offence. I found that this was not the main

basis of the subcommittee's decision however and again there was no evidence that he
had been reporteﬁ Tor that aiiegeﬁ offence. It wouié appear from their reasons that the |
subcommittee used the evidence of paying cash in hand as justification for the finding

that he knowingly employed Mr Miah. The prosecuting authority however appear to
have taken a different view in offering the civil penalty.”

10.  The district judge's core reasoning was that no crime had been committed. As
he put it:

A. "It appeared to me that no crime had been committed as a result of the visit to
the premises in April of last year. A civil penalty had been imposed rather than
prosecution for the section 21 offence and no other crime had been reported in
relation to not paying the minimum wage."

11.  In the district judge's view, the crime prevention objective was not engaged.

12.  The district judge also criticised the subcommittee for adopting an inconsistent
approach because in other similar cases only warnings were issued. Finally,
he considered that the subcommittee may have been influenced by comments
in the police report, leading them to believe that they were dealing with a
serial offender.

13. At the conclusion of the stated case, the district judge posed two questions for

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 27



Classification: OFFICIAL

my determination. I will address these at the end of my judgment.

14. I was taken by Mr Philip Kolvin QC to various provisions of the Licensing
Act 2003 as amended. Under section 4(1)and(2) a licensing authority must
carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives, which include "the prevention of crime and disorder”. The
provisions dealing with the review application brought by the police are
contained in sections 51 and 52. Under section 52(3), the licensing authority
(and on appeal the Magistrates' Court):

A. "... must, having regard to the application and any relevant representations,

take such of the steps mentioned in subsection (4) (if any) as it considers appropriate

for the promotion of the licensing objectives."

15.  The epithet "appropriate” was introduced by amendment in 2011. Previously
the test had been stricter. In my judgment, it imports by necessary
implication the concepts of proportionality and relevance.

16.  Mr Kolvin submitted that the district judge erred in a number of respects.
First, he wrongly held that, given that criminal proceedings were never
brought, the crime prevention objective (see section 4(2)) was not engaged.
The statute is concerned with the prevention rather than the fact of crime.
Secondly, and in any event, the interested party had committed criminal
offences in relation to tax evasion, the employment of an illegal worker, and
employing an individual at remuneration below the minimum wage. As for
the employment of an illegal worker, Mr Kolvin accepted that this requires
knowledge on the part of the employer, and he also accepted that it is not
altogether clear whether the district judge found as a fact that the respondent
possessed the requisite knowledge. However, the core question is the
promotion of the licensing objectives, not the fact of anterior criminal
activity, and in this regard a deterrence approach is appropriate.

17.  Thirdly, Mr Kolvin submitted that there was no evidence of an inconsistent
approach by the subcommittee in giving warnings in some cases because all
cases turn on their own facts. Finally, Mr Kolvin submitted that there was no
basis for the district judge's conclusion that the subcommittee may have been
influenced by a suggestion that the respondent was a serial offender.

18. I accept Mr Kolvin's submissions. In my view the district judge clearly erred.
The question was not whether the respondent had been found guilty of
criminal offences before a relevant tribunal, but whether revocation of his
licence was appropriate and proportionate in the light of the salient licensing
objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder.

This requires a much broader approach to the issue than the mere identification of
criminal convictions. It is in part retrospective, in as much as antecedent facts will
usually impact on the statutory question, but importantly the prevention of crime and

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 28




Classification: OFFICIAL

disorder requires a prospective consideration of what is warranted in the public

S A 3 2 5 C 3 cH 4
5 O oHMAE e o1 PHEVE : . =

district judge's erroneous analysis of the law precluded any proper consideration of

that issue. In any event, I agree with Mr Kolvin that criminal convictions are not

required.

19. To the extent that the analysis must be retrospective, the issue is whether, in
the opinion of the relevant court seized of the appeal, criminal offences have
been committed. In the instant case they clearly had been: in relation to tax
evasion (see the common law offence of cheating the Revenue and the
offence of fraudulent evasion of tax contrary to section 106A of the Taxes
and Management Act 1970); and the employment of Mr Miah at
remuneration below the minimum wage (see section 31 of the National
Minimum Wage Act 1998). Moreover, given the evidence that Mr Miah
never provided the relevant paperwork, notwithstanding apparent requests,
the obvious inference to be drawn is that the respondent well knew that he
could not, and that no tax code and National Insurance number had been
issued. The corollary inference in my judgment is that the respondent well
knew that Mr Miah could not provide the relevant paperwork because he was
here illegally.

20. T also accept Mr Kolvin's submission that each case must turn on its own facts.
As a matter of law, unless it could be said that some sort of estoppel or
related abuse of process arose in the light of warnings given in other cases,

the alleged inconsistent approach led nowhere. In my judgment, it could not

€ SO said.

21.  Finally, I agree with Mr Kolvin that there is nothing in the point that the
subcommittee could have been misled about the interested party being a
serial offender. The point that the subcommittee was making was the fact
that the respondent had worked at premises where illegal workers were also
employed meant that he should have been vigilant to the issue.

22.  Thus the answer to the district judge's two questions are as follows:

A. Q. "Was I correct to conclude that the crime prevention objective was not
engaged as no crimes had been proceeded with, the appellant only receiving a
civil penalty?"

B. No.

C. Q. "Was I correct in concluding that the respondent had been inconsistent in
similar decisions in not revoking the licence [sic]?"

D. No.

23.  Having identified errors of law in the district judge's decision, the next issue

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 29



Classification: OFFICIAL

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

which arises is whether I should remit this case for determination in the light
of my ruling or whether I have sufficient material to decide the issue for
myself. Ishould only adopt the latter course if satisfied that the issue is so
obvious that no useful purpose would be served by remission. Iam so
satisfied. Having regard in particular to the twin requirements of prevention
and deterrence, there was in my judgment only one answer to this case. The
respondent exploited a vulnerable individual from his community by acting
in plain, albeit covert, breach of the criminal law. In my view his licence
should be revoked. Another way of putting the matter is that the district
judge had no proper basis for overturning the subcommittee's assessment of
the merits.

It follows in my judgment that the only conclusion open to the district judge in
the present case was to uphold the revocation of the respondent's licence.
This appeal must be allowed and the respondent's licence must be revoked.

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, I'm very grateful. Can I deal with the question of
costs, both here and below.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes.
MR KOLVIN: Should I start with here.
MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes.

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, we would ask for the costs before this court. I just
want to pray in aid four very brief points. The first is the result. The second
is that the district judge's approach was expressly urged on him by the
respondent's legal team. Thirdly, that the respondent was expressly urged to
concede this appeal to stop costs running, he was given that opportunity at
pages 42 and 43 of the bundle. Fourthly, perhaps a little bit tugging at the
heart strings, but there's no reason why the Council Tax payers of East
Lindsey should bear the cost of establishing what has been established in this
court. So we would ask for the costs up here.

There is a schedule and the schedule has been served upon Mr Hanif by letter
dated 16 March of 2016. Idon't know whether the schedule has found its
way to my Lord, if not I can hand up a copy.

MR JUSTICE JAY: It has.

MR KOLVIN: It has. My Lord, I can see that VAT has been added on. It
doesn't need to be because of course the Council can retrieve the VAT, so my
application is for £16,185. Tknow there's not a lot of explanation around my
fee, but it was taken on a single fee for all work involved in relation to the

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 30




Classification: OFFICIAL

case stated; advice, the skeleton argument and attendance today, so it's one

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

sigte
MR JUSTICE JAY: What about your junior's fees?

MR KOLVIN: My learned junior is also my instructing solicitor, he wears
two hats.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Isee.

MR KOLVIN: He has his own firm which is Dadds LLP, and he is also a
member of the bar, so although he has appeared as my junior, his fee is
wrapped up in the solicitors' fees set out in the schedule.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Okay. What about the costs below?
MR KOLVIN: My Lord, I'm just trying to ascertain what the position is.
MR JUSTICE JAY: I thought there was no order for costs below.

MR KOLVIN: There was no order for costs below, that was on the basis that
appeals are set out in section 181 of the Act, which enables the court to make
such order as it thinks fit. Normally when appeals are dismissed there is no
real question about it, costs follow the event. When appeals are allowed,
some further considerations come into play, which are expressed by the
Master of the Rolls in a case which you may have come across called City of
Bradford v Booth, which is the case where the Master of the Rolls said that
local authorities shouldn't be put off from trying to make honest and
reasonable decisions in the public interest. And so one has to take account
additionally of the means of the parties and their conduct in relation to the
dispute, but in this case of course the appeal has now been dismissed, and so
we would say that the ordinary rule is that the costs should follow the event,
the appeal having failed. I'm just trying to ascertain whether schedules were
ever served below, in the light of the way the case came out. (Pause)

My Lord, I'm really sorry that we don't actually have the schedule here,
apparently it was £15,000. If you were minded to order costs below the
options are either I suppose to wait and we will have the thing emailed up, or
to say, "Look, it was below, it's a little bit more complex, they should be
assessed if not agreed."

MR JUSTICE JAY: This is going to wipe him out, isn't it?

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 31



Classification: OFFICIAL

43.

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

MR KOLVIN: Well he has already said, I have to say, I'm just telling you
frankly what I've been told this morning, that when the bundles and the
schedules were served on him, he had clearly read them, but he said, "If you
win in the High Court and get costs against me, then I'm just going to declare
myself bankrupt." So there may well be a bit of football(?) about this, but
nonetheless it was his appeal, his team raised a point which in retrospect was
very surprising, and caused an awful lot of costs to be incurred.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes. Well I am going to assess the costs here in the
round figure of £15,000.

MR KOLVIN: Thank you.

MR JUSTICE JAY: If there was a schedule, which you tell me there was,
below, it is proportionate that I assess those costs rather than put you to the
trouble of a detailed assessment, so if you could have that emailed to my
clerk in due course, I will assess the costs below.

MR KOLVIN: Thank you, my Lord.
MR JUSTICE JAY: On the basis of that schedule.

MR KOLVIN: We're not trying to be too ambitious, but we would like to see
what we can - -

MR JUSTICE JAY: TI'll take a broad brush approach to that.
MR KOLVIN: Thank you.

My Lord, the only other thing to mention is that this isn't the only case which
is kicking around the east of England where licensing subcommittees are
being urged to take no action because there has been no prosecution in these
immigration cases. Although I appreciate that this is hardly stellar law
making, it's an application of pretty well established legal principles to the
facts, I'm asking whether my Lord would be minded to certify this so that we
can adduce the authority in other cases, because it's a clear statement of the
law that there doesn't need to have been a prosecution. So with the practice
direction in mind, would my Lord be minded to - -

MR JUSTICE JAY: Just remind me of the practice direction.

MR KOLVIN: Yes, can I hand it up?

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 32




Classification: OFFICIAL

55.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes. (Handed)

_ =

61.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

MR KOLVIN: If Mr Hanif had come I wouldn't need to make the application.
It's paragraph 6.1. The judgment has to clearly indicate that it purports to
establish a new principle or extends the present law and that has to take the
form of an express statement to that effect, and then 6.2 says what categories
of judgment we're dealing with, which include applications attended by one
party only.

So that's the situation we're in. In reality these judgments get around anyway,
because we're dealing with administrative tribunals and not courts, but
sometimes the point is taken, "Ah yes, but the court didn't certify".

MR JUSTICE JAY: But where's the new principle I've established?

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, what you have said clearly, which hasn't been said
before, by dint of the fact that not many licensing cases reach the lofty
heights of this building, is that there does not need to have been a
prosecution in order for the crime to have - -

MR JUSTICE JAY: Oh, I see. Well that's so obvious it almost goes without
saying, that's why it hasn't been said before.

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, it was obvious to everyone except the district judge,
the appellant and other licensees in the east of England.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Okay.

In terms of the logistics, if you want a copy of the judgment, don't you have to
pay for it?

MR KOLVIN: We may have to, and we would be obviously very pleased to
do so.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Because I'm not sure that all judgments are, in the
Administrative Court, they're not all transcribed and published.

MR KOLVIN: That is correct, and I have no doubt that my client would be -
this isn't a matter about the costs of the judgment.

MR JUSTICE JAY: No, fortunately it doesn't cost that much. But I will give
the certification. I have never been asked to do so before, I must confess.

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 33



Classification: OFFICIAL

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

MR KOLVIN: Yes.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Because these cases are referred to almost willy nilly, if
they're available on Lawtel or wherever.

MR KOLVIN: Yes, they are.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Then they're just provided.

MR KOLVIN: They get into the textbooks and they - -

MR JUSTICE JAY: No- one objects.

MR KOLVIN: Yes. It has happened once before, in relation to the meaning
of the Court of Appeal judgment in Hope and Glory, and Lindblom J, as he
then was, was asked repeatedly would he certify in relation to the meaning of
Hope and Glory, which is an important test, and he was pretty engaged in the
practice direction. But since then that judgment, there's always an argument
in court about whether it can be cited or not. The difference between
licensing and some other fields of law is that very few cases reach here, so
when they do, the judgments of High Court judges are gold dust.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes, well I'm happy to make the certification.
MR KOLVIN: Thank you very much indeed.

MR JUSTICE JAY: We wouldn't want this point to be taken again
successfully.

MR KOLVIN: No.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Now as a matter of courtesy, is the judgment, once
available, sent to the district judge, or is it something that I should do
informally?

MR KOLVIN: Idon't know, my Lord, what the normal practice is. I don't
think that I have previously been on a legal team which has sent judgments,
but we're very happy to undertake to do so.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes, I think if you're going to get a copy, obviously
you're going to send it to the respondent - -

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 34




Classification: OFFICIAL

82. MR KOLVIN: Indeed.

83. MRIJUSTICE JAY: - - sohecan ingestit. Ithink you should send it to the

district judge, just saying that the judge directed that out of courtesy he
should see it.

84. MR KOLVIN: We're very happy to do that. Thank you very much indeed.

85. MR IJUSTICE JAY: Thank you very much.

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 35




Classification: OFFICIAL

Appendices

Appendix TVP | — Matchbox incidents and engagement summary sheet.

Appendix TVP 2 — 4 x crime occurrences relating to disorder at Matchbox on 7" December 2019.
Appendix TVP 3 — 5 x Statements relating to disorder at matchbox on 7" December 2019.

APpendix TVP 4 — Proposed business plan for The Corner house provided by James Morgan on
7" December 2019.

Appendix TVP 5 - Letter from PC Wheeler to Greene King and Mr James Morgan.

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 36




Classification: OFFICIAL

Please tick v yes
—————Have you-made an-applicationfor review relating to-the : £l
IIIE i —
premises before
If yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year

HEEEEREER

If you have made representations before relating to the premises please state what they were
and when you made them

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 37



Classification: OFFICIAL

Please tick v
yes

e [ have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X
and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate,
as appropriate

e T understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my X
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Capacity  Thames Valley Police (Authorised officer) Reading LPA

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 38




Classification: OFFICIAL

Notes for Guidance

wnN

A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other
statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives.

Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are
included in the grounds for review if available.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 39



Page 40



Created: 07/12/2019 21:34:47

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

TVP |

Pagelof?

Wmnsed Premises Summary Report

PLEASE NOTE: The information below is OFFICIAL
consant of the Uicensing Team. The records in this

to the same Indident and should not necessarity be counted ind
Amandus at the time of the report being run and may not be a comprehensive

MATCHBOX
5 Friar Street, Reading, RG1 1BB
Events dated between 01 December 2017 and 07 December 2019

- SENSITIVE and

should not be shared outside of Thames Valley Police without the express

summary are derived from a varlety of sourcas. In some cases, muttiple records may relate

ividually. The report relates only to events which have been entered on

{ist. Al data entry is at the discretion of the Licensing Team.

Incident: Disorder
Date/Time: Saturday 17 February 2018 - 23:53

Niche Ref{s): 43180051441
Inc Ref{s): URN 1699

Engagament: Visit by Ppﬂee
Date/Time: Tuesday 27 February 2018

¥
Incident: Intoxication
DatefTime: Saturday 17 March 2018 - 01:35

40+ fighting on Friar street. ABH on Doormen. Street
blocked lasting over 30 minutes. d/s works at o'nellls fight
happened o/s sig.

Premises Response: Positive

Mass disturbante/ Disorder on Friar straet 17/02/18.
Spoken to Owners and DP$; agreed action golng fosward,
Correct use of TownSafe and Tabards on doorteam

Very Possitive. DPS and owners agreed that the Incedent
could have been provented. Actidn by deorman was not
warrented, moving forward, site to be more proactive on
Townsafe, use Tabards on entrance

Male was ejected from Matchbox, 4-5 intoxication- when
walking away police tried to reason with the male, the
male then proceeded to try and start a fight with the

~ Niche Rel(s): 43180081438
Inc Ref(s): 102/170318

incident: Disorder
Date/Time: Saturday 24 March 2018 - 23:16

Inc Ref{s): URN 1599

Incident: Disorder .. .
Date/Time: Sunday 25 March 2018 - 03:28

Inc Ref{s): URN 162

incidenti Bisorder
Oate/Times “Mondby 62 At 2018 0213
inc Ref{s) UBN €5

Incident: Assault - Less Serlous
Date/Time: Sunday 15 April 2018 - 01:21

Inc Ref(s): 43180112076

officers which fead to s arrest,
Premises Response: Positive

Male pinned to the floor by Door staff. Management have
resolved without palice action

Premises Response: Unknown
Fight

Premises Response: Unknown

2 x Males fighting outside the club.
Prentises Response: Unknown
Female glassed male over the head- Female arrested for

ABH- she is alleging a low level sexual assault- Male
requires stitches

Premises Response: Unknown

Pagelof7

Page 41



“reated: 07/12/2019 21:34:47

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

page20of7

HAMESVALLEY |jcensed Premises Summary Report

POLIC

MATCHBOX
S Friar Street, Reading, RG1 188
Events dated between 01 December 2017 and 07 December 2019

PLEASE NOTE: The information below is

consent of the Licensing Team- The records in this summary are derived
rily be counted individually, The report relates onty to events which have been entered on

to the same incident and should not necessa

Amandus at the time of the report being run and may not be a compreh

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE and should not be shared outside of Thames Valley

police without the express
from a variety of sources. Jn some cases, multiple records may relate

enstve list. All data entry Is at the discretion of the Licensing Team.

Engagement: Meeting requested by Police {Tler 1)
pate/Time: Thursday 26 April 2018

Engagement: E-Mall sent by Licensee (Tier 1)
Date/Time: Saturday 28 April 2018

Engagement: E-Mall sent by Licensee
Date/Time: Saturday 05 May 2018

incident: Other (specify in notes)
Date/Time: Sunday 06 May 2018 - 22:00

intel Grading: B21

Engagement: Visit by Police
Date/Time: Wednesday 09 May 2018

Incident: Assault - Less Serious
Date/Time: Saturday 19 May 2018 - 23:22

Niche Ref{s): 43180151725
Inc Ref(s): URN 1621

performance meeting to discuss urban music events and
recent concerns ovar eorrelatiohn of incidents to these

events.
Letter to the premises outilning concems and warning of

future action if the situation continues. Letter in folder and
notes within tier 1 folder

In response to the Tier 1 meeting held on 26th April 2018
the DPS forwarded a 6 week event plan and risk

assessments.
Detalls contained within correspondance folder and 6 week

plan in "other documents”

Email from DPS updating that the Ao romotion
has been cancelled on bank holiday Sunday eve due to
“intell from other premises”

Contained within correspondance folder

Intell to suggest that management deliberately lied in
relation to cancelling an event on 6th May 2018. Further
supported by evidence from CCTV operator that the event
did actually take place. Gen 40 outlining Police findings
within folder.

Premises Response: Negative

Visit te view CETv to determine if the TR evernt
was actually cancelled as intelligence via ET-CCIV
suggested otherwise. Evidence suggests the event or did
take place in all but namel

View CCTV which showed event likely went ahead! DPS
stated that she had cancelled the event vis whatsapp but
had not publicised the cancefiation and hadn't checked (f
the promater had either. Premise honoured all sold tickets.

Eire exit obstructed(images)

MALE SUS UNKNOWN HAS PUNCHED AGG IN THE NOSE
CAUSING IT TO BLEED AND CHIPPED HIS FRONT TOOTH.

Premises Response: Mixed

Page2of7

Page 42



o ereated-07/12/201921:30:47 OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page3of7

MATCHBOX

5 Friar Street, Reading, RG1 188
Events dated between 01 December 2017 and 07 December 2019

PLEASE NOTE: The Infarmation below {s OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE and should not be shared outside of Thames Valley Police without the exprass

consent of the Ucensing Team. The records in this summary are derived from a variety of sources. in some cases, multiple records may relate

to the same incident and should not necessarily be counted Individually. The report refates onty to events which have been entered on
Amandus at the time of the raport being run and may not be a comprehensive list. All data entry Is at the discretion of the Licensing Team.

incidenty’Assault < Sefjous 2 xindidents, wgummmw dufing af argument with
Dote/Vismas SUnday My 201 apother by her partnar. 2) Un
R FLi whaﬂv&ev&ﬂh},w&mdneamdm 2

Niche Reis): 431 5, 43180439702 above the éye. Both Indidents cocurret within misiutes of
inc Ref(3)2 176, 195, $70, 175 each ather. Poorvenue response Gend0

w Response: Negative
Engagement: Visit by Other (Specify) Fire & Rescue Service Visit: Concers over fire safty and how
Date/Time: Friday 15 June 2018 this Is being managed. See: Other Documents, Matchbox

FRS response

improvement needed by management and PL Holder
incident: Disorder Large disorder/ fight involving 6 males outsitie the venue-
Data/Vines , £7 Jane 2018 - 62:51 Doorstaffinvolved In trying to.saparate tem- £ problems
lncReﬂ;ﬁ ' have edcalated but out of view

Premises Respense: Mixed

Engagement: E-Mali sent by Police Ongoing Urban events/ lact of risk assesments and event

Date/Time: Tuesday 26 June 2018 planning/ banned customers visiting the club
see: Correspondence, 18-06-26 TVP emall

Engagement: Letter sent by Counill RBC Licensing checkfvisit
Date/Time: Tuesday 10July 2018 folder: Correspondencs 18-07-10 RBC insp Letter

Engagement: Letter sent by Other {Specify) Royal Berkshire Fire & Rescue inspection - letter
DatefTime: Tuesday 10 July 2018 Folder: Correspondence, 18-07-10 Royal Berks, Fire &
Rescue Letter

Current poor performance of the site and the

Engagement: Telephone call from Police
management - Urban Nights/ Crime increase/ Door policy/

Date/Time: Monday 16 July 2018  Prastic piin
Spokenmnfsomdeasmedwmeetfwe
meeting to discuss actions/ possible
conditions onto preniises licence
incident: Disorder police calied to a Altercation

. Saturday 04 August 2018 - 23:27 :
Oata/Time % su Premises Response: Unknown

Inc Ref{s): URN 1523

page3of7

Page 43



‘reated: 07/12/2019 21:34:48 OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE page 8of7

THAMESVALLEY |jcensed Premises Summary Report
@POLICE
MATCHBOX
S Friar Street, Reading, RG1 1B8

Events dated between 01 December 2017 and 07 December 2019

PLEASE NOTE: The information below is OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE a
consent of the Uicensing Team. The records in this summ

to the same incidant and should not necessarily be coun
Amandus at the time of the report being run and may not be a comprehensive Jist. All data entry

nd should not be shared outside of Thames Vallay Police without the express
derived from a varigty of sources. in some cases, muitiple records may refate
ted individually. The report relates only to events which have been entered on

is at the discretion of the Licensing Team.

incident: Other (specify In notes)
Doteffima: Thursday 16 August 2018 - 22:00

Niche Ref{s): NJA
Inc Ref{sk N/A

Engagement: Telephone call from Police
Date/Time: Thursday 20 September 2018

incident: Other (specify in notes)
Date/fime: Filday 12 Octeber 2018 - 02:50
Inc.Ref{s): URN 1068

incldent: Assault - Less Serious
Date/Time: Saturday 13 October 2018 - 00:48

Niche Ref(s): 43180312948
inc Ref(s): URN 49

Incident: Disorder
Date/Time: Saturday 13 October 2018 - 02:49

Inc Ref(s): URN 171

Drug Swabbing
DatefTime: Wednesday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabbing
Date/Time: Wednesday 14 November 2018

ALEVEL RESULTS - APPROX 4-500 STUDENTS ATTEMPTING
70 COLLECT TICKETS FOR GLUBS - THE QUIE SPANNED THE
WHOLE PAVEMENT AND BACKTO WD UME, ONTO THE
ROAD BLOCKING TRAFFIC AND RRESENTING A DANGER -
PASSERSBY RAD TO WALX IN THE ROAD TO AVOID THE
QUEUE.

Premises Response: Negative

Chasing the updating of the CCTV - Coverage - Visit required
Left a message for TM & the DPS

Whilst on a night out with her friend a female belleyes her

drink may have been spiked due to accepting a drink from

an uriknown male, and within an hour was unabte to stand
and was vioteritly siek.

Premises Response: Unknown

Domestic Assault - male suspect witnessed assaulting
girifriend by dragging her along the road in the town centre.

Premises Response: Unknown

Club had closed and kicked everyone outa large group of
roughly 50-60 pecple gathered along Friar Street and s

fight broke out.
Premises Response: Unknown

Swab location: Ladies Tollets - Cubicte 3

No Drugs (clean)
Reading: O (Clean)

Swab location: Ladies Toilets - Cubicle d

No Drugs {clean)
Reading: 0 {Clean)

pagedof 7

Page 44



Created: 07/12/2019 21:34:48 OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE PageSof?7

i, B 1S

O POLICE

MATCHBOX
S Friar Street, Reading, RG1 188
Events dated between 01 December 2017 and 07 December 2019

PLEASE NOTE: The Information below is OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE and should not be shared outside of Thames Valley Police without the express
consent of the Licensing Team. The records in this summary are derived from a variety of sources. (n some cases, muitiple records may relate
to the same incident and should not necessarily be counted individually. The report relates anly to events which have been entered on
Amandus at the time of the report being run and may not be a comprehensive ist. All data entry is at the discretion of the Licensing Team.

Drug Swabbing
Date/Time: Wednesday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabbing
Date/Tinia: Wednesday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabbing
Date/Time: Wednesday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabhing

Swab location: Ladles Tollets - Cubicle 2
None
Reading: 0 (Clean)

Swab location: Ladies Tollets - Cubicle 1

Cocaine
Reading: 1.16 (Low)

Swab location: Ladies Toilets - Shelf
No Drugs {clean)
Reading: O (Clean)

Swab lacation: Disabled Tollets - Sk

Date/Tima: Wednesday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabbing
pate/Time: Wednesday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabhing
Date/Time: Wednasday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabhing
DatefTime: Wednesday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabbing
Date/Time: Wednesday 14 November 2018

Drug Swabbing
Date/Time: Wednesday 14 November 2018

o
Reading: 1.23 {Low)

Swab location: Gents Tollets - Urinal tops
No Drugs {clean)
Reading: 0 {Clean)

Swab locatioa: Gents Tollets - Cubicle'2

No Drugs (clean)
Reading: 0 {Qleary)

Swab location: Other (specify) - Back VIP Area Tables

Cocalne
Reading: 2.09 (Medium)

swab location; Other (specify) - Smali Tollet next to the

Disaliled Tollet
Cocalne
Reading: 3.81 (High)

swab location: Disabled Toilets - Tollet Seat & Cistern

Cocaine
Reading: 4.67 (High)

pPageSof 7

Page 45



eated: 07/12/2019 21:34:48 OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE Page 6 of 7

s"““"“"“‘-‘-“ Licensed Premises Summary Report

POLICE
MATCHBOX
S Friar Street, Reading, RG1 1BB

Events dated between 01 December 2017 and 07 December 2019

ames Valley Pollce without the express
multiple records may relate
events which have been entered on
the discretion of the Licensing Team.

PLEASE NOTE: The information below 1

:onsent of the Ucensing Team. The reco
to the same Incident and should not necessarily be counted individually. The report relates anly to

Amandus at the time of the report being run and may not be a comprehensive list. All data entry Isat

rug Swabbing Swab location: Gents Toilets - Cubicle 1

yate/Time: Wednesday 14 November 2018 Cocaine
Reading: 1.94 (Low)
ngagement: E-Mail sent by Licensee DPS has emalled confirming that the 1D scanner has been
sate/Time: Friday 16 November 2018 sent off for repairs and that they will have a loan delivered
on 17th November 2018

Incident: Assault - Serious Male has been assaulted - missing a tooth

Jate/Time: Sunday 20 January 2019 - 62:01 :
Premises Response: Unknown

\iche Refis): 43190020115 & 43190020119
nc Ref(s): URN 110

incident: Theft Female has had bag stolen at 12:30.

Date/Time: Saturday 09 March 2019 - 01:47 P cos R
Niche Ref(s): 43190072899 remises Response: Unknown
Inc Ref{s): URN 92

Pramises requesting police assistance - Male detained

incldent: Disorder

Oate/Time: Sunday 10 March 2019 - 02:27 inside premises - Male has assaulted another customer

Inc Refis): URN 169 Premises Response: Uriknown

Incident: Assault - Serlous MURDER - IP with head injury - 2 males fighting - Father

Date/Time: Friday 12 April 2019 - 23:31 and son - Father has fallen backwards hitting his head on
the ground - IP taken to A&E - SUSP 09x1 -

Niche Ref(s): 43190111645 .

inc Ref(s): URN 1717 Premises Response: Unknown

Engagement: E-Mail sent by Licensee Events Plan for 4 weeks submiitted - Requested by LO at the

Date/Time: Tuesday 21 May 2019 pubwatch meeting to help manage problems that seem to

m yar be spilling out of the premises - Premises tacking

management around dispersal

Positive - Event Plan emafled to LO by OPS

Engagement: Telephone call from Police Planned evnts on 26/05/19 and 07/06/19 - High Risk -
Spoken to the DPS, reminded the premises of previous

Date/Time: Thursday 23 May 2019
shortcomings
Concem - Advice given - Risk Asses, increase levels of

security - improve dispersal measures with High visability
and Gradual dispersal to preven disorder on Friar Street

page6of?7

Page 46



Page 7of7

Created: 07/12/2019 21:34:48 OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE
W Licensed Premises Summary Report
MATCHBOX

5 Friar Street, Reading, RG1 1BB
Events dated between 01 December 2017 and 07 December 2019

PLEASE NOTE: The information below is OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE and should not be shared outside of Themes Valley Police without the express
consent of the Licensing Team. The records in this summary are derived from a variety of sourcas. In some cases, muitiple records may relate
to the same inddent and should not necessarily be counted individually. The report relates only to events which have been entered on
Amandus at the time of the report being run and may not be a comprehensive list. All data entry is at the discretion of the Licensing Team.

Engagement: Telephone call from Licansee New owners (Big Smoke) have made contact to discuss
Oate/Time: Wednesday 09 October 2019 changes to the premises
me: % Positive - Premises will change to a Craft Beer & Cider,
Food venue

Agg has left at approx 01:00 on 20th October 2019 - When

incident: Assault - Serious
walking past IBIS Hotel he has been hit from behind, he has

Date/Time: Sunday 27 October 2019 - 08:21

not seen who has hit him but the female he was with told
Niche Ref(s): 43190335124 him it was the male they saw arguing moments before. Agg
Inc Ref{s): URN 1339 has had to have stitches

Premises Response: Unknown

Engagement: Visit by Police Visted premises at 2130 hours and spoke with Lily (Duty
Date/Time: Friday 06 December 2019 manager). infarmed her of serious concerns with planned
Urban acts booked for 13th Dec and reiteratetl concerns

_regarding High tisk events which attract violence and

members of OLG groups.

Lily stated she would inform "G" the manager and
confirmed that the premises was only running these events
as they were left over by the previous management team. |
informed disorder would likeley tead to review as violence
and public order was predicted.

Incldent: Disorder High risk event at premises - Males ejected from premises
Date/Time: Saturday 07 December 2019 - 02:20 and assaulted D/S byt throwing chairs. The males
attempted re-entry to the premises and sporadic fights

Niche Ref(s): 43190382039 occurred on the streets. Large scale incident requiring
inc Ref{s): URN 128 and 198 muitiple police officers to manage.

Premises Response: Negative

Page7of7

Page 47



Page 48



Official _r v P l

DECUIENGE OLiziE

Thames Vallay Police

Printed: 07/12/2019 16:46 by P5787

Occurrence: 43180382021
Occurrence deftalls:

Report no.. 43190382021

Occurrence Type: Assault with Injury [8N]

Occurrence time: 07/12/2019 02:20 -

Reported time: 07/12/2019 04:37

Occurrence address: 5-8, FRIAR STREET, READING, BERKSHIRE UK (County: BERKSHIRE,
Nelghbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING)

Clearance status: New
Concluded; No
Concluded date:
Summary: DOORSTAFF AT MATCHBOX ASSAULTED BY CHAIR BEING THROWN AT
HIS HEAD.
Remarks:
Assoclated occurrences:

o Same event/ 43190373700 [O] / Police Operation (Management Occurrence) / 29/11/2019 19:37 / 20191129
19:37:40:920 / BATTLE, LPA: READING) EA Op Nightsafe occurrence for weekend of 28th Nov - 1 Dec 2019
o Same event/ 43180382039 [O] / Public Order [Pub.Ord) / 07/12!20‘I|9 03:45 / 20191207 03:45:00:000 /
gSTTLRE LPA: READING) MATCHBOX AFFRAY- UNCHING MALE ON MARKET
UARE

involved persons:

42) Gender: Male READING,

. H [G3P] / Aggrieved / DOBF m
EADING UK |Counz: BERKSHIRE, N#hbourhood: EA MINSTER/ SGROVE, LPA:

READING) (Land line id&
(Land line
MG 11

cTJccunsnce: 43190382021 Assault with Injury [8N] @07/12/2019 04:37

ask:

Author: #P2527 DAY HUNT, J. Report time: 07/12/2019 05:04
Entered by:  #P2527 DAY HUNT, J. Entered time: 07/12/2019 05:04
Vehicle:

Officer;

Case file:

Remarks:

MG11-B
Occurrence: 43180382021 Assault with Injury [8N] @07/12/2019 04:37

Task:

Author: #P2527 DAY HUNT, J. Report time;  07/12/2019 05:06
Entered by:  #P2527 DAY HUNT, J. Entered time: 07/12/2019 05:05
Vehicle:

Officer:

Case file:

Remarks:

o @rams, =/ Suspect / DOB: wfu) Gender: Male Id #: 2858494
T

° / Suspect/ DOB: (21) Gender: Male Id #: 2858493
e MATCHBOX / Other / 2209126 5-6, FRIAR STREET, READING, BERKSHIRE UK (MATCHBOX) (Counity:

Official

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:48 Computer: W0810299 Page 1 of 3

Page 49



1 A

BERKSHIRE, Neighbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING) (Land line) 01189595278
(Land line) 01 189595278

Invoived addresses:

o 5-6 FRIAR STREET / Occurrence address / READING, UK (County: BERKSHIRE, Neighbourhood: EA
ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING)

Involved comm addresses:

Involved vehicles:

Involved officers:

o Assisting officer / 9 | ADEGBOLA, E. / #58339/ LIVE / Police other / SPECIALS / VOLUNTEERS - READING

LPA/#S8191 DYRELUND, L./ 07/12/2019 1 20191207 ——i—i—
o Officer in case / 9/ DAY HUNT, J. 1 #P2527 | LIVE / Police officer / ICR TEAM 5 - READING LPA/ #P5941

TODD, M. / 07/12/12019 / 20191207 —i~=i=i—

Invoived gmﬂ:
Modus operandi:
Reports:
Occurrence engulry log: Bphar -
Typs Entry time Event time Author Link Task
Investigator 07/12/2019 04:40 92627 DAY HUNT, J. No
summary
DOOR STAFF HAVE BEEN DEALING WITH A DISPUTE WITHIN THE CLUB. TWO GROUPS HAVE BEGUN ARGUING INSIDE AND DOOR
AFF 5 WHO HAVE comuu%eww BACK INTO THE VENUE. = il
DURING THE , NE HAS STARTED THROWING 8 AND ONE OF THESE WR WeF CAUSING PAIN
AND REDDENING TO Hi8 FOREHEAD. R4
‘OFFENDERS INITIALLY STOPPED AND DETAILS TAKEN. ORIGINALLY NO COMPLAINT SO SUSPECTS RELEASED. COMPLAINT MADE

POST RELEASE. Sfmaidsen s
Log entry: FOLLOWING THIS INCIDENT, MASS DISORDER HAS'TAKEN PL‘AOEQN FRIAR mEET NTHWOUS UNKNOWN PEOPLE.

ACTIONS:
A1) MG11 - COMPLETE . % e
CCTV - COMPLETE- SEIZED AND NEEDS TO BE BURNT TO DIsK
A%) VCC- COMPLETE
A4) VI SUS- ONGOING.
Sergeant 07/ 212019 05:26 #95941 TODD, M. No

review
gummmﬂmlﬂmm « {5 this 8 summary only offence? No ifsowhen does the 8month tme limit explre? Date

~3umwydmvosﬂsaﬂon-hmvomneehslmlaw.
lMAWAREOFMSJOwacN!ALSOATrENDED. ON ARRIVAL SUSPECYSMDBEENDETNNEDnOWEVER ON A DEBRIEF OF
mewaeensssormmnaox SRESTMEDTOMETHATTHEREHADBEENAD!SORDERMTHINTHECLUBANDMTSOME
FURNITURE HAD BEEN THROWN, SHE STATED THAT A DOOR HAD SUSTAINED SOME MINOR DAMAGE 8UT ALSO CONFIRMED THAT
THERE HAD BEEN NO ASSAULTS.

ON OF MASS DISORDER STARTING TO DEVELOP OUTSIDE THE CLUBANDASA RESULT OF mlsllMADE THE

THERE WAS A SITUATI
DECISION TO RELEASE THE DETAINED MALES AND THAT THE CRIMINAL DAMAGE COULD BE DEALT WITH SLowW

Logenty:  BEQUESTED THAT THE OFFICERS WITH THE MALES TAKE THEIR FULL DETAILS PRIORTOR
T \WAS ONLY LATER ON AFTER THE MASS DISORDER HAD CALMED SLIGHTLY THAT AN ASSAULT WAS DISCLOSED TO POLICE
STATING THAT A MEMBER OF STAFF HAD BEEN RO RALTED BY THE MALES ORIGINALLY DETAINED 'ON SCENE. THE CCTV FROM
STATSIG IS BELIEVED TO SHOW THE OFFENCE AND GAPTURES THE ASSAULT.

THIS WILL NOW NEED TO BE DEALT WITH SLOW TIME AND NGB TS BEEN FULLY VIEWED mwwnm T0

BE INTERVIEWED. i -
-mmmmmmmumwmmmmosmmm : £330 cetays
in progross: AS SR Asgess lssues of threat, hamn, ammmummmammmp NOT
Kﬂommmncmsaauowmovzomwm-ummmn Daing comacty compieled? Yes

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:46 Computer. WO061 0299 Page2of3

Page 50



Officlal

properly eto) thet needs edding by the OIC? NOT ATT » Check for any and comment where MAIOATT'W

propestylovidence - what neads to be retained, released, retumad as par CPIA obBgationa? N/A » Give claar ivestigation direction & reallstic

MmMMFOCWISGOODTHENPOTENﬂALFORAMGE * i this Is the Initial review creats sn inspector 28 Day Review

Twmmoa-mwmmuouuummummpwmgém any suspects on baii? if o

mmmwmmbmommmmmbm ball with a retum date of

|mmmmmm‘ww mmmsmm»mwnlmmm and
remain necessary

becsuse ENTER DETAILS(Hf not Bven armange variation/cancefiation 83 eppropriate). f an
mbmwmmmmmowmmmdmmwmnmz‘ or if beyond Smos the Mags
Court process.

Officlal

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:46 Computer. W0610299 Page 3 of 3

Page 51



Page 52



Officlal

Version 02¢73eec6d8b930ceed1268d30c0f3798ded7321 (2018/09/08)

LIGErIFEaHES e sy

Thames Valley Police
Printed: 07/12/2019 16:35 by P5787
Occurrence: 43190382019

Occurrence detalls:
Report no.. 43180382019
Occurrence Type: Assault Without tnjury [105.A)
Occurrence time: 07/12/2018 02:20 -

Reported time: 07/12/2019 04:35
Occurrence address: 5-8, FRIAR STREET, READING, BERKSHIRE UK (County: BERKSHIRE,
Neighbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING)

Clearance status: New

Concluded: No

Concluded date:

Summeary: LARGE DISORDER ON FRIAR STREET OUTSIDE MATCHBOX. AGGD HAS

BEEN DE-ARRESTED AND APPROACHED SUSPECT. OFFICER HAS SEEN
THE SUSPECT PUNCH THE AGGD IN THE FACE. MALE MADE OFF AND
THEN ARREST ON CORNER OF KING STREET (JACKSONS CORNER)
Remarks:
Assaoclated occurrences:

o Same event /43190382060 [O] / Assauit Without Injury [105.A] / 07/12/2019 06:41/ 20191207 06:41:14:403 /
BATTLE, LPA: READING) Assault on Market Place, Reading.

o Same event /43190382039 [O] / Public Order [Pub /07/42/2019 03:45 / 20191207 03:45:00:000 /
BATTLE, LPA: READING) MATCHBOX AFFRAY- HING MALE-ON MARKET

SQUARFE

Involved persons:

0_ / Aggrieved / DOB: GEMSMNER(21) Gender: Male Id #: 2858528
® [AT.CL,MN,WE;CUST]/ Arrested; Suspect / DOB.“ (29) Gender: Male .
TILEHURST, READING, READING U (County: BERKSHIRE, Nelghbourhood:
S{\ KENTWOOD / TILEHURST, LPA: READING) ) Id #: 1038051 PNC Id:
(Land line
Arrest :
Occumence: 43190362019 Assault Without Injury {105.A] @07/1 212019 04:35 (5-6, FRIAR STREET, READING,
BERKSHIRE UK (County: BERKSHIRE, Nelghbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING)) (LARGE
DISORDER ON FRIAR STREET QOUTSIDE MATCHBOX. AGGD HAS BEEN DE-ARRESTED AND APP

Task:
Author; #P2871 GREEN, L. Report time: 07/12/2019 03:54
Entered by: #P2671 GREEN, L. Enterod time:  07/12/2019 03:54

Charges: 43180382019 Assault by beating Pending

Livescan LivelD search results: .
Occunence: 43190382019 Assault Without Injury [1 05.A] @07/12/2019 04:35

Task:
Author: #UN ADMINISTRATOR Report time: 07/1 2/2019 11:31

Entered by:  #UN ADMINISTRATOR Entered time: 07/12/2019 11:31
Vehicle:

Officer:

Case file:

Remarks:

Livescan IND search results:

Offictal

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:35 Computer: W0610299 Page 1 of 4

Page 53



Occurrence. 43180382018 Assault Without tnjury {1 05.A] @071 272019 04:35

Task:

Author: #UN ADMINISTRATOR Report time: 07/12/2019 11:31
Entered by: #UN ADMINISTRATOR Entered time: 07/42/2019 11:31
Vehicle:

Officer:

Case file:

Remarks:

Livescan PrintToMark search results:
Occumence: 43180382019 Assault Without Injury [105.A] @07/1 2/2019 04:35

Task:
Author: #UN ADMINISTRATOR Report time: 07/1212019 15:05

Entered by: #UN ADMINISTRATOR Entered time: 07/12/2019 15:05

Vehicle:
Officer:
Case file:
Remarks:

Livescan PrintToMark search results:
Occumrence: 43190382019 Assault Without Injury [105.A] @07/12/2018 04:35

Task:
Author: #UN ADMINISTRATOR Report time: 07/12/2019 15:06

Entered by:  #UN ADMINISTRATOR Entered time: 07/12/2019 15:08
Vehicle:

Officer:

Case file:

Remarks:

Involved addresses:

- I S ot AV,
o 5-6 FRIAR STREET / Occurrence address / READING, UK (County: BERKSHIRE, Neighbourhood: EA
ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING)

Involvad comm addresses:
s e 8T SRS
Inveived vehicles: b ) s
Cogeptis « ' I PYwea]
Involved officers:

RN &

100 - T TR i
o Arresting officer; Assisting officer; Officerin case/9/ HEWITT, S. / #P6592/ Lk/mo‘ﬁce officer _I'IC.R TEAM

5 - SLOUGH LPA / #P2249 PARKER, R./07/12/2019/ 20191207 —i=i=i—
o Arresting officer; Officer in case {9/ OFFORD, S. / #P1814/ LIVE / Police officer / ICR TEAM 1 - READING

LPA / #P6313 COX, N./07/12/2019/ 201 91207 ===~

Involved property:

Modus operandi:

Author. Report time:
Entered by: Entered time:

Reports:
Occurrence enquiry log:

Official

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:35 Computer. W0610299 Page 2 of 4

Page 54



Type

Official

Entry time Event time Author Link Task

07112/2019 04:42 #1814 OFFORD, S. No

Investigator
—getiom
Log entry:

Investigator
action

Log entry:

LARGE DISORDER ON FRIAR STREET OUTSIDE MATCHBOX. AGGD HAS BEEN DE-ARRESTED AND APPROACHED SUSPECT.
OFFICER HAS SEEN THE SUSPECT PUNCH THE AGGD IN THE FACE. MALE MADE OFF AND THEN ARREST ON CORNER OF KING

STREET (JACKSONS CORNER)
07/112/2019 05:34 #P1814 OFFORD, S. No

Investiontion Hendovet Tempiste
1f you wish to refer to an investigation Checkist click here. Ciumstances - Who, Wist, Where, When and Haw LARGE DISORDER RIAR
STREET OUTSIDE MATCHBOX. AGGD (UNKNO' RRESTED AND APPROACHED SUSPECT
omcERHAsseeumswsvecwuucumemeommsmcamemeorrmomeumesrouoomor

STREET (JACKSONS CORNER).
M - Actions complatadfoutstanding. Recording why somathing has NOT been completed is equally as important as recarding whel has

M MALE ARRESTED

A2, - CCTV ENQUIRY AT MATCHBOX - COMPLETED AND IT DOES SHOW VBBLUNGE AT THE MALE AND PUNCH HIM IN THE FACE.
THIS WILL BE WITH THE HANDOVER PACK.

A3, - INTERVIEW SUSPECT - OUTSTANDING

GAEF-OIglEENﬂFY AN%ag&ven - OUTSTANDING. - MALE WAS DEARRESTED BUT DID NOT PASS DETAILS OTHER THAN FIRST NAME
A8, - CHANGE ARREST FROM ASSAULT TO AFFRAY. - THIS IS DUE TO THE INCIDENT WHICH HAS TAKEN PLACE INSIDE MATCHBOX.
ccrv HAs SHOWN THE AGGRIEVED WAS INVOLVED IN A ALTERCATION INSIDE AND THE SUSPECT HAS RETALIATED OUTSIDE.
5{Safaquarding - Document afl actions you have taken to safeguard those at risk. include form complation and relevant referrals -
odem Day Siavery NRM/ MS1, SSA Logs, MASH refemals

Pmserve Scena(s) - 1.S.P /dently. Sscure. Protect
NONE

- Detad eny suspect PNC wamings here
been amrestad? if not, detsll what has baen done to date to locate suspect and any Info which will assist in tocating suspect
1D unknown: Expiain what has boen dona or what is known that wil assist In identification — forensic opportunities, CCTV, description, vehide,

- 1.8.P identlly. Secure. Protact Provide detall, Including what has been seized and GEMS refs. NEW OIC - remember fo
o/ over (o you!

Sergeant
review

Log entry:

Have all relevant cash/properly seizures been made? N/A
Hags the detalned person been made aware of those ems seized? N/A

mmmm A2A3.
TODD

Namo d Sgt informad of handover: PS
07/12/2019 06:13 #P6941 TODD, M. No

Supsryiser Review Tampfale - Is this a summary only offence? YesiNg If so when does the 8month time limit expire? Data
« Summary of investigation ~ initially or since last review:

AS PER OIC UPDATE THIS ASSAULT HAPPENED DURING A LARGE DISORDER QUTSIDE MATCHBOX. PC OFFORD HAS SEEN THE
SUSPECT PUNCH THE AGG'D AND THEN RUN OFF. SUSPECT WAS CHASED AND DETAINED BY PC OFFORD AND ARRESTED.

THE AGG'D DID NOT MAKE HIMSELF KNOWN TO POLICE AND ALTHOUGH HE WAS INITIALLY DETAINED BY POLICE IT IS UNCLEAR
AT THIS TIME IF FULL DETAILS WERE TAKEN BUT THIS WALL BE CHECKED ONCE THAT OFFICER BECOMES FREE FROM
RBH/CUSTODY. IF THE FULL DETAILS WERE NOT TAKEN THIS WOULD HAVE BEEN DUE TO A MASS DISORDER TAKING PLACE AND
OFFICERS BEING NEEDEOD ELSEWHERE. IF NO AGG'D CAN BE LOCATED THEN CONSIDERATION TO DEALING WITH SUSPECT FOR

THERE IS CCTV FROM MATCHBOX THAT DOES SHOW THE INCIDENT. THIS HAS BEEN COPIED AND PROVIDED ON HANDOVER
« Review compisted aclions and sst further actions as required in continuing numerical order: ACTIONS SET BY OIC - id and dea) with
%rwm-mmwmmmummmamwnamumpm NOT KNOWN
OTHER - LOW - Is viclimiwitnass contact beinp comectly “g% AGG'DNOTLOGATEWOMAWE%
m-ummmwv FOR TO CHANGE TO AN AFFRAY (If not, task your box
classification) ¢ Havolhun&:ghm under FinaBisation Misc Tab? Yes ¢ Is thera eny deta$l (persona, vehicies,
property eic) that neods adding by the AG%'DDEI’AII..BIFNHB‘OBTNNED  Check for any tasks and comment where
necessary. A0 ATT » W-mm»umw retumead os per CPIA NiA « Givo clear
direction 8 viow on [ikely disposat: INCIDENT ON CCTV 80 A CHARGE OF TOR Y S8HOULD BE
m-nmumwm:;‘,Manmm nmrwmmmo&-mwm&qmwwm
are . on soenmm- foliowing: Whitst notod that suspect
FEYEET SR e G e b2 et he
required to abide by end | can confirm that bail and WWW necessary because
(¥ not then aengs variafion/cancetiafion as sppropriate). Ifmmﬂlunqumw iniial 26days, ensure the OIC starts the process
of contacting the Supt. by dsy 21, or If beyond Imos the Mags Court process.

investigator 07/12/2019 08:14 #P1814 OFFORD, S. No

Official

Page 55



action

THE AGGRIEVED HAS BEEN INVOLVED IN AN INCIDENT IN MATCHBOX WHERE HE WAS ONE OF 3 SUSPECTS {NVOLVED. AT THE
TIME THIS INFORMATION WAS UNAVAILABLE TO U8 AND DUE TO THE HIGH LEVEL OF DISORDER WE WERE UNABLE TO GET THIS

INFORMATION QUICKLY. OUT OF THE 3 SUSPECTS 2 OF THEM WE HAVE DETAILS FOR. UNFORTUNATELY ‘m’é Aeom%ﬂ’ INTHIS

Log entry: ISTHE‘lMAI.EV\EDONOTHAVETHEDETNLSFOR.ENQUIRIESCANBEMADEATMM'CW
ESTABLISN[FTHEYHAVEHCSOETAMTNROUGHANIDBCANNBMATTHISWEVEDONOTHAVEH!SDETA&SNJTWE

DO KNOW HE WAS THE ONE ASSAULTED IN THIS
investigator 07/1 2/2019 07:00 §P1814 OFFORD, 8. No

action
Log entry: AGGD DETAILS OBTAINED FROM ORIGINAL ARRESTING OFFICER FOR HIM. THESE HAVE LIMITED INFORMATION AS HE IS FROM
. LONDON AND NOT KNOWN TO TVP NICHE. NO ADDRESS OR CONTACT NUMBER AT THIS TIME

LT DY | a .

Official

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 18:35 Computer: W0610289 Page 4 of 4

Page 56



Official

e mpie o Ssinle
Do, A I T o e H R B Y

Version 02673s0¢8430b930¢c0091288d30c8f3798dod 7321 (2018/09/08)

Thames Valley Police
Printed: 07/12/2019 16:30 by P5787
Occurrence: 43190382039

Occurrence detalls:
Report no.: 43180382039
Occurrence Type: Public Order [Pub.Ord}
QOccurmencs time: 07/12/2019 03:45 - 07/12/2019 05:31
Reported time: 07/12/2019 03:45
Occumrence address: MARKET PLACE,HIGH STREET, READING, BERKSHIRE UK (County:
BERKSHIRE, Neighbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING)

Clearance status: New
Concluded: No
Concluded date:
Summary: MATCHBOX AFFRAY- NI PUNCHING MALE ON MARKET
SQUARE
Remarks:
Assoclated occurrences:

 Same event/ 43190382019 [0] / Assault Without Injury [105.A] / 07/12/2019 04:35 / 20191207 04:35:33:107 /
BATTLE, LPA: READING) LARGE DISORDER ON FRIAR STREET OUTSIDE MATCHBOX. AGGD HAS
BEEN DE-ARRESTED AND APPROACHED SUSPECT. OFFICER HAS SEEN THE SUSPECT PUNCH THE
égggElN )THE FACE. MALE MADE OFF AND THEN ARREST ON CORNER OF KING STREET (JACKSONS
R

o Same event/ 43190382021 [0} / Assault with Injury [8N} /07/12/2018 04:37 / 20191207 04:37:09:057 /
BATTLE, LPA: READING) DOORSTAFF AT MATCHBOX ASSAULTED BY CHAIR BEING THROWN AT HIS

o Operation / 43190373700 [O] / Police Operation (Management Occurrence) / 29/11/2019 19:37 / 20191129
19:37:40:920 / BATTLE, LPA: READING) EA Op Nightsafe occurrence for weekend of 29th Nov - 1 Dec 2019

o Same person / 43190382080 [O] / Assault Without Injury [105.A] / 07/12/2019 06:41 / 20191207 06:41:14:403 /
BATTLE, LPA: READING) Assault on Market Place, Reading.

Involved persons:

. %[CUST]IAMM; Suspect / DOB: W (25) Gender: Male (
, WOKINGHAM UK, (County: BERKSHIRE, Neighbourhood: EF EARLEY, LPA:
oy SN SO e A T AR

WOKINGH Mobile) (E-mail) Id#:

(
(Mobile)/ RN,

Arrast record: e ——————

Occumence: 43180382039 Pubfic Order [T'-‘ub.Ond] @07/12/2019 03:45 (MARKET PLACE,HIGH STREET, READING,
BERKSHIRE UK {County: 8 : EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING))
(MATCHBOX AFFRAY- ON MARKET SQUARE)

Task:

Author: #P2671 GREEN, L. Report time; 07/12/2019 08:35

Entered by: #P2671 GREEN, L. Entered time: 07/112/2019 08:35

Charges: 43180382039 Affray 07/12/2019 Pending

"W |, Vi, WE; CUST] / Arrested; Suspect / DOB: "l (29) Gender:
ROAD, TILEHURST, READING, READING UK Aub@sss® (County: OUTOFFORCE, Neighbourhood: OUT OF
FORCE, LPA: OUTOFFORCE) (Lang lipe vl |d #: T

D o

(Land line)

Offictat

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:30 Computer. W0610299 Page 1 of 4

Page 57



(Mobile)=
{Mobite)
Arrest recovd.

3

Ord] @07/12/2019 03:45 €,HIGH ING,

nce: 43180382039 er [Pub.Ord] EET,
BERKSHIRE UK (County: BERKSHIRE, Neighbourhood: EA ABBEY /BATTLE, LPA: READING))
(MATCHBOX AFFRAY- NATHAN FRANCIS PUNCHING MALE ON MARKET SQUARE)

Task:
Author: #P5880 MURRAY, L. Report time: 07/12/2018 04:19
Entered by: #P5889 MURRAY, L. Entered time: 071272019 04:19

Charges: 43180382039 Assault a person thereby occasloning them actual bodily harm 07/12/2019 Pending

Involved addresses.

o MARKET PLACE HIGH STREET/ Occurrence address / READING, UK (County: BERKSHIRE,
Neighbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA. READING)

Involved comm addresses:

Involved vehlicles:

Involved officers:

« Armesting officer; Assisting officer, Officer incase / 9/ HOLDSTOCK, B. / #P8101 | LIVE / Police officer / ICR
TEAM 5 - READING LPA/ #P5941 TODD, M./ 07/42/2018 / 20191207 — ==~

o Assisting officer / 9 / ADEGBOLA, E. / #S8339 / LIVE / Police other / SPECIALS / VOLUNTEERS - READING
LPA / #S8191 DYRELUND, L./ 07/12/2019 / 20191207 1=~

o Attending officer / 9 / WIGLEY, G. | #P0551 / LIVE / Police officer / ICR TEAM 5 - READING LPA/ #P1009
WATKINSON, 1. / 07/12/2019 / 20191207 ———~I-—

« Attending officer/9/ TODD, M. / #P5941 / LIVE/ Police officer / ICR TEAM 5 - READING LPA / #P5325
DAVIS, C. 1 07/12/2019 / 20191207 —~—1—

« Amesting officer; Assisting officer, Attending officer; Officer In case /91 BENNETT, J. /#P3028/ LIVE / Police
officer / ICR TEAM 5 - READING LPA | #P7751 PIKE, C. /07/12/2019/ 20191207 —~i——i—

involved property:

Modus g@mmﬂ:

"4 ' T rrord dgrees o5 U T Y I

BRWeldE

Author: o s Report time: ?;wﬁ
Entered by. Entered time:

Reports:

Occurrence enquiry log:
Type Entry time wEvénttime -

Investigator 07/1 212018 05:42 #P3020 BENNETT, J.
summary

: Author . ™ Link Task

et

- Who, What, Whare, Whan and How OFFICERS HAVE BEEN
T WU&FMW.RW.NWTOOKMCEFWW

THE
RER 2019, OFFICERS HAVE ARRIVED ON SCENE AND ARRESTED MALES FOR ABBUALT.
Y SEE LINKED

OCCURENCE).
MW@DMWMQ.WNGWNTM
NAVEMNWMHMETOCAWHON.OFPICERBMVE

NWINWEF&EWA&;}@F‘ST
THEN OFF FRON SCENE AND BEEN
GTREET, READING. Y ARRESTED FOR ASSAULT ABH.
.MWMmmmemmuManmmuhu

Officlal it

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:30 Computer: W0810299 Page2of4

Page 58
Page 58



Official

As4. CCTV SWEEP FROM THE AREA. CUTSTANDING
AS. FURTHER ARREST FOR AFFRAY- DE ARREST OF ASSAULT. OUTSTANDING : '
AS. INTERVIEW. OUTSTANDING

AT, DQSPOSAI. OFTION- OUTSTANDING
Pragecye Lifa/S: -oocumuneumwunanmm»ummmwmmmmmmmmmmm
a’%Mﬁ.HBA. MMemDaySIave:yNRMIMS‘l SSA Logs, MASH referrals
- o 1
Preserve Scenefs) - . S.P idontlly. Secure. Protect.
NA DEPEY]
Ldantiy ¥ -DetawwmeIblmevldenoehmendwhemwmremmmvebeen oblained. Ensure victims and wilnesses ere
logenty:  \icTIMWAS IDEN'nFIED BUT DID NOT WANT TO ENGAGE WITH THE POLICE. DID NOT PASS ANY DETAILS TO OFFICERS.
mmmmg-AmwwduupammOELanhyusthld{mContadOELW‘
PNC wamings here
1D Jown: mwummmwwmwmwmwmmmmmmmmmsw
IDWMMMMMUWHMMWMMW forensic opportundtiesy CCTV, description, vehicle,
SUSPECTARRESTED- IN EU CUSTODY.
; danca - £.S.P identlly. Secure. Protect. Provide detall, Including whal has bean selzed and GEMS refs. NEWGI@-mmembono
avartoywl
Have afitelavantcash/proparty seizures been made? N/A
Hasmadctalnedpemabmmadeawmowmenemuelze&m
“r . N R R
Record.all nvesﬂgaﬂvohm A1,A2A3. Lol : ¢
w ot mdwmam BN!TODD
Sergeant  07/12/2019 06:52 #P5041 TODD, M. No .
review L
Supervisor Revigw Templats + Is this @ summary only offence? No if s0 when does the 8manth time limit expire? Date
. §umma4y of investigation — initiaily or since last review: .
ACTIONS ALREADY DETAILED BY OIC.
-WMM&GNWM&WMWMMNPSROMUWW identtly and des! with
Log entry: delays in AID ATT » Assess {ssuas of threat, harm, opportuntly of risk at start of invesSigation or or since tast reviaw: SUS IS A KNOWN
: PROUIFL vnon.mrorrawenmoaaeumvcwseslssussmm MED!UM « {3 victimwitness contact being comectly
complated? AGB‘DNOT!DENT!FIEDANDNOTENGAGINO nter commanta via « 8 the crime classiication appropriate? Yas (
not, task your ACR un box o smend cassificetion) « Have the appropriate quail mmmubcrmm ts there any
mwmpmummmmmwmmmuonw Muwm%mmmm
necassasy. AIO ATT » Review property/evidence — whai needs to be retained, relsesed, retumed a3 per ? N/A « Givo clsar
WM!WMNMMWWWM&WYWC « f this is the initia) review
meammﬂmkmmo&-mwwwnmmmmmm .
manyunpsannhd?tleommmm this casa | have noted that suspect s
with a retum date of 1 have reviawsd both the reason for ball and tha bail condittons that sha ls mwumw
and | can conttm thet ball and romaln Jusiifisbia, proportionsie & & necessary because ENTER DETAILG( not
variation/cancefiation 88 approprists). nmmnmwmwmmmmmmmumm
Supt. by day 21, auwmmmmm
Investigator 07/12/2019 07:42 #P2527 DAY HUNT, J. No
action
ET CCTV booked into GEMS
: EA006087692/19
Log entry: EA00897694/18
NEITHER HAVE WORKING COPIES AS THEY ARE BOTH JUS LONG VIEWS OF THE CROWD AND DONT PROVIDE ANYTGHING WE
DONT ALREADY MAVE.
Sergeant  07/12/2018 16:.05 #P8348 CAMERON, P. No
review

Aggd: not willing to provide a statement

‘agaln)

Official

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:30 Computer: W0610299 Page 30f4

P e

Page 59



Log entry:

URN: 230 07/12/2019
ET calied up to say fight outside Snappy Snaps at 03:11. Lone famale against 10 males. Males hokiing people back. Group of around 30 ~

mlewhomneduhmenmmmmwmm

Circe:
Lamedlsordetlnlownwﬂhmrlﬂplearrum coming from Matchbox

WMMW
morndaeaﬂﬁunmmmuslm onmedameﬂoor.Smmmaloswempushedwmldebsbpmeﬂghﬂnabutmey

cffences had besn committad.
hmm.mwmoﬂnomMsomamed.ome

From P8 Todd:
Mamusauwmnwmwmmmmmmmmm.smmsummmwwm
mwmmmwm.Pstwmmmeomwm:mmmmm
mmmm«”wmmmwmmmwwmmnnmmmuommm

and just went back to London.
From PC Bonnett
Asvived at Matchbox and saw several mmmumaummwambmmmmwm
The pointed out and PSToﬁmdMMmmwmmmWhmwm

ha was deamested.

ran Market mmmmwmmmn.Memmuwmmm
ﬁ l—mmmwmwmmmum.mwmrm

tmmmmammmmmmwmmmmwammmmo:-mwmlmedawg

commen!
From PC Holdstoek
mnmwmmmmmmwmwmm . Stated he lived (n London
mmmmmmmmmWMMWW mmmmo&wmmm
“Mnmumwmmy Pcummmmmwm him and was swinginp
ma‘mmmmwmmmmmmmmnmmmm awsy
wWWM'ﬁdewmhwwmmbnmwmm handcuffod. G was
arrestad on suspicion of essault

manwmwnemmnmemmmam

m-muacmmmwmwwmwwmmummmummammmm

have (from officer viewing). (possibly shows thrown
mucmmmmmmm%m%nmm-mammm.mwwm*pumam.

A1, STATEMENT FROM PC BENNETT. COMPLETE (WITNESSED ASSAULT)
A2. STATEMENT FROM PS TODD COMPELTE. (WITNESSED ASSUALT)
A3, BWV FROM PC BENNETT BAVED AS EVIDENTIAL. ALTHOUGH THIS DOES NOT WITNESS THE ASSAULT.

A4, CCTV SWEEP FROM THE AREA. OUTSTANDING
AS FURTHER ARREST FOR AFFRAY. DE ARREST OF ASSAULT. OUTSTANDING

A8, INTERVIEW. OUTSTANDING
A7. DISPOSAL OPTION- CUTSTANDING
sseisting

el
-k
&

Officlal

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:30 Computer. W0610299 Page 4 of 4

Page 60



Officlal

7 v A
R e T e

" Version 02cT3eec8d8b930co0d1268d30ca1798dedTS 2 (20TBIUSIOE)

Thames Valley Police

Printed; 07/12/2049 46:30 by P5787

Occurrence: 43190382060
Occurrence detalls:

Report no.: 43190382060

Occurrence Type: Assault Without injury [105.A]

Occurrence time: 07/12/2019 02:24 -

Reported time: 07/12/20190 06:41

Occumence address: MARKET PLACE,BUTTER MARKET, READING, BERKSHIRE UK (County:
BERKSHIRE, Neighbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING)

Clearance status: New
Concluded: No
Conciuded date:
Summary: Assault on Market Place, Reading.
Remarks:
Assoclated occurrences:

¢ Same event/ 43190382019 [O] / Assauit Without Injury [105.A] 107/12/2019 04:35 / 20191207 04:35:33:107 /
BATTLE, LPA: READING) LARGE DISORDER ON FRIAR STREET OUTSIDE MATCHBOX. AGGD HAS
BEEN DE-ARRESTED AND APPROACHED SUSPECT. OFFICER HAS SEEN THE SUSPECT PUNCH THE
/c\gggér;)'rHE FACE. MALE MADE OFF AND THEN ARREST ON CORNER OF KING STREET (JACKSONS

¢ Same person / 43190382039 {O} / Public Order [Pub.Ord] / 07/12/2019 03:45 / 20191207 03:45:00:000 /
BATTLE, LPA: READING) MATCHBOX AFFRAY- NATHAN FRANCIS PUNCHING MALE ON MARKET

SQUARE
e Assoclate /4 00 [O] / Police Uperation (Managemnent OCCUITence) 1 297 1 U 19 19:07 1 201911 :
19:37:40:920 / BATTLE, LPA: READING) EA Op Nightsafe occurrence for weekend of 29th Nov - 1 Dec 2019

.'Y. =

involved persons:

« e, SEEN / Aggrieved / DOB: SQENENIRP (21) Gender: Male Id #: 2858642

. ﬁmlcusn | Arrested; Suspect/ DOB: WIS (25) Gender: Male o,
EARLEY, WOKINGHAM U (County: BERKSHIRE, Neighbourhood: EF EARLEY, LPA:

E-mall) Id # @IPNC 1d:

Occumence: 43190382080 Assault Without Injury [105.A] @07/12/2019 08:41 (MARKET PLACE,BUTTER MARKET,
READING, BERKSHIRE UK (County: BERKSHIRE, Nelghbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA:

READING)) (Assault on Market Place, Reading.)

Task:

Author; #P2671 GREEN, L. Report time: ~ 07/12/12018 08:17
Entered by: #P2671 GREEN, L. Entered time: 0711212019 06:17
Charges: 43180382060 Assault by beating 07/12/2019 Pending

Involved addresses:

« MARKET PLACE,BUTTER MARKET / Occumence address / READING, UK (County: BERKSHIRE,
Neighbourhood: EA ABBEY / BATTLE, LPA: READING)

Involved comm addresses:

Officlal

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:30 Computer. WOB10299 Paga Torz

Page 61



Involved vehicles:

Involved officers:

o Arresting officer; Assisting officer; Officer in case/9/ HOLDSTOCK, B. / #P6101/ LIVE / Police officer / ICR
TEAM 5 - READING LPA / #P5941 TODD, M. / 07/112/2019/ 20191207 ===t

Involved property.
Modus operandl:
Reports:
Occurrence enquiry log: _
Type Entry time Event time Author Link Task
Investigator  07/12/2019 08:10 #P8101 HOLDSTOCK, B. No
summary
Officar witnass AGGD getting punched. SUS ran swmdmined by officer on MARKET PLACE. Arrasted for assault and affray. Non-
wmm.aodywombnmwhaoﬂhmu ncapmmpundnbutahowsmmtccwmadlsmneeeove:spuna\.
Log entry: Officers MO11 attached.
Somy for smafi update, fong ehift and off late.
Sergeant 07/12/2019 08:15 #P1113 REES, M. No
revisw
| have read the OEL
|Wmmammmmmm1damwwmmmmm lsrge scale disorder naarby.
mcmotmuuoemmmmmmmmemummmmmmmmmummmum
ummmmbvmbmmam moming, and partly through cultural @ifferences. No account has been given. The
mqumamwmwmmmmmmanmmm.
Log entry: A1 Arvest - done
A2. Victim statement - Not supporting
A3. CCTV - done nesds reviewing to see whatis captured
A4. Officer statement - done
2!5 to keep this investigation reslistic. if the victim is not supporting an aflegation of assault, consider flfing the assault and progressing public
er
b 4 e ‘o §e
i LA s e b K AR TR L
.':’-'ohv <. ,,»’* *
S ey W oengle s Y gy §orr e
Re Bt vEmenc Cw “
P, SR TET S
‘ﬂ" . \'tsq .
Official

Printed by: P5787 Date: 07/12/2019 16:30 Computer: W0610299 Page 2 of 2

Page 62



TVP3..
MGITH-WITNESS-STATEMENT

Criminal Prc;céd:re Rules, r 27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B
Occurrence Number: | 43190382060 URN:
Statemephpf . | HOLDSTOCK, BEN .
Age: T Occupation: = 1 Police officer

This statement is true to the best of my knowledge and bellef and | make it lc.?owlng that, if it i§ tendered in evidence,
I shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully ‘stated in it, anything which'l know to be false, or do not believe to

be true.

This statement relates to an Incident which occurred on FRIAR STREET, READING at around 02:15 on SATURDAY
7TH DECEMBER 2019.

Ipr . oy
| any the above officer based at Reading Police Station of Thames Valley Police. | was in full uniform with the call
sign EQ305 attached to an operation in the town centre which aims to reduce drink related crime and disorder.

I attended an incident on FRIAR STREET following reports of a fight at MATCHBOX where some IC3 males were
fighting. | was in a van with PC2527 DAY-HUNT and PS5941 TODD. We arrived on scene and | could see an IC3
male leaving the club with a white t-shirt which was ripped. | had a suspicion that he was involved in a fight so PS
TODD and | took hold of hint" 34 pldced him In handcuffs. He would not tell me where his ID was so | arrestéd hivi
on suspicion of assault in order to ascertain his name. | found his 1D so | now know him to b

ZBIEENR. He told me he lived in London and had been punched inside MATCHBOX so he was essentially a
victim. Due to this, 1 took him out of handcuffs and de-arrested him. He was agitated throughout the engagement

[ " . 0.0 3 ]

towards other males and there was clearly going to be some sort of disorder if they made contact so e and PC
DAY-HUNT putled him back and got in the way of SEIlI? and a group so no offences could occur.

@REER kept going back and forth and | was repeatedly telling him that | was trying to help him and it was not
worth it to engage with them. However, he went over to one male who he seemed to have a good relationship
with. They were talking, but then the next thing | heard a smack and saw a a male punch SN to the face. |
cannot recall any of this mans description because it happened so quick but PC OFFORD was on scene and he gave
chase on foot and | heard on the radio that he was detained and arrested. PC DAY-HUNT and | pulled back
g again to try and protect him from further assaults. A few minutes went by where it seems to had calmed
down but Wil was still agitated. (IR was talking to another male who was calling him T which |
presumed was short for ~ so again | thought they knew each other. They began to have a conversation and
a small group formed in the road of FRIAR STREET outside MATCHBOX.

I saw one male | knew from previous dealings as being ‘_ In the group and was present on the road.
I then looked at that group and saw another punch from someone onto (IlJil#- | heard a clear smack again and
saw an arm fling from one male and hitting= on the face. The suspect ran away up towards MARKET
PLACE. | now know this male to be . | gave chase on foot and followed him. He was looking
behind him and was slowing down and seemed like he was stumbling over. As | was getting closer my intention
was to kick one of his ankles so he tripped up and fell on the floor so it could mean | could safely detain him.
When | got in range of the trip, the male slowed down which meant | was by his side instead. Due to the speed |
was running, | tried to grab him by the shoulders and drag him down to the floor by | didn't get a good grip of him
so | lost my grip and fell over onto my left side and spun over and got back up on my feet immediately. | looked up
and saw igacontinuing running down MARKET PLACE towards TESCO EXPRESS. SmEaagythen overtook me
because | fell over and was chasing@lllll. He was trying to swing punches as he was running to knock him over
but was missing. | would say from his behaviour, WM wanted to have a fight that night and would go for

anyone he could. As | was still chasing W, e started to fall over and ended up on s knees. S was —

then over him trying to hit him, | ran over and gave (Wl a shove as | was running and ended up on top of the

Page 10f2
Page 63



st

suspect and (RN fell forwards. | then had the other malein2 headlock with my left arm and he was on his
bum with his upper body against me and his legs on the floor. A different male then randomly came up to me and
| heard him say "GET THE FUCK OFF HIS NECK". He then tried to grab me and pull me off of Y. { was trying to
shove him back using one arm whilst shouting "GET OFF ME". t was very close to pressing my emergency button as
| felt at any point, the other male could have punched me or anything and | would have been helpless. Butl
glimpsed up and saw PC DAY-HUNT and PS TODD running over. The other male then stopped grabbing me buti
could not see where he went because | was focussing on NN Also, as | looked up | saw

running away and officers chasing him. YEEEBEIP was trying to get up and managed to get to his feet. ) got up and
grabbed the top of MR Jacket and head and was trying to pull him back down. PS TODD came over and
assisted me and | placed handcuffs on WEA At 02:24 | arrested S on suspicion of assault and cautioned
him. A few minutes went by and due to SN rot being cooperative with officers, at 02:29 | further arrested
RAHIM! on suspicion of affray. Following being cautioned, A said "1 DIDNT DO ANYTHING WRONG, THE GUY
SWUNG FOR ME SO | DUCKED AND HIT HIM, SELF DEFENCE INIT". Or something similar to that. This was not noted
or signed in my PNB due to the speed of everything that was happening.

When everything slowed down, | could see blood dripping from“ head. | looked at his head using my
torch and could see a cut but could not see it very well because of his hair and the bad lighting. Suddenly,

then said he felt sick so | sat him down in a bus stop. He began to be sick in the bus stop. | called up over my radio
for an ambulance to come and check him over. PC DAY-HUNT put a dressing on his head so stop the bleeding. My
phone then rang and it was someone from the RBH to triage the call. They said an ambutance would not be
coming but they advised to go to A&E within the hour. A unit arrived to transport him and we took him to A&E at
the RBH. We arrived at the hospital at around 03:15 and was booked in. We then waited for around 2 hours where
MBS ad 5 stitches in his head. We finally arrived at custody at 06:08 and”detention was authorised.

-

¢ e o T
This is all the dealings | had with this incident. This statement contains my original notes and was completed at. .
08:09 on 07/12/19.

Signature of Witness Signature Witnessed By
Name: #P6101 HOLDSTOCK, B. Name: (AR A
Signed Time: | 07/12/2019 08:09 Signed Time:
L id [}
"w . S
o ——frerraeeed
oty
sy F
ilr‘“"""’ z
5, “r *“'“s
5 wy 08 A
Y [ ¢ st
P‘n'F &
(A
(iepd o6 ,-.! ’ ".".'u;
s
page 2 of 2

Page 64



M

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, 5.9; Magistrates' Courts Act 1980, s.58

Occurrence Number: | 43190382019 URN:
Statement of: OFFORD, SAMUEL
Age: | Occupation: | Police officer

This statement is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if itis tendered in evidence,
{ shall be llable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which ! know to be false, or do not believe to

be true.

| am the above mentioned person and | am making this statement in relation to an assault in which t have
witnessed take place on the 07/12/2019 at roughly 0220hrs on FRIAR STREET, READING just outside the venue
MATCHBOX. The suspect involved is a male | now know to be called

On the above date | was working out of READING POLICE STATION under the call sign of EQ309 in full uniform. 1
was attached to Operation NIGHTSAFE which is an operation to police the night time economy is READING town

centre.

At roughly 0215hrs we have attended MATCHBOX due to a transmission over a town radlo stating a large disorder
at the venue. | had been dealing with an incident at WALKABOUT, READING which Is on the same road and | have
made my way towards MATCHBOX. When 1 arrived 3 males were detained in handcuffs at that time and | went
over to my colleague P6101 HOLDSTOCK who had one of the males detained. Shortly after all three males were
taken out of handcuffs due to no offences being confirmed or their involvement in any offence at that time.

The male which P6101 had was an IC3 male roughly 5ft11-6ft tall and of a slim build. He had short dark nairand——————
was wearing a white t-shirt. When he was taken out of handcuffs he has walked towards a small crowd of people,
| have been watching him and he approached (EEEER. All of a sudden | have seen WSS punch this male once
in the face. P6101 has grabbed hold of the male who had been punched as it appeared he was going to go back
and assault WU retaliation. | have then approached WElESPhowever he began to make off from me. He
has run away from MATCHBOX and towards the direction of MARKET PLACE, he has run down a path onto
MARKET PLACE and down towards the junction of KINGS STREET AND KINGS ROAD. PS5941 TOOD has called up
over the radio that | was making aftera male and for other officers to assist. As | was running towards the junction
parked opposite on DUKE STREET. | have seen these officers from a distance and they have seen SRR running
away from me. A few officers have gone to cut off Wil and they grabbed hold of WILSON just outside
JACKSONS CORNER on the corner of KINGS ROAD and MARKET PLACE junction. Seconds later | have caught up
with - and the other officers and at this point at 0223hrs | have arrested Wil for the above offence. |
have then cautioned WS in which he made no reply to. A colleague of mine had placed WILSON in handcuffs
in the rear back to back position and under Section 32 of the Police and Criminal Evidence Act 1984 | have
searched SHNEER 1t was from this search that | have seen the 1D of - Nothing of note found on him. Other
officers have then transported Wigiiilh to LODDON VALLEY custody.

i would describeg as an IC3 male, roughly 6ft3-4 tall and of a slim build. He had medium jength black hair
in cornrows. He was wearing a camouflage jacket and dark jeans. The whole length of the observation Jasted
roughly 3 minutes. When the assault took place | was roughly 6ft away, it was dark at night however the street
was very well lit and it was clear to see what was happening. My observation was not hindered. | have never seen
before however if | saw him again | would recognise him. 1 was able to identify the male once he was

placed in handcuffs and this was from a search finding his ID.

page1of2
Page 65



Signature of Witness Signature Witnessed By
Name: #P1814 OFFORD, S. Name:
Signed Time: | 07/12/2019 05:30 Signed Time:
e 1‘;} 1;.‘\ i
f, -.-41-4 “ crigy t f
= h--.f,-" + ¥,
¢ sorane
AR
'J" Lty
. . hmm
Aieray,
v
’pk' «, .
(1A !A'»'f
sty
Pendivd
Page 2 of 2

Page 66



Witness Statement Page 1 0f 2
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 16.2; Criminal Ju'altl';e Ac?na;?ss
URN:
Statementof: . TITTD
Agpo if under 18 (if over insert “over 187): Over 18 Occupation: SECURITY GUARD

This statement (consisting of ... ... - B Pages(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belisf and | make it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which | know to be
false, or do not belisve to be true.

Signature: Q 03:32 Date: 07/12/2019

This statement is written in relation to an assault to which | was a victim off on Saturday 07*"
DECEMBER 2019 in the early hours.

| was working my shift as a security guard at MATCHBOX CLUB, FRIAR STREET, READING. i have
worked at MATCHBOX on and off for approximately 2-3 years. My duties whilst at MATCHBOX is
usually being the second head door man. This role entails dealing with members of the public wanting to
come into the venue aswell as dealing with customer complaints and at times, ejecting these people
following disputes or fights within the club.

On this day | was working | was working at 2200 hours, from 06" DECEMBER through till 0300 hours. At
approadin: g « an tha frant door of MATCHBOX. | heard a call for assistance from my

TV

colleagues on the main dance fioor following a dispute between people on the dance floor. | ranround
onto the dance fioor but could see that the staff had already started to move a few mates off to the front
door.

The few males who had been involved were spoken to by other door staff. An arguments started
between these 3 males and another group. All of a sudden a fight started between the two groups.

All door staff tried to push the 3 males out of the club to keep the two groups apart. However when the
two groups were separated the 3 males started to try and get back into MATCHBOX.

At some point, chairs started to be thrown. | don't know who threw them at me but | managed to catch
one. However more chairs were being thrown and one hit me on the front of my forehead to the right
side. This instantly hurt and sent my eyes black for a few brief seconds | couldn’t see anything. After a
few seconds my sight came back to me and | could see that the two groups were still trying to fight.

The police were called and the 3 males were taken away from the premises. A short while later there
was further disorder outside of MATCHBOX between numerous different people.

| don't know who threw the chair at me but the 3 males were the main inttiators in the issues and if they
had just left, it would have been resolved a lot easier.

One of these males was skinny, 176 cm in height, he was black in ethnicity. He was wearing a white shirt
with a manbag strapped across his chest. He had very short hair and wore blue jeans.

»

3

e
K
3
Y

sw""! Signature Witnessed by: 1R Ak —

082017

Page 67



Witness Statement MG11
Page 2 of 2

Continuation of Statement of _—

The second male was short with a beard, mixed race In ethnicity. He wore black trousers, black jacket
& e e

and jeans.

The third person was a white male wearing black jacket, jeans, white in ethnicity and approximately 56

in height.

| have not met any of the above 3 people and | cannot describe them in any further detail as | was
shocked from being hit over the head. 1 believe that one of these three may have thrown the chair at me
and they had no permission to do so. It was dark in the club but | am sure that the incident was captured
on CCTV. | have no reason to remember these males and they caused most of the issues within the club

tonight.
| produce CCTV footage from the venue as WP CCTV FOOTAGE MATCHBOX.

+=

P
Signature: ' Signature Witnessed by: ﬁﬁ;;\ﬁ 5!‘”#"

05/2017

Page 68




T

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, 5.9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.58

Occurrence Number: | 43190382039 URN:
Statement of: TODD, MELANIE
Age: l Occupation: I Police officer

This statement is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, i itis tendered in evidence,
| shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to

be true.

| am PS 5941 Melanie Todd currently attached to Team S ICR at Reading Police Station.

On Friday 6th December 2019 | was on duty in uniform and under callsign EAS45. On this day | was out on
Operation Nightsafe In Reading town centre in a Movano Van.

Following an incident of disorder at Matchbox Nightclub on Friar Street males made off from us and ran towards
Market Place, Reading. Several officers, including myself, made our way to Market Place and when | arrived on
scene | saw several IC3 males having an altercation by the bus stop near to the post office.

As | was running towards the group | saw a male that | know to be razzEs N dobengiam® swing a single

punch towards a male’s face. This punch connected and the aggrieved party fell to the floor. Sy then ran

off and was detained a short time later by other officers. | did not see IS again. The punch was made with
s right closed fist which connected with the left side of the agg'ds face. | did not see any visible injury.

| have knowledge of Wl from prior dealings with him in the town centre and the fact that he was also
pointed out to me prior to the incident whilst we were still outside Matchbox.

| immediately checked on the welfare of the male that had been hit and he stated that he was OK. He refused to
give me any details and would not engage at all. The agg'd and his friends stated that they would be returning to

London and did not want to get involved any further.

{ belleved that NESERNS was arrested for Affray (although | was later informed that this was actually Assault) and
from what | saw of his behaviour outside Matchbox and then in Market Place | can confirm that his behaviour
i iour would have caused a member of public to fear for thelr

At that coutd

safety. At the time of the incident there
easily have felt threatened or put in fear by the incident.

Page 1 0f 2
Page 69



Signature Witnessed By

Signature of Witness
Name: #P5941 TODD, M. Name:
Signed Time: | 07/12/2019 06:23 Signed Time:
Trawrn N f!_..." :'_:’,,.":: "

Bioweoay w
Y
p TR

Page 70

shu,.‘.; . 'I_,

Page 2 0f2



OFFICIAL MG11

— WITNESS-STATEMENT

(Criminal Procedure Rules 2015 R16.2, Criminal Justice Act 1987 89, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980 S5B)
URN B ‘

Statement of JOSHUA BENNETT o
Age if under 18 Over 18 Occupation | POLICE CONSTABLE 3029

This statement (consisting of 2 page(s)) is true to the best of my knowledge and bellef and | make it Knowing that, if
it is tendered In evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated ln lt, anylhlng which | know to be false,

or do not befieve to be true.

Signature JOSHUA BENNETT  ~ ~° Dats | 0711212019

This statement is in relation to a disorder that took place at MATCHBOX.

On Saturday 7* December 2019. | was on duty in full uniform in amarked police van attached with
OPERATION NIGHTSAFE. At approximately 0200 hrs Echo Tango, Thames valley polices CCTV operator
has transmitted on the radio that there was a fight in progress at the MATCHBOX on FRIAR STREET in
READING. | would suggest that this took place at 0200 hrs.

We have arrived at the MATCHBOX venue to which | have seen multiple of my colleagues detaining IC3

males. | have made contact with a member of doorstaff who has stated that a male from across the road has
assaulted him. | have travelled across the road to arrest this male. | have brought him across the road to
ascertain more details of what has happened. Doorstaff have identified that this male was responsible for
trouble inside the venue. Due to the details passed to me | have initially arrested this male, know known to be

Guanmi;, @@P=iilh. @PEENY» This male | can describe as an IC1 male, 5ft 9 inches tall, tanned,

Wearing all black, specifically a black puffer style jacket.

People from inside MATCHBOX have then started to leave the building. A large crowd has started to form
around us. | would say that there was approximately around 20-30 people around us. All of these males
where in an aggressive state. | strongly believe this to because of the altercation inside the Venue. PS 5941
TODD has stated to myself that there was no complaint with regards to @I . | have de-arested

Y at 02:15 hrs on FRIAR STREET.

I have then seen multiple of my colleagues running towards MARKET SQUARE. | have also heard an
assistance shout from an officer who was perusing this males towards MARKET SQUARE. | have taken
chase and have arrived outside TESCO on MARKET SQUAR. | have seen a male | know to be @G
MRS there. | know SUREIP, | have dealt with him on several occasions and am able to identify him. |
describedINNNP as a Mixed race male, Very tall- around 6ft 6-8 inches tall. Wearing a White T-Shirt and

Signature: JOSHUA BENNETT Signature Witnessed by:  N/A
Page 71

Panns 1 nf ?



VVILIITDD viatwiirvere

[ Continuation of Statement of [JOSHUA BENNETT 1
~ould describe the aggrieved as an IC3 male, | cannot describe him any further. (A has then made off

on towards GUN STREET. | have ran towards DUKE STREET and onto THORNE LANE to cut him off. { have
then met with (JESNN as he was heading towards me.

| have instantly shouted at— “PUT YOUR HANDS BEHIND YOUR BACK". | have said this multiple
times to which he has not done so” is a very tall, very well built male. Much taller and larger than
myself. | deem “o be a threat to me. | have also witnessed (@S punch a male in the face with
ferocity. | have then sprayed@uuilll¥ in the face with a long continuous burst to stop him from escaping,
assaulting myself and other officers. | have then arrestedwor ASSAULT at 02:20 hrs on DUKE

STREET. | have cautioned (umme QSRS has stated after arrest that he did punch the male to the face
pbut only because the male pulled a knife on him. This will be covered on my bodyworn video camera.

A marked police vehicle has then picked mp to transport him to LODDON VALLEY CUSTODY.

aeafdl . SRERe. s s it

s ™

Signature Witnessed by:  N/A

Signature:

page 2of 2

Page 72



BUSINESS PLAN

5-6 Friar St, Reading RG1 1DB
The Corner House -

01.12.2019

Page 73




CONTENTS

11.

12.

13.
14.

16.
17.

Overview

Current Situation
Business Description

Values

Business Goals
Market analysis

Market Consumer

Size and Growth

Reading

Specialist Vs Generalist
Competitors and positioning

Competitive Sat

Competitive Advantage

Sources of Business
Business Audit - SWOT
Business strategy

Objectives

Strategles:

Product, Revenue, Pricing, Location
Marketing

Objectives

Strategy

Audience and Segmentation

Communications Strategy
Operations

Objectives

Strategy

Tralning

Kitchen

Bar/ Restaurant

Food Suppliers

Cash & Stock Reconciliation

Regulations
Risk analysis
Organisation Structure

Management Team

Page 74



—  OVERVIEW

The Corner House will be a large, city centre bar and games room in a fantastic
location in Reading. The bar will feature a roof terrace, purpose built games
room and seating for over 200 customers.

CURRENT SITUATION

Name Status Corner House Ale & Cider
Investments Limited

Big Smoke Pub Co. is run by successful operators Richard Craig and James Morgan which turned
over £2 million in 2018. Richard and James also own Big Smoke Brew Co. Ltd which has just raised

£800k to fund a planned expansion.

Page 75



BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

VALUES

NHY? Corner House exists to bring people together.

Corner House is an independent pub group, brewery and

NHAT?
distillery passionate about good beer and friendly service.

HOW? Corner House prides itself on offering a premium experience in
comfortable surroundings with an enticing range of drinks from

independent and local suppliers.

WHO? Corner House's dynamic and passionate company is made up of
a diverse community of likeminded individuals who are friendly,
humble and hard working. They are committed to organically
growing their business to serve their local communities
and continue to build experiences for their customers.

VALVES QUALITY - Being the best that we can be
INCLUSIVE - Here for all to enjoy

FUN - It is beer and games after all!

BUSINESS GOALS

Launch and grow Corner House to an annual turnover of £1.2m.

Page 76



—MARKET ANALYSIS

In spite of the pressures on consumers’ discretionary spending caused by the economic downturn,
drinking & dining out remain the most popular target for spending extra money. However,
while a large number of consumers report eating out for a meal in a restaurant at least once a

fortnight, spend per meal remains under pressure.

THE MARKET

SIZE AND GROWTH READING SPECIALIST VS
GENERALIST

The eating out and drinking The food and drink industry Many successful launches
marketplace is mature and has been largely resilient to the continue to take place. it's
competitive. In many ways, the economic slowdown. Affluent  possible to argue that those
focus is now on gaining market consumers leading busy that succeed are seen as
atherthan attemptin festylas have ma ga jatists in o-particular §

expand the ctgory. demand for a varied market.

Page 77



COMPETITORS
& POSITIONING

THE COMPETITIVE SET

O'neills - Enormous and busy pub featuring live music on weekends.
Yates’ - Busy city centre bar with standard offer.
The Monk's Retreat - Standard Stonegate pub with basic food and drink offer.

COMPETITVE ADVANTAGE

- Specialist beer proposition.
- Quality food offering.
- Unique games offering

- Independent feel.

SOURCES OF BUSINESS

Our customers tend to be beer enthusiasts, local workers, students and those looking for a

midrange product/experience.

Page 78






BUSINESS AUDIT
- SWOT

BUSINESS AREA STRENGTH WEAKNESS
INDUSTRY - Reading has remained - Economic climate worsening
remarkably resilient to - Potential knock on effect of Brexit
economic climate squeezing spends
MARKET - Drinking/eating out remains 2 - Low consumer understanding of
priority for consumer discretionary quality beer offer
spends
- $pend on eating/dining out per
occasion remains strong amongst
Incals
- Consumers looking for value in
price and experience, not lowest
price
COMPETITIVE SET - Beer beginning to come backinto - Many pubs in the area
fashion
- Explosion in microbrewing and
interest in beer in UK
- Games, community focus and
events
SEASONS/WEATHER - Opportunity for new news, new - Redevelopment of outside space
menu etc... crucial. Good weather equals poor
trade if poorly utilised outside
space.
EMPLOYMENT MARKET - Local market provides - Low levels of loyalty in the industry

high volume of potential candidates

Page 80



- BUSINESS STRATEGIES

BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

¢ Annual turnover of £1.2m plus
o Staff cost base of 30% of revenue or less

e Supplier cost base 35% or less

BUSINESS STRATEGIES

Over-arching strategy is to run a multiple site operation under the Big Smoke brand.

PRODUCT  SALES

REVENUE STREAMS

* Ensure that beer is served correctly with an emphasis
on cellar techniques and beer service. Food is freshly
prepared on site using highest quality ingredients.

» On-site purpose built games room

PRICING

« The bar operates all day serving a great selection of keg
beers, wines and spirits.

¢ A lunch menu incorporating lighter options offered from
midday until Spm.

« Small plates are avallable to encourage sharing and for
those drinking

o Full menu available all day

LOCATION

* We have developed long term supplier relationships that
guarantee reliability and value allowing us to deliver a
minimum mark up of 65% on our food and drink cost
base.

e Location is in Reading, this ensures multiple audience
sources of business.

« The feel of the space is relaxed enough to be appealing
at lunchtime and early evening but can be made
intimate for evening & dinner trade.

Page 81



"800 @ 000 00 00806 @) .
o ad ww ¢ W [ J
"‘.{}.';‘,« g._;‘ 3 - .:' ; ! *' ) 3

R ' XL U

,‘} } i A':




YEAR 2 OBJECTIVES

¢ Build The Corner House to annual turnover of £1.5m

« Establish the bar as a beer specialist in the market with great quality food

MARKETING STRATEGY & CHANNEL MIX |

We have pursued a penetration strategy which is broken into three areas:

* Announcement Digital marketing strategy complemented by social media plan accross
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram. Print in trade titles. PR campaign targeting
trade publications (print and online), local newspapers and glossy magazines.

e_Education Digital & social focussed, targeting food & drink reviewers
& bloggers, existing customers.

¢ Loyalty Social & on site.

AUDIENCE

NEW CUSTOMERS

Young professionals in the area, local businesses, local residents, those prepared to travel for a
specialist experience, friends or family of regular customers.

COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY

We have pursued a penetration strategy which is broken into three areas:

* Role Create an understanding that we deliver a unique food & drink
experience and unrivalled atmosphere

e Reason to believe Origins, ethics & flavour of products. Atmosphere & service

s Takeout We are a bar that people feel that they need to visit

Page 83



OPERATIONS

YEAR 1 OPERATIONAL OBJECTIVES

o Establish a loyal, fully operational team across all business functions and encourage

long term commitment

o Establish a supplier network and manage cost of goods at 30% of sales price

OPERATIONS STRATEGIES

TEAM

o Maximise full time staff and minimise part time so that we create strong team dynamics

 Wherever possible we will promote internally

¢ We would like to ensure team events take place each year and where possible develop a
financial incentive for loyalty

TRAINING

o All departments of the operation will have an understanding of the brand and of the roles
and responsibilities of all of their colleagues. A training programme will be developed that
all team members undergo within the first week of employment, it will include:

- Business philosophy
. Our approach to the product and service
- Roles, responsibilities and quality control in each department

- The daily process
- The mechanics of service

o Weekly training/updates will take place before service to discuss new products, ingredients

and processes.

12

Page 84



—OPERATIONS

KITCHEN

o All food is prepared on site from fresh ingredients.
o Stock rotation and management will be tightly monitored.

o All food safety and hygiene processes & documentation to be completed daily.

BAR/ RESTAURANT

e Service Is casual, friendly, knowledgeable, professional, efficient and attentive.

* Waiting staff will wear relaxed casual wear.

13

Page 85



DPERATIONS

:00D SUPPLIERS

We only use suppliers that can provide provenance of products and show that
production methods and animal welfare are priorttised.

Initial costs allow a 65% mark up.

» Speak to multiple beverage and food suppliers to ensure that best deals are struck
with payment terms that suit the business.

CASH AND STOCK RECONCILIATION

» We employ:
- Full day cash takings and deposits
- Weekly key line stock takes
- Monthly full stock takes

» Results of reconciliations will be communicated to team members.

REGULATIONS, HYGIENE CERTIFICATES ETC...

» It is the management's responsibility to ensure that all required health and safety, fire safety
and environmental health documentation is correct and updated regularly along with records

of all fire tests and staff training.

14

Page 86



Y

Lo
|

e i




RISK ANALYSIS

RISK MITIGATION
INDUSTRY New specialist ber propositions Establish ourselves as experts within the market
entering the market
MARKET Trend for more formal eating/drinking Adapt bar service philosophy
experiences
Customers look for lower cos Ahter menu and pricing architecture to lower overall cost
per ticket
Concept goes out of fashion Update concept
PRODUCT Low take up on specific products Order accordingly and adapt to trends
SALES Low sales in the area of underperforinance we will conduct a data
- Lunch analysis to identify strangths and wesknasses to ensure
- Dinner we are capitalising where we can and are clear where and
- Bar what the problem is. We will then address via product and
menu development, marketing or re-prioritisation.
QUALITY Beer quality poor Train staff in correct cellar techniques
Food isn't remarkable enough Source new suppliers
Level of exacution isnt up to standard Train chefs in correct mathods, create spec sheets and
recipes for every dish and ensure that these methods are
{followed
TEAM Suitable team hard to find Speak to employment agencies to get best staff
Team retention low Incentivise and Inspire staff - with expertise and opportunity
Hire team that don't deliver on expectations Offer trial period and terminate if
not suitable
CAPACITY Demand outstrips number of covers Optimise table plan
Can't produce food quick enough to match table Refine method of production or use marketing to reframe
turnaround rate. the waiting exparienca to diners
STOCK & CASH Stock take is down/ \dentify area. Agree action which may include refinement
RECONCILIAITON Cash is down of ingredient measures, management of waste, teams
meetings, individual meetings
SUPPLIERS Suppllers don’t deliver on any given day Hold sufficient stock as backup and use mulitiple suppliers
Prices rise significantly Equipment breaks Seek alternative suppliers
Breaks 24hr emergency call-out contract
INVESTMENT The business doesn’t hit agreed targets Data analysls to identify strengths and weakness, decide
on marketing investment and/or to strip cost out
of the business.
Lack investment levels to open additional units Strip cost out of business
Make strategic decisions on adeptation of funding model
BUSINESS Poor management Schedule weekly performance meetings, highfight any
MANAGEMENT concerns. Give the manager responsiblliies and take
action if necessary.
CASH FLOW Insufficient working capital to pay suppliers/ salaries Analysis of business costs, supplier payment tenms
Consider bank overdraft application
DISASTERS Fire insurance cover and fast turnaround repairs, obtain bank
overdraft to manage insurance pay-out timings
DECOR Becomes dated Update when necessary adapt to current trends

16

Page 88



—_ORGANISATION

STRUCTURE

The organisation currently has two directors.

MANAGEMENT TEAM

James Morgan

Richard Craig

DIRECTOR

A hospitality expert with over 15 years of
experience running pubs, bars and restaurants.
Focused business operations, strategy and

DIRECTOR

A hospitality expert, Rich’s strengths layin
concept generation, a strong market awareness
and project delivery across all aspects of the

brand relations. business.

Nick Blake Piers Driver Jacques Pretorious

HEAD BREWER EXECUTIVE CHEF GROUP OPERATIONS
MANAGER

An experienced, dedicated and
driven head brewer.

Nick has spent his entire brew-
ing career at Blg Smoke.

Piers has worked as a head chef
for 15 years, working for Blues
Kitchen (The Columbo Group)
and Mitchell and Butlers. He
has been working closely with
Big Smoke for the past 5 years.

Plers’s experience in menu
development, execution, plan-
ning and staffing makes him an
invaluable member of the team.

Jacques is an experienced pub
and restaurant operator with a
fantastic eye for detail.

Jacques brings a wealth of
experience to the table, from
social media promotion to
menu development and HR
duties.

17

Page 89



EERL R %“Mws’;

IEILURIRII LTI So s
i [ RN |




TVPS

PC 6787 Wheeler
Abbey Inner NHPT
Reading Police Station
Castle Street
Reading
Greene King Brewing & retailing Ltd Berkshire
Abbot House RG17TH
PO Box 337
Bury St Edmunds Tel: 101 (07973231273)
Suffolk Emalk
IP33 1QW simon.wheeler@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk
Saturday 7t December 2019
Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Number: LP9000452

Premises: Matchbox

Premises Address:

Dear Mr Morgan (Big smoke Pub co) and to whom it may concern (Premises
Licence Holders)

On Friday 6% December 2019 Thames Valley Police became aware that your
premises was due to hold what we would classify as a number of high risk events
throughout the month of December 2019.

The first that we discovered being due to be held on the 13" December 2019. Your
premises has suffered a number of medium to large scale disorders since 2018 in
relation to such events and Thames Valley Police have held a number of
performance processes with this premises to ensure that you are able to promote
and not undermine the licensing objectives.

On Friday 6% December 2019 your premises was visited by myself to highlight our
serious concerns that these events have historically led to a number of incidents at
your premises, and also led to numerous incidents at other premises which have
led to a number of licence revocations due to the levels of disorder and serious

assauits and sadly on occasion murder.

The duty manager on the day “Lily” was informed in no uncertain terms that
because of these concerns that we highly recommended that you fully risk assess

these types of promotion, and that although we do not have the power to prevent

the a gerwnheiner ey ale

suitable to be held at your premis ad whether or not you can ensure they shall
not cause any issue.

Page 91



R ] v
Such promoted events in Reading regularly attract well known Organised Crime
Group factions from Reading to the town as well as other individuals from areas
within London. This mix often leads to violence and disorder in what has become a
very predictable scenario due to the number of times this has occurred at premises

holding similar promotions.

| also advised that any serious incident of violence or disorder at such an event due
to the predictability of that situation would likely lead to a review in order that
Thames Valley Police can ensure both public safety and the prevention of crime

and disorder.

Unfortunately and unknown to me at the time of this visit you had a similar
promoted event taking place at your premises on this evening and of extreme

concern was that this was not advised to me.

Sadly as Thames Valley Police predicted having run the event on Friday 6™
December 2019 late that night after my visit a large disorder took place at your
premises linked directly to the event that you ran.

This incident saw one of your door supervisors assaulted and damage to the
premises occur having had chairs thrown within. it also led to a number of arrest
outside of the premises during an affray which took place.

Large numbers of Police officers were forced to attend to maintain order on the
streets in what has proven to be a predictable and unacceptable incident.

Having spoken to Mr Morgan this evening whom informed me that the intention of
the current management team from Big Smoke pub co. is to refurbish the premises
in the new year and change it from a late night bar/ club to a micro-brewery and
food led premises starting building work on the 6% January 2019, | was also
informed of a voluntary decision to close the premises with immediate effect until

those changes occur.

Thames Valley Police welcome this voluntary step in order to avoid a summary
review of your premises licence, as without this measure we would have applied for

interim steps to have been put into place to remove any future issues at the
premises which would undermine the licensing objectives.

Mr Morgan further stated that the nature of the business shall be as a lower risk
premises with earlier closure times of 0100 hours and Thames Valley Police would
wish to see the licence conditions amended and hours of operation updated to

reflect that style of operation.

However, due to the severity of the issues at this premises that have been ongoing
for the last twenty four months and failure of the Premises Licence holders to
address this we shall be seeking to review this licence in relation to the prevention
of crime and disorder to ensure that the proposed style of business is reflected
within the operating schedule, and that the proposed hours of operation are
reduced from the current licensable hours to prevent this premises from
continuously undermining the licensing objectives.

As stated above we welcome the immediate steps that Mr Morgan has taken to
close the premises in order to prevent the requirement for interim steps and hope

Page 92



thatviathe 3 can begin to operate in a responsible

WMMJQMnidents of violence and disorder.

A copy of this letter has been emailed to Mr Morgan for immediate response to
confirm in writing his decision to close the premises and hard copy sent for the
information of the premises licence holder.

Yours Faithfully

Simon Wheeler

Reading LPA Licensing Dept

Page 93



Page 94



™ [ Y

/A[P'o;z/\ dAX [CS —L
Smallez, Robert

From: Champeau, Jean

Sent: 10 December 2019 13:28

To: Licensing

Cc: Smalley, Robert

Subject: review of a premises licence Match box 5/6 Friar Street

I wish to support the review of the match box premise licence LP9000452, over the past few months a numbers of
premises located in Reading have held events which have led to crime and disorder Thames Valley Police have
contacted theses premises and advised on possible courses of action to reduce the risk of crime and disorder.

I have been aware of ongoing issues with matchbox using external promotors during 2019. The management of
Matchbox have been advised by Thames Valley Police regarding high risk events in fact they were sent an e-mail on
the 6™ of December 2019 at 1014am indicating their concerns.

It appears that little or no consideration was given to this e mail by the designated premise supervisor nor was the
fact that the police spoke to the duty manager early in the evening of the 6™ December 2019 raising these
concerns, If the duty manager had informed Thames Valley Police of the event planned for that evening, Thames
Valley Police may have been in a position to advise or prepare for that evenings event.

Thames valley police are requesting that the licensing committee should consider revocation and or a reduction in
hours. | would recommend revocation and allow the new owners of the building to apply for a premise licence

detailing hours and conditions in line with their stated intention of creating a Micro-brewery.

J S Champeau

Mr Jean S Champeau

Senior Licensing & Enforcement Officer
Reading Borough Council

Civic Offices

Bridge Street

Reading

RG12LU

Tel: 0118 9372 239

jean.champeau@reading.qov.uk

http://www.reading.gov.uk/licensing

PLEASE READ - IMPORTANT INFORMATION - NO MORE ENTITLEMENTS TO DRIVE

From 01 February 2019 we will be implementing changes to the way private hire, hackney
carriage and school transport driver’s licence renewal applications are processed, as approved
by the Licensing Committee on 11 April 2018. Please follow the link below for full information

http://www.reading.gov.uk/taxilicences

1
Page 95




Page 96




dx
€3 Reading Fer

V Borough Council

Working befter with you

LICENSING ACT 2003 PREMISES LICENCE - PART A

Reading Borough Council being the Licensing Authority under the above Act,
HEREBY GRANT a PREMISES LICENCE as detailed in this licence.

Fremises Licence Number | LP8000317

Premises Details

Trading name of Premises and Address
Matchbox

5/6 Friar Street

Reading

Berkshire

RG1 1DX

Where the Licence is time limited the dates the Licence is valid

N/A

Licensable Activities

Licensable Activities authorised by the Licence
Performance of Live Music - Indoor

i ed Music - Indoor
Anything similar to Live Music ecorded Music - In
Late Night Refreshment - Indoor
Sale of Alcohol by Retail - On & Off the Premises

Authorised Hours for Licensable Activities

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Hours for the Performance of Live Music
Monday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs
Tuesday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs
Wednesday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs
Thursday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs
Friday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs
Saturday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs
Sunday from 1200hrs until 0200hrs
Seasonal Variations:

Years Day.
British Summer time not to commence until the following days trade.

Hours for the Playing of Recorded Music
Monday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs
Tuesday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs
Wednesday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs

One extra hour for Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Years Eve and New

Thursday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs
Friday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 1 of 10
Page 97



Saturday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs

Sunday from 1200hrs until 0200hrs

Seasonal Variations:

One extra hour for Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Years Eve and New
Years Day.

British Summer time not to commence until the following days trade.

Hours for anything similar to Live Music & Recorded Music

Monday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs

Tuesday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs

Wednesday from 1100hrs until 0200hrs

Thursday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs

Friday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs

Saturday from 1100hrs until 0230hrs

Sunday from 1200hrs until 0200hrs

Seasonal Variations:

One extra hour for Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Years Eve and New
Years Day.

British Summer time not to commence until the following days trade.

Hours for the Provision of Late Night Refreshment

Monday from 2300hrs until 0200hrs

Tuesday from 2300hrs until 0200hrs

Wednesday from 2300hrs until 0200hrs

Thursday from 2300hrs until 0230hrs

Friday from 2300hrs until 0230hrs

Saturday from 2300hrs until 0230hrs

Sunday from 2300hrs until 0200hrs

Seasonal Variations:

One extra hour for Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Years Eve and New
Years Day.

British Summer time not to commence until the following days trade.

Hours for the Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Monday from 0800hrs until 0200hrs

Tuesday from 0800hrs until 0200hrs

Wednesday from 0800hrs until 0200hrs

Thursday from 0800hrs until 0230hrs

Friday from 0800hrs until 0230hrs

Saturday from 0800hrs until 0230hrs

Sunday from 0800hrs until 0200hrs

Seasonal Variations:

One extra hour for Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Years Eve and New
Years Day.

British Summer time not to commence until the following days trade.

Opening Hours

Hours the Premises is Open to the Public
Monday from 0800hrs until 0230hrs
Tuesday from 0800hrs until 0230hrs
Wednesday from 0800hrs until 0230hrs
Thursday from 0800hrs until 0300hrs
Friday from 0800hrs until 0300hrs
Saturday from 0800hrs until 0300hrs

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 2 of 10
Page 98




Sunday from 0800hrs until 0230hrs

Seasonal Variations:

One extra hour for Christmas Eve, Christmas Day, Boxing Day, New Years Eve and New
| Years Day.

British Summer time not to commence until the following days trade.

Alcohol

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies
Sale of Alcohol by Retail - On & Off the Premises

Premises Licence Holder

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence

Name: Greene King Brewing & Retailing Ltd

Address: Abbot House, PO Box 337, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, IP33 1QW

Additional Details
Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where ]
the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol
Name: Ms Robert Smith

Address:

Designated Premises Supervisor o
Personal Licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by the
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply

of alcohol
Personal Licence Number: 033979 '
. LIssuing Authority: ___Richmond Council

This Certificate shall continue in force from 19/12/2019 unless previously suspended
or revoked.

Dated: 8 January 2020
Signed on behalf of the issuing licensing authority

Frances Martin

Executive Director for Economic Growth and Neighbourhood Services

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 3 of 10
Page 99

Page 99



Annex 1

Mandatory Conditions

Supply of Alcohol

To be applied where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:-

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of
the premises licence, or

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended

2 Every supply of alcohol made under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Film Exhibitions

To be applied only where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibitions of films

1 The admission of children to any exhibition of any film must be restricted in
accordance with section 20 of Part 3 of the Licensing Act 2003.

2 In the case of films which have been classified by the British Board of Film
Classification admission of children to films must be restricted in accordance
with that classification.

3 In the case of films which have not been classified by the British Board of Film
Classification, admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation made by the Licensing Authority.

Door Supervisors

To be applied where a premises licence or club premises certificate includes a
condition that any person must be at the premises to carry out a security activity.
[Except premises with a premises licence authorising only plays or films or
premises used exclusively by a club].

1 Each individual present at the licensed premises to carry out a security activity
must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 4 of 10
Page 100




Responsible Drink Promotions (commencement date 01/10/2014)

1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging
the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, orin
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage
or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any
favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

Supply of Tap Water (commencement date 01/10/2014)

1. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request
to customers where it is reasonably available.

LA_Premisesticence Part A Page 5 of 10
Page 101



Age Verification Policy (commencement 01/10/2014)

1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale
or supply of alcohol.

2. The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy.

3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce
on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date
of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Drink Measurements (commencement date 01/10/2014)
1. The responsible person must ensure that—

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures—

(i) beer or cider: ¥, pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(i1i) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which
is available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 6 of 10
Page 102



Minimum Permitted Pricing (commencement 28th May 2014)

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on
or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—
(a)“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b)“permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—

P =D + (DxV)

where—

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence—

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in
question; and

(e) “valued added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994

the paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded
up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on
the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value
added tax.

4. (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days
beginning on the second day.

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 7 of 10
Page 103



Annex 2

Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule

General

(a) The Designated Premises Supervisor and the Premises Licence Holder (where
an individual) shall be trained on the most recent BIIAB course (to be advised by
the Licensing Department), or any similarly recognised nationally approved
accreditation curriculum, within a three month period;

(b) Persons authorised to sell alcohol shall be trained to BIIAB Level 1 Award in
Responsible Alcohol Retailing, or any other similarly recognised nationally
approved accreditation curriculum. Records of the training and reminders given
shall be kept;

(c) Al new members of staff must undertake initial training on age restricted
sales before they are permitted to sell alcohol and registered within 28 days of
employment to attend the BIIAB Level 1 Award in Responsible Alcohol Retailing or
any other similarly recognised nationally approved accreditation curriculum;

(d) All staff shall be refresher trained on the law relating to underage sales every
three months on how to question and refuse sales if necessary, utilising the
Challenge 25 policy. Records of the training and reminders given shall be
retained;

(e) Additional training must be provided for all house managers on dealing with
illegal activities and aggressive customers;

(f) On Thursday, Friday and Saturday nights there will be no new entry or re-
entry to the premises after 0100 hours with the exception of customers
permitted outside to smoke;

(g) A minimum of four door supervisors shall operate on a Friday and Saturday
from 2000 hours until 30 minutes after the premises close to ensure that
customers disperse quickly and quietly from the immediate vicinity. In addition,
any night where the premises intends to trade beyond 0000 hours there shall be a
minimum of two door supervisors on duty from 2100 hours until 30 minutes after
the premises close to ensure that customers disperse quickly and quietly

from the immediate vicinity;

(h) The Premises Licence holder shall keep and maintain a register of Door
Supervisors. The register shall show the following details:

(i) The name, home address and registration number of all door supervisors
working at the premises;

(i) SIA registration number;

(iii) Date and time that the door supervisor commenced duty, countersigned by
the Designated Premises Supervisors;

(iv) Any occurrence or incident of interest must be recorded giving names of the
door supervisors involved;

(v) Date and time that the door supervisor finished work, countersigned by the
Designated Premises Supervisor.

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 8 of 10
Page 104



(1) The door supervisor register must be kept at the licensed premises and be
available for inspection by Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer from
Reading Borough Council and shall be retained for a period of 6 months;

(j) All door supervisors must be dressed so that they can be easily distinguishable
from patrons;

(k) The Premises Licence Holder must ensure that the Designated Premises
Supervisor holds membership of and actively participates in the Reading Pub
Watch Scheme, including making use of apparatus supplied as part of the
scheme. In addition, the Designated Premises Supervisor shall join and actively
participate in any relevant best practice scheme which may be introduced in
Reading town centre or join and utilise any radio link scheme;

(1) The Premises must have installed a CCTV system in accordance with the
Association of Chief Police Officers standard, to a specification approved by the
Crime Reduction Advisor of the Thames Valley Police. The CCTV system must be
effectively maintained and must be operated continually throughout trading
hours;

(m) The Premise Licence Holder shall ensure the premises’ digitally recorded
CCTV system cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open to
the public and recordings shall be kept for a minimum of 31 days with time and
date stamping. Data recordings shall be made available without undue delay and
no later than 24 hours from initial request to an authorised officer of Reading
Borough Council or Thames Valley Police together with facilities for viewing in
the event that a request is made for the purpose of the prevention or detection
of crime or the apprehension or prosecution of offenders or to check that the

Y

able to identify the recorded person;

shall be of such a quality as to be

(n) No promotions may take place on the premises that encourage illegal,
irresponsible or immoderate consumption of alcohol;

(0) Customers must not be allowed to carry or consume alcohol outside the
premises;

(p) A local taxi company phone number will be made available to customers by
way of advertising at the premises and on direct request;

(q) All incidents which impact of any of the four licensing objectives shall be
recorded in a register kept at the premises for this purpose. The names of the
person recording the incident and those members of staff who deal with any
incident shall also be recorded. Where known, any offenders name shall also be
recorded;

(r) The premises shall at all times operate a Challenge 25 policy to prevent any
customers who attempt to purchase alcohol and who appear to the staff member
to be under the age of 25 years from making such a purchase without having first
provided identification. Only a valid British driver’s licence showing a
photograph of the person, a valid British passport or proof of age card showing
the ‘Pass’ hologram are to be accepted as identification;

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 9 of 10
Page 105



(s) Notices advertising the Challenge 25 policy shall be displayed in prominent
positions on the premises;

(t) The Premises Licence holder shall display in a prominent position a copy of
their policy on checking proof of age;

Annex 3

Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Agreed 14/10/2011

1. The licensee shall ensure that no noise shall emanate from the premises nor
vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which gives rise to
undue disturbance to local residents.

2. All external doors and windows must be kept closed other than for access and
egress when events involving amplified music or speech are taking place.

3. No music or speech shall be relayed via external speakers.

4. The placing of refuse - such as bottles - into receptacles outside the premises
shall only take place between 0800hrs and 1900hrs

As attached plan 19.079.GK.G.1000 - Ground and First Floor

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 10 of 10
Page 106



APP@CJ‘.X K d "I-l—

14™ January 2020

Thames Valley Police further evidence summary in relation to the Premises Licence review of
No.LP9000452 Matchbox, 5/6 Friar Street, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 1DX.

Document 1 (26/04/2018) — Meeting notes in relation to a performance meeting held in April 2014
with the tenants of Matchbox whom were the company managing the premises at the time. The
meeting was held in order to address concerns over the usage of externally promoted high risk
events.

Document 2 (26/04/2018) — Copy of the letter that was generated from the performance meeting
which was provided to both Mr Mullins, Miss Bass the then DPS and Greene King (PLH) and details
ongoing concerns with promoted “Urban” events.

Document 3 (27/04/2018) — Email trail responding to the performance meeting and letter including
the responses of both Miss Bass and Mr Mullins whom states he believed that it was unreasonable
to be served a set of “Tier 1” meeting notes.

Below explains the tiered approach used by Thames Valley Police

The three tier licensing model is as follows:

Extent of Problem Response

Tier ONE tower-level-one-off-incidents-or

Informal, but.still documented, visit to
ina tre i 1 s the matter and
in the bud before they become a real work together to identify solutions.
problem. May alternatively be done via
telephone or by letter.

For example: a one-off ABH involving an
excessively intoxicated victim.

Tier TWO More serious one-off incidents, ongoing | A formal meeting usually held at the
trends or larger numbers of minor police station or council offices. More
incidents that the premises has failed to | robust than a Tier One but, importantly,
address, regardless of whether a Tier still constructive and supportive in tone,
One has been applied previously. the aim is to work with the premises to

. . address the issues.
For example: a one-off GBH involving a

knife taken into the premises, where the
staff failed to call police, cleaned up the
scene and simply ejected the offender.

Tier THREE Serious ongoing issues which the Prosecution for criminal offences or an
premises has been unwilling or unable application to review the licence at a
to address, or where offences have hearing before the Licensing Sub-
been committed for which thisis a Committee, at which the licence can be
proportionate response. In rare amended significantly or revoked.

circumstances, may be applied following

nnnnnnn

. 1 . . . "
a on TCOTTIUUS TTTCTUL T,

Page 107



For example: Numerous incidents of
violence or a singular serious incident of
serious crime and or serious disorder,
which management have failed to
address, with all attempts by the
authorities to engage with them failing.

It is not a 3 strikes model. Each situation will be judged on its own merits and the appropriate Tier
proportionately applied accordingly, although that assessment may include any previous Tiers
applied. As a result a premise could have multiple Tier Ones and Twos without necessarily escalating
to a Tier Three or move immediately to Tier 3 if required.

Current Secretary of States Section 182 Guidance states:

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning of their
concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence or
certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A failure by the holder to
respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a
local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be
used to undermine this cooperation.

Document 4 (06/06/2018) — Copy of a letter sent to the DPS and PLH outlining further concerns
surrounding promoted events and a failure to cancel and event whilst misleading the authorities.
The letter also provided information in relating to an assault involving glassware and provided a set
of conditions that it was felt were required to be added to the premises licence to address the
concerns.

Also included are images taken of obstructions to the fire exit routes.

Document 5 (26/06/2018) - Letter from Piers Warne of TLT solicitors acting on behalf of Greene
King and the operators at the time. Within the response to our letter on 06/06/2018 Mr Warne casts
doubt over the general content of the police concerns and makes reference to “draconian
measures” in relation to our proposed conditions.

The letter also states that during a consequent fire inspection no concerns were raised and details
the Green King standpoint that the proposed conditions which had been put forwards could not be
implemented without “crippling the business”. *However it was consequently confirmed with the
operators that the requested changes were being voluntarily implemented and although they
believed them viable to be implemented that it was Greene King that did not want them imposed
onto the licence.

Document 6 — (10/07/2018) - Letter from the Royal Berkshire Fire Service detailing the result of
their inspection at matchbox on 15/06/2018. The letter contradicts Mr Warnes conclusion that no
concerns were raised during the fire inspection. And states “l am of the opinion that some people
are at risk in case of fire”, and sets out some actions which were required to be undertaken. One of
these actions details obstructions to an external escape route.

Document 7 ~ (10/07/2018) — Letter sent to the PLH outlining an inspection conducted by Reading
Borough Council detailing a number of licence conditions which were not being complied with.

Page 108




Document 8 — 14/11/2018 - inspection sheet from a licensing inspection at Matchbox detailing an

Document 9 - List of supportive Gen 40 reports and evidential images.

A. 09/05/2018 — Report outlines event on 06-07/05/2018 which police had been told was
cancelled however it transpires the premises ran it anyway under a different guise. Also
details CCTV system concern and fire exit obstructions.

B. 27/05/2018 — Report outlining an incident whereby a female was hit over the head with a
bottle and a second incident which involved a male being assaulted on the dancefloor.

C. 26-27/05/2018 —images taken from open source media “facebook” showing Pubwatch
banned individuals within Matchbox on the evening of the 26/27 May 2018.

12/10/2018 — Report detailing a suspected (unproven) drink spiking incident.

E. 13/10/2018 — Report detailing the assault of a female and consequent 50-60 person

gathering which led to a further fight during an externally promoted event.

20/01/2019 - Report detailing two assaults of persons within Matchbox.

G. 24/03/2019 - Report detailing a fight that had taken place in Friar street and a hostile crowd
from Matchbox and the officers concern that this is a regular occurrence.

H. 06/12/2019 - Email sent by Declan Smyth to the Matchbox operator and the PLH detailing
concerns over recent high risk events and an upcoming event involving an externally
promoted performer. (also provided is a statement supporting the email)

I. 07/12/2019 - Report detailing an officers account of the circumstances surrounding the
arrest and consequent disorder related to individuals that had been attending a promoted
external event within Matchbox.

4—08/12/2010 - Copy of confirmatary email in response to Thames Valley Police letter

m

received from Mr James Morgan confirming that the premises shall remain closed until the
site is re-developed and shall no longer be used as a nightclub in the future.

ccTv

1. CCTV produced from Echo Tango showing the incident at Matchbox from the perspective of Friar
Street on 7" December 2019.

2. Body Worn Video from PC Rowe (an attending officer on 07/12/2019) (Exclude from Public
viewing due to GDPR and identification of involved persons)

Page 109



Page 110



Tier 1 performance meeting — Matchbox

Held at Reading Police Station on 26%" April 2018 at 2.10pm

Attendees — PC 5787 Simon Wheeler, Toby Mullins (PLH) and Benjy (Managing

team)

Meeting to discuss the changing direction of the business and possible links between
a recent increase in incidents at the premises to determine if there was a direct
correlation between these and a new music direction towards “urban” music.

The following representations were made by TM and B:-

ID scanner is now used on Friday and Saturday nights throughout for 100% of
entrants.
100% search of all entrants to the premises.
Would consider usage of a TVP knife arch if it became available.
The demographics for the Urban events are showing figures of around 50%
students and 50% non-students with 70% attendees being female.
The feeling of the management is that the NTE needs support; urban music is
now the popular music and its popularity is keeping venues alive.

i annot afford to not do events that make them

busy.
None of the promoters from EVA's are being used and “This is R.U.M (Real
Urban Music) is a professional company based out of Southampton who have
no issues at their events.

9 x Door supervisors are employed for these events (capacity is 300)

This is RUM provide events 1 x per month and have events planned for
Sunday bank holiday in May.

1 x per month is a Garage/RnB night per month and the other Friday night
events are a mixture of Grime/Urban and other music.

Both TM and B did not agree that they felt they should be accountable for
attracting criminal elements to the town especially when they are refusing
them entry or at least proactively banning them if any incidents occur, and
therefore issues caused by non-attendees within the town were felt not to be
their fault, and out of their circle of influence.

Both also felt that they were unsure how being proactive and reporting
incidents to police would be portrayed ie recorded negatively against them, or
viewed positively by authorities as them attempting to “do the right thing”.

PC Wheeler referenced the concerns that members of Organised Crime Groups had

always been attracted to the town when Urban events had taken place and alluded
—_— to-Mannakoo, Xensations Mango Zeus, Club 20 and EVA's etc which all had

serious crime problems leading to serious assaults and on two occasions murder.

Page 111



It was stated by SW that it was understood by the Police that both TM and B felt that
they were putting all of the right processes in place to attempt to reduce incidents
and prevent crime and disorder, however notwithstanding those actions we have to
be mindful of previous experiences within Reading over the last ten years that have
shown a correlation between such promoted events and serious criminal activity
either within the venues themselves or the general vicinity and other areas of the
town.

SW also referenced the premises summary report which showed from 2017 (9)
incidents and in the first quarter of 2018 (6) had occurred, a number of which have
happened within the last month and included a glassing. And mentioned concerns
raised by officers dealing with the dispersal of patrons from the premises at the end
of last Fridays event which had been poorly overs seen by the premises, as well as
their concerns that members of a known OCG were hanging around near to the
premises for most of the evening.

Further information was provided relating to an incident involving numerous known
OCG members and an assault on a female in the street which was potentially linked
to the recent glassing within the premises.

B — Stated that a lot of these incidents had occurred on nights other than the Urban
music nights, and that these were likely more indicative of the business becoming
busier again as in the previous year it had been “dying”.

B also mentioned that it had been a glass that was thrown by a female and was not
what you would think of as a normal glassing or bottling incident.

Conclusion

SW - Stated that TVP would support the premises going forwards if they provided
suitable risk assessments informing of future events, and re-iterated its primary
concern is for the safety of the public.

However, TM and B were informed they must be under no illusion that these events
are not condoned in any way, and that our stance is that they have a serious
potential to cause problems either within premises or on the streets, caused either by
persons gaining entry or by others who follow the crowd and remain in the area even
when entry has been refused.

TM and B were told that if they felt they could manage these events without incident
then that is their judgement to make but that having been provided in a face to face
forum with these concerns, that if the events lead to any of the licensing objectives
being undermined and or violence occurring then further action may be seriously
considered as a means to protect public safety.

Page 112



------ R THAMESVALLEY PC 5787 Wheeler

Reading Licensing Dept

Reading Police Station

Castle Street
Reading
Berkshire
Toby Mullins/ Rachel Bass RG1 7TH
5/6 Friar Street
Reading Tel: 101 (07973231273)
Berkshire Email _
RG1 1DX simon.wheeler@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk

Thursday 26 April 2018

Licensing Act 2003
Premises Licence Number: LP2002226
Premises: Matchbox

Premises Address: 5/6 Friar Street, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 1DX

Dear Mr Mullins and Miss Bass

On 26t April 2018 Mr Mullins attended a performance meeting held at Reading
Police Station with both myself and a member of your management team Benjy.

As part of this process we discussed concerns that had been raised to the licensing
team regarding crowd and dispersal problems from the weekend just gone. Also
questions were asked to establish if there was a possible link between recent
incidents within the premises such as a glassing and further violence on streets
within the vicinity of the club involving associates of members of a local organised
crime group.

Our concern is that a potential correlation can be drawn between these incidents as
the venue had started to promote “Urban” music events, and the history of such
events in Reading had previously caused a number of serious incidents of violence
over the previous ten years, that had led to the closure of some venues and a
recent summary review of another leading to revocation.

As part of this process we now acknowledge that the stance of the management
team at Matchbox is that they feel that Urban style music promotions do not
inherently undermine the licensing objectives, and that the premises management
team have sufficient processes and risk assessments in place to deal with and run
such events.

A summary of Mr Mullins submission includes a ratio of 9:300 door supervisors to
patrons, 100% search on entry and 100% |D scan as well as proactive policy to

Page 113



prevent known individuals from entering the premises, as well as a robust banning
system for persons who do cause issues.

It was also noted that venue management stated they shall require the provision of
further hi-vis tabards for usage by their door supervisors in order to help with their
dispersal policy.

In conclusion Mr Mullins and Benjy felt that Urban music was now the most popular
music genre, and that in order to survive within the current night time economy
market they could not afford to miss out on promoted Urban related music events.
They felt that they had put sufficient caveats in place to run these events and felt
that they should not be held accountable for issues that arise outside of their circle
of influence involving persons attracted to the area because of their event, but who
had at no stage been allowed to gain entry.

PC Wheeler stated that Thames Valley Police would continue to support the
premises and asked that suitable risk assessments informing of future events
should be supplied regularly to the Police in order to pre-empt any foreseeable
issues, and re-iterated that the Police primary concern and rationale for requiring
the meeting was to both ensure public safety and to prevent crime and disorder.

Please be fully aware that we have serious and credible concerns regarding Urban
music promotions which have provided for a history of violence in Reading over the
last ten years, leading to numerous serious assaults, two murders and many
closures of venues including two licence revocations.

We have heard your representations in that you feel that you can manage these
events and that you feel with your processes in place that is sufficient, however we
hope that you understand that if any such events provably lead to any of the
licensing objectives being undermined, and or violence occurring, then further
action shall be considered as a means to protect public safety in this instance.

Yours Faithfully

PC 5787 Simon Wheeler

Reading LPA Licensing Dept

Page 114



Wheeler Simon

From: Info Matchbox <info@matchboxreading.com>

Sent: 27 April 2018 17:32

To: Toby Mullins

Cc: Wheeler Simon

Subject: Re: Matchbox performance meeting letter 26-04-18

Attachments: Garage Heads Risk Assesment.docx; Marbella Warm Up Risk Assesment.docx;

Matchbox Door Policy.docx; Real Urban Music Risk Assesment.docx; Reevos Risk
Assesment.docx; RG1 Risk assessment.docx; Silent Disco Risk Assesment.docx; The
Box Risk Assesment.docx; 6 Week plan.xlsx

Hi Simon,
Pleasc find attached plans for Matchbox for the next 6 weeks, with Risk Assessments for each night.

I will keep this rolling for you, so you can get an update on our projected numbers for the events in the
future, and then you will be able to see what we are doing for future events.

Kind Regards,

Rachel Bass
General Manager

0118 959 5278
www.matchboxreading.com

https://www.facebook.comMatchBoxReading

On Fri, Apr 27, 2018 at 4:42 PM, Info Matchbox <infor@matchboxreading.com> wrote:
Hi Simon,

[ am preparing all the relevant documents for you and will be sent over to you as soon as possible.

In terms of polycarbonate drinking vessels, we use these for our student nights and Friday nights anyway,
s0 it is certainly something we could implement for our Saturday nights as well.

Kind Regards,

Rachel Bass
General Manager

MatchBox Reading
0118 959 5278

www.matchboxreading.com
https://www.facebook.com/MatchBoxReading

. 26 2 ; ' ins <tobv@entourageproiect.co.uk> wrote:
Hi Simon

1
Page 115



For the record I find it a little disturbing that I called this meeting on and you spoke the words ‘this is an
informal chat’ today and then I get served a Tier 1 Performance meeting letter.

I would like to speak about this tomorrow as this seems entirely unreasonable following our discussions
today.

Please let me know thoughts
Toby mullins
Sent from my iPhone

On 26 Apr 2018, at 18:20, Wheeler Simon <Simon. Wheeleri@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk> wrote:

Toby and Rachel
Please find attached letter from this afternoons Tier 1 performance meeting.

Could you please also provide us with your thoughts on the usage of
polycarbonate drinking vessels having taken into account the recent glassing
incident?

Regards

Simon Wheeler Police Constable 5787
Advanced Practitioner

Reading Licensing Dept | Reading LPA | Thames Valley Police
Switchboard (non emergency): & 101

Mobile: 07973231273
MCastle Street, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 7TH

2
Page 116



THAMES VALLEY PC 5787 Wheeler

Reatting ticensing Dept

Reading Police Station
Castle Street

Reading
Berkshire
Greene King Brewing & Retailing Ltd RG17TH
Abbot House
PO Box 337 Tel: 101 (07973231273)
Bury St Edmunds Email .
Suffolk, IP33 1PQ simon.wheeler@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk
Wednesday 6" June 2018

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Number: LP2002226

Premises: Matchbox

Premises Address: 5/6 Friar Street, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 1DX

To whom it may concern

__________________________ 3 ating abhave named premises

in that we believe that cuermining the licensing
objectives with specific regard to the prevention of crime and disorder and public
safety.

On Saturday 17t February 2018 a large disorder took place outside of the premises
involving a number of persons that had been removed from the venue. After what
eventually turned into a large fight in the street a meeting was held with premises
representatives on 27" February 2018 whereby the Designated Premises
Supervisor (DPS) Rachel Bass and current tenant Mr Mullins agreed that the
incident could have been prevented with better intervention and actions by the door
supervisors. Two of the actions included the usage of hi visibility tabards to aid the
recognition of door staff and improved usage of their town safe radio.

On Sunday 15" April 2018 a male was injured in an incident involving a “glassing”
whereby a female threw a glass into his face in retribution for a low level sexual
assault committed on her by him.

As part of the consequent licensing investigation after the incidents on 15" and 17
April looking into the processes and promotions used by the premises it became
apparent that a recent change in the style of promotions at the premises had
occurred involving what we term “higher risk” events now being promoted.

This coincided with a number of high profile persons from local organised crime

groups-beginning to come to the town and attempting to gain entry to the premises

as well as remaining in the area outside of the premises causing issues on the
streets.

Page 117



On 26" April 2018 a performance meeting was held at Reading Police Station with
Mr Toby Mullins and Benjy Doran to discuss the Police concerns with such
promoted events, the issues that historically they have caused within Reading and
whether or not a correlation could be drawn between recent incidents and the
change of direction by the premises which previously had had fewer incidents.

A letter was circulated to both the Premises Licence Holder (PLH) and DPS
regarding the discussion points from the meeting and outlining that further action
may take place if further incidents continued on order to safeguard the public and
uphold the licensing objectives.

On Saturday 5" May Thames Valley Police received an email from the DPS stating
that the “This is R.U.M” promotion scheduled for the bank holiday Sunday had been
cancelled based on “intell from other premises”. This news was welcomed by us as
a proactive measure by the premises management team and confirmed the
potential concerns we had with such events which had led us to consider allocating
extra Police units to have to manage it.

However, on the evening of the event we received intelligence that the DPS and or
management team had deliberately misrepresented to the Police about cancelling
the event and that this was only said to make it look like our previous advice had
been responded to. This was supported by reports from Police CCTV who provided
information that it appeared via their cameras that the originally promoted event had
actually still taken place.

As a response to this allegation a visit was completed at the premises by licensing
officers from Thames Valley Police to establish if the event had or hadn’t been
cancelled as we had been informed it would be.

On viewing CCTV within the premises it appeared that the event had actually taken
place due to the number of persons within the premises and demographic of
customers. When the DPS was questioned about this she stated that the event had
been cancelled via Whatsapp to the promoter on the Saturday morning prior to the
event. However, she also stated that no steps were taken by the management team
to confirm whether the promotion company had actually told anyone that it had
been cancelled, and that no information had been put out themselves to let
potential customers know of the cancellation had occurred.

The DPS also stated that the premises honoured all tickets that had been sold for
the event when customers arrived on the Sunday evening. So in effect the event did
take place as the event was never officially cancelled or confirmed as being
cancelled; anyone who was due to attend the event still did actually attend.

Also during the visit it was discovered that a fire escape route leading out onto Friar
Street was obstructed by barriers and stacks of alcohol and the CCTV was
insufficient as blind spots were discovered on the cameras causing us concern that
incidents may occur that would not be captured on the footage if reviewed.

On 27" May 2018 two serious incidents occurred within the premises; the first
involving glassware again whereby a female received injuries having been hit with a
bottle by a male. The second an assault by punching which led to an injury and cut
to the victims face. On both occasions officers report that the venue staff were not
forthcoming with information and had reported neither incident to Police.

Page 118



Of concern is that also on the night in question a known violent individual on the
local Pubwatch banning list was inside of the premises and actually in company

The premises within their recent risk assessments had stated that all persons who
enter the premises on Friday and Saturday evening would be required to submit to
an |ID scan process. We know that possibly that had been followed in some cases
on this occasion but it still remains to be seen how known individuals posing a
serious threat and currently banned had been allowed into the premises?

We believe that this supports our previous concerns that known violent individuals
will attempt to and also gain entry to events of this style and nature.

We have identified that we must address the following serious concerns at this
premises relating to the following areas:-

1) Poor door supervision and visibility.

2) Increase in glassware incidents involving bottles, even after polycarbonate
containers are used for draught alcohol and soft drinks.

3) Allowing of banned violent individuals into the premises.

4) Continuation of higher risk events that will likely lead to the licensing objectives
being undermined even after Police concerns were aired.

5) Lack of CCTV coverage for the whole licensed premises, which has led to a
serious assault not being captured on camera.

Therefore, Thames-Valley Police are requesting the following conditions be added

to both support the licensing objectives and

specifically to prevent crime and disorder and 1o safeguard publiC sarety.

CCTV To replace condition (L) and (M) page 10 of current licence.

The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure the premises’ digitally recorded CCTV
system cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open to the public
and recordings shall be kept for a minimum of 31 days with time and date stamping.

The entire licensable area shall be covered by the CCTV.

Recorded images shall be of such quality as to be able to identify the recorded
person in any light.

Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer of
Thames Valley Police or Reading Borough Council together with facilities for
viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act.

At least one member of staff on the premises at any time during operating hours
shall be trained to access and download material from the CCTV system.

Door Supervisors To replace conditions (G) to (J) on pages 9 and 10 of
current licence.

Page 119



The Premise Licence holder shall keep and maintain a register of door supervisors.
1) The register will show the following details:

a) the name of all door supervisors working at the premises.

b) SIA registration number.

¢) date and time that the door supervisor commenced duty, countersigned by the
Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager.

d) Any incident of crime and disorder, or concerning children must be recorded
giving names of the door supervisors involved.

e) date and time the door supervisor finished work, countersigned by the
Designated Premises Supervisor or Duty Manager.

f) The door supervisor register must be kept at the licensed premises and be
available for inspection by Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer from
Reading Borough Council and shall be retained for period of six months from the
date of the event.

2) The Premises Licence Holder (PLH) shall ensure that all door supervisors whilst
employed at the premises shall wear hi visibility jackets/ tabards in bright green,
yellow or orange in order that they can be clearly visible and identifiable at all times
to the public and via CCTV both internally and externally. When tabards are worn,
hi visibility armbands must also be worn that incorporate displaying SIA badges. If
hi visibility full sleeved jackets are worn the PLH must ensure that all door
supervisors badges are also displayed via an easily visible arm band of a different
hi visibility colour to the jacket that is being worn.

3) The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure that at least one female door
supervisor shall be employed and available where appropriate. eg: if a female
customer is subject to a body search.

4) The premises licence holder must ensure that a minimum of 3 door supervisors
are employed whenever regulated entertainment is planned to take place Monday
to Sunday inclusive from 2000 hours till 30 minutes after the premises is closed to
manage entry to the premises, searching processes, management of patrons and
dispersal.

A further door supervisor shall be employed for every 100 persons (See example
below)

Eg:-

O persons = 3 Door Supervisors
100 persons = 4 Door Supervisors
200 persons = 5 Door supervisors

300 Persons = 6 Door Supervisors

Page 120



400 Persons = 7 Door Supervisors

Al oy £t
A S0 1uT T,

5) The Premises Licence Holder shall further risk assess the requirement to employ
door supervisors to the ratio of 1:35 for any high risk rated event as per the
premises event risk assessments.

6) Whilst Door Supervisors are employed at the premises a minimum of one Door
Supervisor working on the entrance/ exit to the Club, and one internally within the
premises will be deployed with digitally recording Body Worn Video (BWV). The
BWV will be used to record any incidents which occur inside or outside of the
premises involving customers, prospective customers or any staff member that
impact on any of the four licensing objectives.

Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer of
Thames Valley Police or Reading Borough Council together with facilities for
viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act.

7) The Premises Licence Holder (PLH) shall ensure licenced security staff shall
manage persons awaiting entry to the premises. Management shall ensure queuing
customers do not obstruct the thoroughfare or create a public nuisance.

Admission Policies Identity Scanning (To prevent banned and violent
individuals)

1) ID SCAN shall be available as a condition of entry and specifically the PLH's staff

shall: —

(a) Operate 100% ID Scanning for all customers from 22:00 till last entry Mon — Sun
inclusive.

(b) From when its security personnel start shift, daily operate an 1D scan of all
customers reasonably thought to be under 25; and

(c) Shall ID scan any potential customer of any age at any time in large groups or
when intelligence led;

"Customer” for the purposes of this condition shall include any patron; non-regular
Staff, promoters and performers entering the premises. This condition shall not
apply to headline performers and regular staff members whose identity is already
known to PLH staff;

The ID Scan Device shall record the names and dates of birth of all persons
entering the premises and retain the image and details of the ID. These records
shall be kept for a minimum of thirty one days and shall be made available to an
authorised officer of Thames Valley Police or an authorised officer of Reading
Borough Council upon request, together with facilities for viewing and access by a
person qualified to operate the system;

Any breakdown or system failure will be notified to TVP immediately and remedied

as soon as practicable.

Page 121



Search Policy (To prevent weapons and violence)

1) The Premises Licence Holder shall implement a 100% search procedure for all
patrons after 2200 hours and implement a written policy to minimise the risk of
illegal weapons and drugs being brought onto the premises, including search,
detection, confiscation, storage and disposal of drugs procedures. The search
policy shall provide, as a minimum:

(a) For 100% search of all customers attempting to enter the premises, from 22:00
till last entry Mon - Sun;

2) Notices shall be displayed advising the public that the right to conduct an outer
body search is reserved as a condition of entry, and that the Thames Valley Police
shall be informed if anyone is found in possession of illegal drugs or offensive
weapons;

Polycarbonate (for prevention of glassware violence)

All drinks shall be served in Polycarbonate containers, including all bottled drinks
which shall be decanted by staff at point of sale.

No glasses or bottles shall be removed from the premises at any time. Notices shall
be displayed prominent positions at all exits and entrances to advise of this policy.

Event plans (To provide greater transparency and prevent crime and disorder
related to higher risk events)

1. A written Event Management Plan including risk assessment for events where
the predominant licensable activities involve the performance of recorded or live
music with dancing shall be submitted to Thames Valiey Police and Reading
Borough Council setting out how the event will be managed and the precautions
which have been taken to cater for all reasonably foreseeable contingencies and
which will demonstrate the procedures, roles and specific responsibilities of the
management team, security and associated personnel. The finalised version of
such a plan must be submitted at least 14 days prior to the commencement of the
event.

2. No event organised by an external promoter shall take place at the premises
unless:

a) A written Event Management Plan for the proposed event has been forwarded to
Thames Valley Police and Reading Borough Council no less than 14 days prior to
the commencement of the event and;

b) Thames Valley Police in the form of an officer of at least the rank of Chief
Inspector have not provided the premises licence holder with a reasonable
objection to the holding of the event which is maintained at the time that the event
takes place. The Event Management Plan to be provided shall include details of the
promoter and any performers that are proposed to perform and shall take account

Page 122



- of any intelligence sources readily available to the licence holder. In particular, the
name of the proposed headliner shall be checked on the Identity Scan device.

Please be informed that Thames Valley Police believe that these conditions are
reasonable and proportionate to address the current serious concermns at this
premises and that we feel they are relevant in the light of each individual issue.

Unfortunately within this situation we are not in a position to negotiate on our
position and would hope that we are able to gain your agreement to add the
conditions that have been proposed in full using a minor variation.

We ask that you please inform us no later than Wednesday 20" June 2018 of your
decision in relation to this, and in order to provide full ransparency must also inform
you that we shall be submitting a review of the premises licence if these conditions
cannot be agreed.

At this time we have not asked for a reduction in the hours for the sale of alcohol,
however if serious incidents continue to occur within these premises this may also
become an action that we have to seriously consider along all with all other
possibilities available to us within the review process.

Yours Faithfully

PC 5787 Simon Wheeler

Reading LPA Licensing Dept

Page 123



Matchbox blocked fire exit obstruction 09-05-18

Page 124



Wheeler Simon

st e |
From: Wheeler Simon
Sent: 26 June 2018 22:11
To: ‘Piers Warne'
Cc: ‘French, Richard'; Narancic, Peter; Smyth Declan; ‘Masson, Clyde’
Subject: RE: Matchbox Reading
M ame
fapclagisa iornslresp
Yool Cun pave e g
Cnan confirm raaalpt of your previous e LOMM >and | e contant sonfapsd
i tham have 2asided hat a formal : Hest

e oind

&

{
I
@
¢
Vi

— . . . . 5 .

Doaat mmmiirac AR e i R T SR LIRSy - : ;o R P -
a3t asaiirad WAL oL ongoing and sontinuad SUSo srail be orovidad 5 the Ussighated
he 3 T ~ N ETEy

FURITHS2S SUDen/Isas

Advanced Practitio_nef |
Reading Licensing Dept | Reading LPA | Thames Valley Police

Switchboard (non emergency): 75 101
Mobils: 07973231273
Castle Street, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 7TH

From: Piers Warne [mailtw

Sent: 26 June 2018 16:14

To: Wheeler Simon <Simon.Wheeler@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk>
Subject: Matchbox Reading

Dear Simon

We act for Greene King and are responding on our client's behalf to your letter dated 6 June but only received on 13
June. As you are aware we have been trying to contact you since in order to discuss this matter.

Firstly, my client wants to assure you that they take any allegations of crime and disorder at premises very seriously.
As such, if you feel it would assist, we would be delighted to meet you, either with the operators or without, in order to
go through your concerns in detail.

i icence holders. but are not the operators. As such, we have been

investigating matters with the operators to try to ascertain precisely what is required here to promote the licensing
objectives. In doing so, we need to keep an open mind and ensure that we give all parties a fair chance to present
their side of matters. Having done this, we feel the following is a fair reflection of the position as it stands.

1
Page 125



General good working relationships with the police

Matchbox has been operating for 4 years in Reading & is actively working with police & the council in lots of ways to
promote the licensing objectives in the town. They have historically had a successful relationship with Thames Valley
Police. Toby Mullins is vice chairman on Pubwatch, the scheme whereby police, licensing authority and licensed
venues work together to combat any issues that arise in the town. Rachel (the manager at Matchbox) is helping you in
relation to Best Bar None, which is a licensed venue accreditation scheme where all venues in town are inspected
and accredited. Toby's events company runs 13 weekly student nights in the town centre & actively assists TVP in
their preparations for Fresher's Week in September. He has done for the past 8 years. Matchbox also employs the
highest accredited door company, Professional Security, and will pass on the concerns expressed by you about their
staff to allow them to assess and comment on themselves.

Change in working with the operators

We understand that there has been a recent change in how you have been corresponding with the operator and they
have raised concerns where previously there was an open and honest dialogue, this appears to have been replaced
by a hardening of attitudes. Previously, you have worked with the operators, but there have recently been surprise
visits to premises and discussions with general managers without the operators present. A concern has been raised
in relation to the additional pressure this puts on management who feei that they are being unduly pressured by the
police to taking actions without the operators always being present to give their views and work with you. We have
also been informed that the operators have concerns that meetings, such as on the 26 April, that were arranged as an
informal discussion, are then escalated by the police to official meetings/ performance reviews without any prior
warning.

Good working practices

The operators have informed us that whilst there are occasional incidents at the premises (as one would expect at
any premises operating late in a city centre), there has been proactive management in dealing with them, all of which
has been communicated to you at the time to ensure the continuing good working relationships. This has included
changes to door personnel and management procedures to look to ensure the licensing objectives are promoted. The
operators take this very seriously and have been proactive in employing significant numbers of door staff, utilising
search and club scan procedures and taking other measures to promote the objectives. Your letter makes no
reference to this.

Allegations

In addition, the operators are concerned that the way in which certain matters have been presented to my client is not
a fair reflection of what occurred when properly put into context. For instance, the allegation of a blocked fire escape
fails to mention that the meeting was at midday when the premises was not trading and a stock had just been
delivered. If it provides comfort, a fire inspection was subsequently undertaken where no concerns were raised in that
regard. On a similar note, the allegation in relation to a person banned from premises in Reading entering Matchbox
does not appear to take into account the active measures the premises takes to ensure that barred people are not
permitted entry. Now that the premises are aware of the individual, he has been added to the list of barred persons.
Again, a little context would assess us in investigating matters fairly.

The operators have raised a more general concern that you have been conflating the arrival of persons into Reading
with the promotion of 'urban nights' at the premises. We understand that Reading has a number of venues promoting
either urban nights or putting on nights based around urban music. We have been informed that there is no evidence

that such persons, where known to the premises, have been permitted entry.

Further, we are given to understand that the people of concern have been coming into Reading long before Matchbox
promoted any 'Urban’ events and that to suggest therefore that the premises is responsible in these circumstances is
an unfair assertion. With respect, it is the role of the police to protect people in Reading (including businesses such as
Matchbox) from known trouble makers, not to put the onus on individuals who do not have policing powers to do so.

We note that the incidents referred to in your letter to Greene King and to the operators do not necessarily suggest
that they are as serious when you are addressing one party and not the other. It would be helpful if you could explain
this seeming difference.

Proposed amendments

You have put forward a series of proposed changes to the premises licence on a 'take it or leave it basis'. With

respect, this approach does not sit well with the regulator's code or the approach we would usually expect from police
or licensing officers in terms of partnership working. Having gone through the conditions, we cannot agree to make

2
Page 126



the minor variation in the format proposed. The fact that there are general conditions requiring draconian measures
every night of the week without differentiating between nights you have classified as being of concern and other
trading nights means we cannot agree with your assessment that this is a proportionate or reasonable response. We

are not satisfied that the allegations requi - ;
have been made aware that the operators have been providing you with management plans and risk assessments of

*high risk' events that have, in the main appeared to have been held without any crime and disorder associated with
them. Again, this is something you do not mention in your letter.

My client is very happy to work with you, but unfortunately, the conditions as drafted would cripple the business and
the evidence to support their imposition does not, in our view, make a case to support their requirements.

As stated above, and you will know from previous matters of concern, Greene King Will always work with the police
and would be more than happy to meet with you, either with or without the operators, to discuss your concerns more
fully and gain a better understanding of why you have made such unilateral threats in relation to the licence. You must
appreciate, however, that a short letter alleging incidents, followed by threats of action, are not conducive to feeling
that you are working with the operator or the licence holder in a proactive and collegiate way.

Please can you contact me and we can discuss how best to proceed.
Yours sincerely
Piers Warne

Associate
for TLT LLP

solicitors.com

Manage vour preferances to receive tailored legal insights and invitations to our gvents programme.

Please be aware of the increase in cybercrime and fraud

TLT will not send you information about changes to bank account details by email.

If you receive an email purporting to be from someone at TLT advising you of a change to bank account details it is not genuine. Do not reply to the email or
act on any information it may contain. Instead please contact the person dealing with your matter immediately.

TLT accepts no responsibility if you transfer money to a bank account which is not ours.

Please note we do not accept service by email.

The information in this email is confidential and may be privileged. it is for use by the addressee only. If you are not the addressee or if this email is sent to
you in error, please let us know by return and delete the email from your computer. You may not copy it, use its contenis or disclose them to another person.
No liability is accepted for viruses and it is your responsibility to scan any attachments. TLT LLP, and TLT NI LLP (a separate practice in Northern ireland)
operate under the TLT brand and are together known as “TLT". Any reference in this communication or its attachments to ‘TLT' is to be construed as a
reference to the TLT entity based in the jurisdiction where the advice is being given. TLT LLP 1s a limited liability partnership registered in England & Wales
number OC308658 whose registered office is at One Redcliff Street, Bristol, BS1 6TP. TLT LLP is authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation
Authority under 1D 406297. In Scotland TLT LLP is a muiti national practice regulated by the Law Society of Scotland. TLT (NI) LLP is a limited liability
partnership registered in Northern Ireland under ref NC000856 whose registered office is at Montgomery House, 29-33 Montgomery Street, Belfast, BT1
4NX. TLT (NI) LLP is regulated by the Law Society of Northern Ireland under ref 9330.

TLT LLP and TLT (NI) LLP are recognised as Data Controllers under data protection legisiation. if you would like to find out more about how we use personal
data and your rights in relation to your personal data please see read our privacy notice which is available on our website.

TLT LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority under reference number FRN 780419. Details of our FCA penmissions can be found
on the Financial Services Register at httos://reqister.fca.org.uk

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

3
Page 127



Headquarters, Newsham Court, Pincents Kiln, Calcot, Reading, RG31 7SD

Ms Bass Your Ref:

Matchbox Our Ref:  JW/75444
5-6 .Friar Street Ask for:  James Whitton
Reading Date: 10 July 2018
RG1 1DB

Dear Madam,

Letter of Fire Safety Matters
Premises: Matchbox, 5 — 6 Friar Street, Reading, RG1 1DB

| visited your premises on 15 June 2018 and evaluated the fire safety provided. | am of
the opinion that some people are at risk in case of fire. You have an ongoing duty to
ensure the safety of people. The attached schedule sets out what you need to do.

Timescale for Completion

You should complete the work outlined in the schedule as soon as possible, balancing
the need for safety against the demands on your business or undertaking. | will visit
again and will contact you in approximately 2 month(s) (from the date of this letter) to
arrange my next visit. You should complete the actions and outcomes before that visit.

Consequence for Non-compliance

If you do not do the work in the schedule before my next visit (or | find that safety
provisions have worsened), the authority may serve an enforcement notice on you. An
enforcement notice would legally bind you to do the work.

Fire Safety Management
The schedule sets out what you need to do to improve fire safety. Taking this advice
will help you to sustain those improvements.

Review Risk Assessment
You should review your fire risk assessment regularly especially if:

i.  There is reason to suspect that people are not safe in case of fire, or
ii.  There has been a significant change to the preventive and protective measures you have
taken in case of fire.

Where in consequence of any such review, changes to your safety measures are required; you
should make those changes.

YA
W

Enabting peopte to lead safe and fulfilling lives

Trevor Ferguson « Chief Fire Officer

Page 128



Review Measures

To stop your fire safety falling below an acceptable standard again, you should put in

place a system of planning, organising, controlling, monitoring and reviewing the
performance of each of the fire safety measures you have in place

Maintenance

You should ensure that fire safety equipment and systems are properly tested and maintained
so that they will work when needed.

information for Employees

All your employees should be given information on the fire safety measures you have in place to
protect them.

Alternative Solutions

If you want to use a different solution to bring about safety from fire please contact me
to discuss an action plan. An action plan might enable you to apply an equally
appropriate safety solution to better meet your needs. Any alternative solution you
propose must meet the ‘outcome(s)’ stated in the schedule.

Have your say

If you are unhappy with the way the inspection has been conducted, or wish to make a
complaint concerning any aspect of an inspection, our contact details are at the top of
this page.

Yours faithfully,
- W,”ﬂk—/
O

James Whitton
Authorised Fire Safety Inspecting Officer
And on behalf of the Royal Berkshire Fire and Rescue Authority

Enc: Schedule attached

ROYAL BERKSHIRE Trevor Ferguson « Chief Fire Officer

Enabling people to fead safe and fulfilling lives

Page 129



Important Information - schedule referred to in letter

Notes to this schedule:

The government guidance most suitable to your premises is Fire Safety Risk
Assessment in Small and Medium Places of Assembly, which can be found at
hitp.//www.cfoa.org.uk/19512

Before you make certain changes to the premises, you may have to apply for
approval from statutory bodies and/or others having interest in them. If you have
doubt about the need for approval, you should ask the relevant body. For example,
you may have to apply for approval from a Building Control Body to make material
alterations. You might also need to apply for the property owners' permission or for
listed building consent, among others.

Item number 1 - Obstructed External Escape Route

Outcome This work is necessary to provide sufficient escape routes (corridors,
stairs and doors) for people.

Suggested | Ensure that everyone can evacuate quickly and safely by removing the
Action combustible items from the rear escape route.

There should be no items stored underneath the external staircase
and the route from the rear of the premises through the shared escape
route should be kept free from obstruction.

Reason The escape routes from the ground and first floors were partially
obstructed by combustible items.

This would delay or prevent people escaping quickly and safely from
fire

litem number 2 - Add Device To Alarm

Outcome This work is necessary to detect fire and raise an alarm.

Suggested | Ensure that people in the first floor offices receive an early warning in
Action case of fire by providing fire detection (linked to the fire alarm system)
in the rooms leading to the Directors office.

This is necessary to compensate for the inner room conditions created
by the internal building alterations.

The changes should be carried out and commissioned by a competent
person.

Reason The only way out from offices is through other rooms. People in these
offices could be trapped by a fire in the room leading to it.

ROYAL BERKSHIRE Trevor Ferguson « Chief Fire Officer

Enabling people to lead cafe and fulfilling lives

Page 130




Item number 3 — Maintenance.

Outcome This work is necessary to ensure the break glass call points, smoke
detectors and emergency lighting units are working.

Suggested | Ensure that the above are properly tested and maintained.

ction

Acto Having a competent engineer service the Automatic Fire Detection on
a 6 monthly basis and emergency lighting on an annual basis is
strongly recommended.

Reason The above were not frequently tested and maintained. At the time of
the inspection, the fire alarm panel was indicating at least 1 fault. This
means that it could fail without warning or at the moment it is needed
most and that people would be at risk in case of fire.

Item number 4 — Obstructed Internal Escape Route

Outcome This work is necessary to provide sufficient escape routes (corridors,
stairs and doors) for people.

Suggested | Ensure that everyone can evacuate quickly and safely by keeping the

Action internal escape routes from the second and first floor areas free from

storage. This route appears to have been designed as a protected
escape route .

Reason

The escape route from the second and first floor areas were found to
contain significant amounts of combustible storage.

This would delay or prevent people escaping quickly and safely from
fire.

Item number 5 - Provide Exit Signs

Outcome This work is necessary to provide sufficient escape routes (corridors,
stairs and doors) for people.

Suggested | Provide exit signs at the rear of the ground floor licensed area and the

Action first floor smoking area so that people can identify the nearest safe
way out. These signs should be automatically illuminated.

Reason The rear exit and the external escape route were not easy to see from
the ground floor licensed area or the first floor smoking area meaning
that people might take longer to find an exit than necessary.

ROYAL BERKSHIRE Trevor Ferguson « Chief Fire Officer

FIRE/AND RESCUE SER

Enabling people to lead safe and fulfilling lives

Page 131




Item number 6 — Damaged Door Furniture

Outcome This work is necessary to provide sufficient escape routes (corridors,
stairs and doors) for people.

Suggested | Ensure that everyone can evacuate quickly and safely by repairing or

Action replacing the push par on the emergency exit at the rear of the
licensed area.

Reason The escape route from the licensed area was potentially unusable as

the door furniture was damaged.

This would delay or prevent people escaping quickly and safely from
fire.

Item number 7 - Cooperation/Coordination

Outcome This work is necessary to provide sufficient escape routes (corridors,
stairs and doors) for people.

Suggested | Cooperate with neighbouring premises and they must cooperate with

Action you. The cooperation must ensure that the escape route(s) protect
you all.

Reason You share some fire safety measures with other people, which they
rely on for their safety and for which you are responsible.

ROYAL BERKSHIRE Trevor Ferguson ¢« Chief Fire Officer

Enabllng peopie to lead safe and fulfiliing lives

Page 132

......



M Alison Bell
“!‘. @ Readlng Di‘rs‘::‘?tore of Environment and

| H | *
oughrCounci Neighbourhood Services

Working better with you Civic Offices, Bridge St, Reading, RG1 2LU
@ 0118 937 3787

Our Ref:EVU 053503

The Licensing Manager e-mail: richard.french@reading.gov.uk

Greene King Brewing and Retailing

Westgate Brewery 10 July 2018
Bury St Edmunds
Suffolk
IP33 1QT
L J
Your contact is: Mr Richard French, Licensing
Dear Sirs

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Number:LP2002226

Premises: Matchbox

Premises Address: 5-6 Friar Street, Reading, RG1 1DX

During my inspection, | found a number of items that require your attention as outlined
below:

1) Condition (d) within Annex 2 in relation to refresher training was not being complied
with. Having perused the training documents it does not seem to cover any information

on the law in relation to underage sales and how to deal with and log refusals. Please
ensure this is rectified.

2) Condition (m) within Annex 2 in relation to the CCTV system was not being complied
with. The system was shown to only be recording for 28 days. The condition states that
the system should record for 31 days. | also do not believe that the CCTV system is of
sufficient quality as to be able to identify the recorded person. There are also blind spots
which means that there is not sufficient coverage in all areas. This would likely lead the
current CCTV system to also being breach of condition (l) as it would likely not be
approved by Thames Valley Police. There is also a concern, which | expressed, that it
would be unlikely for any person to be able to be identified from the CCTV alone. It is, |
believe, the fact that the Club Scan device is being used on Friday and Saturday that
persons are able to be identified. Please ensure that the CCTV system is rectified so that
it complies with condition (1) and condition (m).

3) Condition (q) within Annex 2 in relation to the use of an incident book was not being

OTTTDtIe O W —Y 6 de S d d Sa c nigh ho door team

can log incidents in their door book, | do not believe that is sufficient - particularly on

18-07-10 RBC Insp Letter.docx Page 1 0of 3
Page 133



other nights that the premises may open (for example on student nights when door
supervisors may not be employed). All staff should be trained to use the incident book
and record the details as per the condition. Please ensure this is rectified.

4) The address stated on the DPS’s personal licence stated the incorrect address. Please
contact Reading Borough Council to update the details on the personal licence.

5) The address stated for the DPS on the premises licence is incorrect. Please contact
Reading Borough Council to update the details on the premises licence.

6) Condition (h) within Annex 2 in relation to the door supervisor register was broadly
being complied with but there were instances where there were gaps in the information
provided. Please ensure that the door book is filled in correctly and signed off by the
duty manager. We also discussed why the recording of the number of patrons in the door
book seemed to cease at 0100hrs and that you were going to instruct your door team to
fill in the book after 0100hrs. This will assist in monitoring your numbers on the
premises. You also stated that the door supervisors were conducting toilet checks as per
your written drugs policies but these are not being recorded. It is recommended that
they are as toilet checks are a useful deterrent for potential drug misuse.

Events at the premises:

We spoke about the events that you currently hold at the premises to ascertain what
other measures, if any, were put in place to manage them. You confirmed that you were
undertaking the following with minimal disruption to the running of the business:

a) You confirmed that the business was only operating on a Friday and Saturday night at
this time.

b) You confirmed that you employed ten door supervisors for your current Friday night
event and capped the capacity at 300. It was confirmed that all door staff were in situ at
the premises by 2300hrs. This is a ratio of 1:30 which is welcome.

¢) You confirmed that the club scan device was being utilised on both a Friday and
Saturday night from when the premises opens to the public. Given the deficiencies in the
CCTV system - particularly the concern that it may not be of sufficient quality to identify
individuals - this is welcome but does not negate the issues with the CCTV system.

d) You confirmed that you conducted 100 percent searches of patrons on both Friday and
Saturday nights. You also confirmed that you were aiming to employ a female member of
door staff to be able to carry out these searches on female patrons. Bag and pocket
searches were being carried out on female patrons.

e) You confirmed that you were using plastic cups for decanting drinks on both a Friday
and Saturday and that you were phasing out all glassware at the venue. You confirmed
that if you were to host student nights on a Thursday that polycarbonate glasses will be
used.

f) You confirmed that you have a dispersal policy wherein the music is turned off/down
at 0200hrs; the sale of alcohol ceases at 0215 and that patrons are off the premises at
0230hrs. You then confirmed that door staff are then dispersing customers in the street
wearing their high visibility tabards supplied by Reading BID. This is welcome. | would

18-07-10 RBC Insp Letter.docx Page 2 of 3
Page 134



suggest that the sale of alcohol also cease at 0200hrs to allow for a much more gradual
dispersal from the premises and to bring it into line with the rest of your dispersal

policies such as reducing music levels.

g) You confirmed that a list of events were being sent to Thames Valley Police on a
regular basis but were unsure whether a risk assessment for those events had been
conducted. It is recommended that a risk assessment for the events on Friday and
Saturday are carried out and submitted to TVP. You kindly agreed to send the lists of
events and any risk assessment to the Licensing team at the Council as well.

h) You confirmed that the capacity for the venue was 343 - as set by the fire service on
their most recent visit.

Please ensure that points 1-6 above are rectified within 14 days of receipt of this letter.
Please notify me when you believe the points have been rectified so that | can arrange a
re-inspection.

Should you wish to discuss the issues in this letter then please contact me.

Yours faithfully

Mr Richard French
Licensing Enforcement Officer

18-07-10 RBC insp Letter.docx Page 3 of 3
Page 135



Licensing Team Licensing Dept
THAMES VALLEY Reading Borough Council Reading Palice Station

£ Reading

Borough Council ™ | Po Ll‘ :E Bridge Street, RG1 2LU Castle Street, RG1 7TH
A ' Tel: 01189 37 37 62 Tel: 101
licensing@reading.gov.uk
PREMISES - RECORD OF INSPECTION DATED: o o@'eading.gov.u

Licence No: F 2007 —llé .
RS NAATC N0

Address: —
=76 Rean (1T Léow ik, L4 IDX

Type: Premises Licence |-GtabPrémises Cemricate

Licence Inspection

.

Summary on Display: [ Yes ,Z’(o Correct Part A/Conditions held at Premises: [ Yes 8To &.rﬁsla 2
Premises Licence Holder: _ 3 f€nsez bt oas 4 DPS: ’2 pMer.  £ACC

DPS as per Licence: EYes O No DPS Present?~t1Yes O No

If No, Reason: Authorised Person:

Licensable Activities (Carried On)

Reaqulated Entertainment: Playe-Rilms-| lndeor-Sporting-Events-| BexingfWrestiing | Live
Music | Recorded Music | Patfnmmanse-ef-Danee Anything Similar

Are there any gaming machines? If so, how many? el
Gaming permit produced and correct?
Late Niaht Refreshment, £ Yes 0O No Sale/Supply of A!QQDQ!M ONo Location: On | Off @:)

Daes the Licence/Certificate permit activities carried on? £TYes 'L No

Conditions of Licence/Certificate

Pone e 2 (R\ TG ABYICE Livizn) ('L STAPF anT wm«m'o) ,
(0) - Luivpe fembson Fusa GmpuanT - AdUCen sSonealdlpeer Maone)
;Q ~ DU E (WY - VT VDD CT) ANIEE Oru, o ™0 Lo mT16w foitr
4 )~ Wt wMPl§Mt Ul DL ot ot Sangx L- Naugah Aok Nifrrdvqﬁhfv\@

Summary of Key Points Discussed

Al 51‘\%W&m DJ7I—M6» Il bpttisr M-LMZAJI‘»"SL Minagegl

, Lo
' NEep v (i,
Doeedeflt (oe Coongpned Futs pevuvy o tonyrg dlosk Juvis

fe repuined  srnemt. - Grddes ot v, tehordba bt

Document Checklist

by
)

(] Age policy operated__ 2 & { B Training Records

Awareness of the Licensing Objectives by Licence Holder/DP@ } B — Fair | C — Bad (Circle Appropriate)

Inspection Outcome: O Satisfactory ,B./Unsatisfactory C.{ / (f N
Lead Authority Inspecting Officer(s): 9( P {(Jaridad L~ JiAerZ A / DM VAL 1oy 7

Signature of licensee or representative(s): (L (ng

Date of Inspection: I\.—rll i / 1 ¥

Time Started: [Z Q0 | Time Ended: [&' Q;L- :

Page 136



INSPECTING OFFICER: P L S12™  Siampay (D rtin // Dbzt s~ L¢¢77ﬂ ’

(o df
SIGNATURE OF LICENSEE/REPRESENTATIVE:

DATE OF INSPECTION: [ q’,/ 1;/ i8

Page 137



THAMES VALLEY
POLICE LICENSED PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

Submitting Officer =~
‘Shoulder No/Name: P5787 Wheeler Station: Reading LPA: Reading

[Incident References” | B
‘ Premises Name/Location:  Matchbox, Friar Street, Reading

incident Date: 6"-7t May 2018 Incident Time: 2200-0230
| Command & Control URN:  N/A Crime Report(s): N/A
CCTV Seized? ET CCTV available
Sources of Information: Liam king (CCTV Operator)
/Nature of incldent = what happened? " | ; R an e ey

| Matchbox management informed TVP that a high risk event "This is RUM" scheduled for bank holiday Sunday 6%
| May 2018 had been cancelled due to "other venue intell".
' However, CCTV reported that the crowd that attended the premises appeared as that that were due to attend the

This is RUM event and it was suspected that the management team had not been truthful as to the evfents
cancellation.

 Premises Response — what part did staff play? How did they reactassist (include good/poar performance)? =]

‘ During a visit to the premises on 9" May 2018 the DPS stated that the event had been cancelled on the Saturday

| morning prior to the event via a Whatsapp message to the promoters. However, no social media information was |

| supplied via Matchbox accounts to promote the cancellation and she also stated that no effort had been made to see

‘ if the promoter had taken any steps to advertise the cancellation except from removing material from their site, even
though many tickets had been sold.

| The DPS stated that all tickets that had been sold were honoured and therefore the attending crowd were in effect
| the original persons whom the promotion was sold to originally. The caveat being that different DJ's were playing.
i It was confirmed that no record was kept as to how many entrants on the night had tickets.

" Police Response ~ what action was taken? Please identify the main officers who deaft with the incident. = |
l

Visit to premises to check CCTV, which confirmed as suspected that the crowd within the premises was linked to the
originally promoted event and supported the notion that it was likely cancelled in name only.

Record of this incident to be maintained on Police systems.

During the visit it was established that the premisese CCTV system is inadequate in that it does not cover all licensable
areas and the fire exit leading to Friar Street was partiall obstructed.
Details passed to RBFRS.

"Persons Inveived 110 add ora fows ik ints the final 6ei of this tabie

Name Date of Birth Role Action Taken

When complete, please forward to the Licensing Officer for the area (and anyone else as per local instructions)

GEN 40 (01/2013)

Page 138



}:3'.5 THAMES VALLEY
& POLICE LICENSED PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

e e e : TRl et e

Submitting Office S TR T RN g
iShouIder No/Name: P5787 Wheele Station: Reading LPA: Reading

Uincident References
| Premises Name/Location:

Matchbox, Friar Street, Reading, Berkshire

Incident Date: 27/05/2018 Incident Time: 01:55

Command & Control URN: 176, 195, 176. 170 Crime Report(s): 43180159795, 43180159702
l CCTV Seized? By OIC's
! Sources of Information: PC 3004 Lagoy, PC 1843 Bridger-Wilkinson

" Natire Bf Wieident = What iappened?

| 2 x incidents occurred within a short time inside Matchbox.

‘ 1) A female was hit with a bottle during an argument with another female causing a small cut to her head requiring 5
treatment The assailent is suspected to be the male partner of the female she was arguing with. The injured female
‘ was not willing to date to support the Police investigation.

‘ 2) A male was attacked in an unprovoked attack on the dancefloor by another male. Initially reported as a glassing
| incident but the victim suspects the cut he has received may have been caused by a ring when punched.

o
* Also a banned individual had been allowed into the premises, and other concerns regarding the heavy consumption
of large bottles of Vodka have arisen.

[Premises Response - what part did star

in relation to both incidents to date it has been reported that CCTV was of poor quality due to how busy the venue |
was regarding the incidents, combined with poor coverage and blind spots.

| One victim feels that he was ushered out of the premises in a manner that gave rise for him to suspect that staff were
\ covering up the incident and no persons were detained by staff.

|

‘ Numerous calls were received by Police from many sources however the premises failed to report the incidents to
| the Police either via their Townsafe radio or 999. Indeed when requested by the CCTV operator and officers for |
information via their townsafe radio no reply was made at any stage. -

The initial officer report to Licensing regarding this states:-

"In regards to Matchbox, | know my colleagues already briefly spoke to you about it, but basically they had two |
incidents very close in time scale which they didn’t bother reporting to us, we were only made aware as we drove |
passed the female with blood gushing down her face and when we went to check CCTYV found another male out the
front had been bottled.

The male who was bottied actually was completely sober, the staff threw him out and paid no interest to him at all
and he felt like the staff were either “in on it" or not doing their job.

| We had several URN's coming from other persons (SCAS and the male victim) yet nothing from the club itself. They |
seemed completely uninterested when we turned up. When we asked them about the bottle incident they were like |
“oh yeah we had two" like it was a normal thing."

"Policé Response = what action was taken? Please identify the main officers who dealt with the incident

GEN 40 (01/2013) Page 139



5 THAMES VALLEY
YyPOLICE Licensep PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

| B
| Ongoing investigations into the incidents are taking place and copies of CCTV have been requested from the OIC's.

| There appears to be a lack of co-operation from the premises and again this incident has occurred since the genre
| of music has been changed at the premises posing questions surrounding the risk of these events.

ltis concerning with regards to both the victim and the officers detailing question marks over the premises "covering |
up" the incidents. ;

From an objective perspective the CCTV coverage is a concern and | suggest the current conditon requires updating
and the system upgrading and extra cameras fitted to cover all the licensable area so that no blind spots are apparent.

| 1 also believe that it is imperative to ensure that polycarbonate glassware is used and all bottied alcohol is decanted
into safe containers; which shall require conditioning.

This is the second incident involving the usage of glassware as a weapon in the last two months and in terms of time
the incident in April occurred circa 0125 and this most recent at 0155 hours. | would argue that this poses gestions in
relation to intoxication, crowd control and the propensity to commit violent acts.

Therefore | would also recommend a reduction in hours from 0200 for the supply of alcohol to 0100 hours as well as
a reduction in the hours open to the public from 0230 to 0130.

| Itis my understanding the [D scan is being used voluntarily on some promoted events of a higher risk - This event
| was identified as higher risk. Therefore | believe that ID scan or similar system should be included as a licence
condition as well as an improved door security condition outlining safe numbers of staff for the premises.

| Details to RBC for urgent partnership discussion in relation to urgent review.

*Images of banned individual and intoxication preserved from facebook.

| Persons Involved - to add more rows click into the final cell of this table

RefNo.

Name Date of Birth Role | Actlon Taken (e Custody, PND etc)

When complete, please forward to the Licensing Officer for the area (and anyone else as per local instructions)

GEN 40 (01/2013)

Page 140



Images taken from “The Box” Sat 26" May 2018 at Matchbox

Banned individual

Suspected drunk male on the right and lots of alcohol and shots (irresponsible/
service to drunks)?

Page 141



Banned individual (2)

Page 142



3 THAMES VALLEY
5 Po LlCE LICENSED PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

[—hn._.--.._.... 1.0

| Premises Name/Location:  Matchbox

Incident Date: 12/10/2018 Incident Time: 02:50hrs
‘ Command & Control URN: 1068 of 15/10/2018 Crime Report(s):
! CCTV Seized? No
' Sources of Informatlon Victim i

" Nature of Incident = what happened
Whilst on a night out with her friend /
believes her drink may have been spiked due to accepting @ drnk from an unknow male, and within an hour was
unable to stand and was violently sick. The victim states that this took piace at about 01:00hrs on 12/10/2018 however |

| did not report this for a few days due to being unsure weather to contact the police or not. @D states that this
is not normal for her and although is unable to evidence at this time that her drink was spiked, she wanted to make
us aware of this incident whereby she ended up in hospital.

R

ses Regpgy_ge*-

The victim has spokento several members of staff within the venue who advnsed that management would be in touch
_uith her hawever as of yet they have not contacted the victim.

“Police Response ~ what actionwas ta Ken? Please identify the main officers who!¢ dealt with the incident.

The victim is not looking to make any compliant and cannot prove anything has taken place however feels that she
| needed to make police aware to prevent any further instances at the venue.

_ o N e y.PND ete) _
aEm— _~ ”lm

When complete, please forward to the Licensing Officer for the area {and anyonmmmmﬁmm—

GEN 40 (01/2013)

Page 143



i THAMES VALLEY
Po LICE LICENSED PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

‘Shoulder NoIName P6036 Perklns Station: Reading

i=_§_:_;tﬁéi&%ﬁﬁf&éﬁiéﬁé@ SE NN
'. Premises Name/Location:  Matchbox

Incident Date: 13/10/2018 Incident Time: 0249hrs
. 4913/10/2018 Crime Report(s): 43180312948
| Command & Control URN: 171 13/10/2018
| CCTV Seized? No.
Sources of Information: Police

Nature of Incident -

hd

vhathappened? 7

Matchbox was holding an event where they had someone called "Noughty" and several other artist performing at the
venue. This then attracted a crowd of people who were not local or from the Reading area, the majority of people
which officers spoke to were from London.

Two separate incidents have occurred, the first one (49 13/10/2018) being a domestic assault whereby the female
and male have left Matchbox, the male has then dragged the female along the street and started hitting her with his
coat whilst she was curled up on the floor. the second incident occurred after Matchbox had closed and kicked
everyone out a large group of roughly 50-60 peopie gathered along Friar Street and a fight broke out.

Premises ‘Response — what part did staff play? How did they react/assist (include good/poor performance)?.

Staff from the premises were not spoken to when either of the separate incidents occurred. this was due to the fact
that at the time we had minimum units to assist and at the time attention was on dealing with the incident.

Wl

Regardlng the domestic assault, the male was arrested for this offence and taken to Loddon. The female was taken
back to Reading in order for her to provide a statement, however she changed her mind and a PNB entry was taken
and aggreed for Police to ring her in the morning to discuss further when she is sober.

. No one from the large group was willing to engage with police and tell them exactly what happened or who was
involved. Police stayed on scene until the group dispersed, no other issues occurred whilst Police were on scene.

Date of Blrth Role Actlon Taken

s - . ___{e.g. Custody, P.ND etc)
Y | Suspect | | Arrested
| Gy | Aggrieved g Taken to EA and

| PNB entry taken

i _ S

When complete, please forward to the Licensing Officer for the area (and anyone else as per local instructions)

GEN 40 (01/2013)

Page 144



8 i THAMES VALLEY
Po LICE LICENSED PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

§§{§fﬁ"6mtﬁiﬁ¢{gﬁi€”&iﬁg;
5|Shoulder No/Name: 1502

S P2

Incident References R
Premises Name/Location: MATCHBOX

! Incident Date: 20/01/19 Incident Time: 0200

| Command & Control URN: 110 20/01/19 Crime Report(s): 43190020115 & 43190020119 If
CCTV Seized? YES
Sources of Information: AGGRD |

" Nature 6f incident = what happened? : ;
THE TWO AGGRD HAVE BEEN IN MATCH BOX DURING AN EVENT NIGHT, AT THE START
THE AGGRD WAS ASSAULTED BY A MALE, AROUND HALF AN HOUR LATER THE AGGRD BOYFRIEND HAS

THEN BEEN ASSAULTED BY THE SAME MALES.

e A7 e

Ay

e

Premises Response = what partiaid staff play? How did they reacassist (inclide good/pocr performance)?

ABLE TO IDETIFY THE SUSPECTS ON CCTV.AND THE LIVE SCAN. REMOVED BOTH SUSPECTS FROM THE
PREMIS. WERE HAPPY TO HELP.

R‘!{T{J e

PGS R8st oy i K67 lease et e man ffcar who desl i 1
TWO OFFENDERS HAD LEFT.

SECURE CCTV AND LIVE SCAN

DEBRIEF VICTIMS

| OCC STILL BEING INVESTIGATING.

TR 3,.,.==-;-_-'."'t-'-'§@w""°.“'-“"-§_"':' i
final cell of this table

- ' i : T el f N". i
Date of Birth | Role Action Taken (e.g. Custody, PND etc)

oD ] AGGRD MG11 |

i AGGRD MG11 '

| P S : S |

’ | sUS V/| ARRANGED |

‘GEEENy | SUBJECT NFA
When complete, please forward to meﬁcemmmmﬂmf——‘
GEN 40 (01/2013)

Page 145



i THAMES VALLEY
POL'C E LICENSED PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

Shoulder No/Name: P6885 ~ station: EA ~ LPA: Reading

UIncident'References LoRARE e iy
Premises Name/l.ocation: Matchbox

Incident Date: 24/03/19 incident Time: 0230 hrs
{ Command & Control URN: 217 24/03/19 Crime Report(s):
CCTV Seized? No

Sources of Information:

Offlcers have dnven past Matchbox jUSt as it was closmg, some Ieavmg the venue seemed angry, as officers have
driven around the block ET have called up to report people fighting in Friar Street and one person knocked down in |
the middle of the road. Officers arrving back on scene have been met with a very hostile crowd. |

emises Response = what part did staff play? How did they react/assist (include good/poor performance)?

Door staff from Matchbox and potentially Yates were involved and managing to separate the crowd and also detain
people involved.

Many resources used to control the large group who were initially very hostile towards officers. One person arrested
for assault but victim did not support so he was de arrested.

| Itis becoming a regular problem with patrons of Matchbox causing issues having left the venue. The venue may

- manage to control issues from inside but they need to take more measures to stop issues when they leave.
|

e 'ws chck into’ the final cell of this te ble %

e R

Date of Birth Role Action Taken

Ref No.

. (e.g. Custody. PND etc)
~ ~ Suspect De arrested |

o = i — |
| | |
|

When complete, please forward to the Licensing Officer for the area (and anyone else as per local instructions)

GEN 40 (01/2013)

Page 146



Smyth Declan

PR 4= e
From: Smyth Declan
Sent: 06 December 2019 10:14
To: ‘Info Matchbox'
Cc: ‘licensingpp@greeneking.co.uk’; 'licensing@reading.gov.uk’
Subject: Matchbox, 5 Friar Street, Reading, RG1 1BB - Ney Year's Eve - Strictly Business

Presents Tion Wayne

I recently had a conversation with you at the October Pubwatch meeting, and highlighted to you the Thames Valley
Police Licensing Departments concerns in regards to the premises using external promoters and running high
energy/ high risk events. Over the last 18 months the premises have been directly involved in mass disorder
resulting in assaults, arrests and road closures in the early hours of the morning. TVP would support the premises
going forward if the premises management provided suitable risk assessments informing of future events,

and address our primary concerns over public safety and crime & disorder.

Whilst | can acknowledge that you are a new DPS at the premises, and that the ownership of the tenancy/ lease has
recently changed hands, if you continue to run theses type of events resulting in crime and disorder we at TVP will
have no option but to instigate the review process.

The premises is currently planning an event on New Year’s Eve with the artist Tion Wayne. | found the following on
the internet.

If you have any questions please don’t hesitate in contacting me.

Kind Regards

&Mﬂ SW

Declan Smyth C2107
Licensing Officer (Reading)
Police Station,

Castle St,

Reading RG1 7TH.

Telephone (Int) 351 6353, (Ext) 01865 8452459, {Mobile) 07800 703169
Email: Jecias syt O ameseals oo 0o lnE, I

(Office hours: Monday to Thursday 08:00 to 16:00 / Friday 08:00 to 15:30)

NOT RESTRICTED

S THAMES VALLEY

POLICE

1
Page 147



OFFICIAL MG11

WITNESS STATEMENT
(Criminal Procedure Rules 2015 R16.2, Criminal Justice Act 1967 S9, Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980 S5B)

URN

Statement of Declan Smyth

Age if under 18 Over 18 Occupation | Licensing Officer

This statement (consisting of 1 page(s)) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing that, if
it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which | know to be false,
or do not believe to be true.

Signature Declan Smyth Date 02/01/2020
Signature of parent / Relationship of parent /
guardian / appropriate adult guardian / appropriate adult

{-am Licensing Officer C2107 Declan Smyth of the Thames Valley Police currently stationed at Reading Police Station.
On Friday 6th December 2019 between 10:00 & 10:14 hours | phoned and emailed the premises — Matchbox, 5 Friar
Street, Reading, RG1 1BB.

| was not able to speak to the premises management directly as no one was picking up the phone.

I then emailed the following on Friday 6th December 2019 at approximately 1014 hours - “| recently had a conversation
with you at the October Pubwatch meeting, and highlighted to you the Thames Valley Police Licensing Departments
concerns in regards to the premises using external promoters and running high energy/ high risk events. Over the last 18
months the premises have been directly involved in mass disorder resulting in assaults, arrests and road closures in the
early hours of the morning. TVP would support the premises going forward if the premises management provided
suitable risk assessments informing of future events, and address our primary concerns over public safety and crime &
disorder.

Whilst | can acknowledge that you are a new DPS at the premises, and that the ownership of the tenancy/ lease has
recently changed hands, if you continue to run theses type of events resulting in crime and disorder we at TVP will have
no option but to instigate the review process.

The premises is currently planning an event on New Year's Eve with the artist Tion Wayne. | found the following on the
internet.

https://www.mirror.co.uk/news/uk-news/shocking-moment-grime-music-star-11495223

https://www bristolpost.co.uk/news/bristol-news/grime-star-tion-wayne-stamped-754319

If you have any questions please don't hesitate in contacting me.”

-
Signature: Declan Smyth Signature Witnessed by:  N/A
I 7S E——

Page 1 of 1




»
JPOLICE LiceEncED PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

P2527 Name: DAY-HUNT

READING LPA: READING

S s BT W e ]

Premises Name: MATCHBOX Location: FRIAR STREET, READING

Incident Date: 07/12/19 Incident Time: APPROX 02:20
Command & Control URN: NA Crime Report(s):
CCTV Seized: Yes - CAIRYTER2/15
BRI
=72087 5
Sources of information: Officer statements.

fIncident - what

. An incident has occurred within MATCHBOX, FRIAR STREET, READING in which 3 males have had an issue with
another group of males. This has resulted in aggressive behaviour and assaults occurring within the premises.

Bttt — R o ] o o AT e o it P S £ o 5

(43190382021). 3 males have been ejected onto Friar Street, resulting in these 3 males trying to regain entry into
the club. Punches and kicks have been used by these males to try and get past the 2 doormen keeping the other
larger group back from the doorway. Other security guards try to get through the larger group to assist but do not
push through the crowd enough to assist. Eventually members from the larger group end up briefly fighting at the

front doors with the 3 males.

Police arrive and detain the 3 males. Acting upon information that these males had cused criminal damage but

| nothing more, each male has been released with the venue not willing to support an investigation of criminal
damage.

|
MATCHBOX has now let the larger group, (who are regulars at Matchbox and are known to be violent at times) out
of the front doors into Friar Street. This group congregate out the front of the club with no ushering from door staff to
leave the area.

1 male from the 3 approaches the group in a threatening manner. This male is then assaulted by another. Police
restrain the victim and chase the suspect resulting in an arrest. ( 43190382019) . The smail amount of Police units
| on scene request further back up as there Is high tensions in the group.

The large group is still congregating around the front and door staff still do not try to move any of the group on,
despite it being close to closing time for the venue.

A short while later, the victim mentioned above approaches males from the larger group again, resulting in him
being punched once more, ( 43190382060 ) this again results in police chasing the suspect but the victim is also
chasing and this results in a small scuffle on MARKETPLACE, READING. Following this, the suspect is arrested.
Members of the larger group have also joined in the chase and arrive at Marketplace. Another suspect assaults
another male (unknown details of aggd).

Returning to Friar St, There are now large numbers of people outside the front of MATCHBOX and along the road.

refusing to leave however the threat of this results in No Gen35's being issued. A large police line is put across
Friar st to disperse the crowd.

GENA40 (10/2019) 5 149
age



FESHj THAMES VALLEY
) PO LICE LICENCED PREMISES INCIDENT REPORT

In CCTV, the larger group is full of agitated males all trying to get involved and being angry.

......

Promisos Response - what pert did staffplay? How did they reactassist (include goodpoor performance)

- Ejected 3 males from MATCHBOX and dealt with fight within MATCHBOX.

- Struggled to keep large group away from front doors resulting in small fracas at front doors.

- Security staff victim provided MG11 in relation to assault with chair

- Other security staff unsure of circumstances for further MG11'S so not provided due to large amount of
disorder.

- Staff did not assist in clearing street.

- CCTV provided by MATCHBOX which covers 2 assaults outside venue.

- During debrief of victim, other staff members could be heard talking about specific members in larger group
and how they are “nice, good lads”. Clearly door staff have some form of relationship with the members of
the larger group and consistently let them in most weeks.

ce R ) — wh s taken? Please identify the main officers who dealt with the incident

- Attended, detained initial 3. Following report of unsupported crim dam., suspects released.

- Detained and arrested further suspects of 3 consequent assaults.

- Had to request units from other areas, (00 shout) numerous units from neighhouring LPAs had to attend
due to large number of members of the public.

- Cleared Friar street with police line.

GEN40 (10/2019)
Page 150



‘JUBUWINOOP 3]qEeSO]ISIp e SI
(suononssuy [eao] 19d se asjo suofue pue) ease

|
|
uols|

suap

130d3d LNZAIDNI|B

(doz/o1) OYNID

suuew [euoissejosd e uj ajLim aseald os siapew uoiuido 1oL e
ojasay} pue sbuueay/sbunesw Buisusdlj ul pasn S| Wioj iYL ¢
Yy} 104 4221140 Buisued)] ay} o} premioj aseadld ‘@30jdwod Uy *
. _ :
)salie Aiojenidsal jo ynsai e se yjeaq Hlv3a 9
ainjeladwa} Apog >>o..._._ _..m:o_owco.ocD _ YINGD G
BuniwoA jem 1o puels Jouueyd ¥OdNAS 4 _
Um:sm.mc_v__m%»::o_t_m..m.cm_mmﬂo W&mwommmxm_ | _.,._.O_wlm-u_zn olr - -m
| AsmouQ wr.ho._wmc_vhmwo ”_Woa ‘peiinp cle m.m,wcom. _ .rszm_P_oxw Nlﬂ
IqIyuI paIamoT "annexie] “Bunenusouod Aynowia VIYOHdI}3 L9
i . I
JNoY UE Ui 3Uuup SUo Uey) ssa pey seH AL3Naqgs 0

ASINIYd a3ON3011

o]}

AITIVASIWVHLE

10d@




Wheeler Simon

From: James Morgan ~

Sent: 08 December 2019 10:14

To: Wheeler Simon; Graeme Marley

Cc: Smyth Declan; licensing@reading.gov.uk; Licensing; Cox Natalie; Jones Penelope
Subject: Re: Matchbox letter 06122019

Hi Simon

Thank you for your letter and documents.
I'have spoken to Greene King this morning and confirmed what we discussed on the phone last night.
The premises will remain closed until we redevelop the site.

I’'m happy to meet with you as is our buissness development manger from Greene King to discuss the operating of
the site going forward so you will have the confidence in what is planned going forward.

I can confirm there will no more nightclub at this site

No charge on the door entry

No outside promoters hosting events

I am available anytime on the phone or can make myself available to meet
Regards

James Morgan

Director
Big Smoke Brew Co Ltd

On 7 Dec 20189, at 23:08, Wheeler Simon <Simon.Wheeler@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk> wrote:

Dear Mr Morgan

As discussed a letter outlining Thames Valley Police concerns and actions regarding
Matchbox.

Please can you reply immediately in writing to confirm that you are voluntarily
closing until January 2019 when you intend to change the premises operating
model.

Also could you please confirm your current DPS so that a copy of any review
paperwork can be supplied to the premises (DPS) as well as the Premises Licence
Holder.

Page1152



Matchbox Glassing Injury 15/04/2018 (43180112076)

Page 153



THE CORNER HOUSE
Friar Street Reading

Overview

The Corner House will be a City Centre ‘craft’ bar, serving fresh food and with a first floor games
room based in a fantastic location in the heart of Reading. The bar will feature a roof terrace, purpose
built games room and seating for over 200 customers offering full table service, 7 days a week.

The brand new theatre Kitchen will open all day, serving Brunch, Lunch supper, freshly cooked and
responsibly sourced, using local produce where possible.

Entertainment will be diverse and designed to attract a wide range of customers. Live Sports, Live
Music, Quizzes and games, such as darts and shuffleboard.

The current look will be totally revamped and £500,000 invested into turning The Corner House into
something Reading can justifiably be proud of.

We are committed to working alongside Thames Valley Police Licensing to promote Reading as a
safe and healthy environment in which responsible operators provide lawful and responsible facilities
for the enjoyment of all of the town’s residents and visitors.

Our trained staff will enforce:

- The prevention of crime and disorder

- The prevention of public nuisance

- The protection of children from harm

- Public Safety

The offer
WHY

Corner House exists to bring people together to enjoy high quality food, drinks and service in a
convivial atmosphere.

WHAT

Corner House is part of an independent Pub group, brewery and distillery passionate about good beer
and friendly service. This offer will be on contrast to the ‘chain’ bars pubs and clubs in the area, open
all day and appealing to a mixed age group.

HOW

Corner House prides itself on offering a premium experience in comfortable surroundings with an
enticing range of drinks from independent and local suppliers. This is not a ‘stack ‘em high, sell ‘em
cheap’ offer; it rewards customers prepared to try something new and who are willing to pay a little
extra for it.

WHO

Corner House’s will become part of the operator’'s dynamic and passionate company. It is made up of
a diverse community of a likeminded individuals who are friendly humble and hard working. They are
committed to organically growing their business to serve their local communities and continue to build
experience for their customers.

VALUES

Page 154



We are looking to bring to Reading our core values:
Quality — Being the best we can be

Inclusivity — Here for all to enjoy

Fun — Its beer and games after all

Experience — trying new products each visit
About us

Project Managers

Company Director - James Morgan
Operation Manager — Jacques Pretorius
Executive Chef — Pier Driver

Staff Positions Jobs

General Manager — Rob Smith

Trained bar and service Staff — x15
Kitchen Staff — x6

Cleaner’s x2

Entertainment - Live Music Bands

Security as required to ensure our customers feel safe and enjoy their time with us.

The Premises Licence
Hours

Hours for licensable activities (performance of live and recorded music, sale of alcohol on and off the
premises and late night refreshment starting at 23:00 daily):

Sunday to Wednesday 11:00 to 00:00 the following morning
Thursday to Saturday 11:00 to 01:00 the following morning
Opening hours for the premises

Sunday to Wednesday 08:00 to 00:30 the following morning
Thursday to Saturday 08:00 to 01:30 the following morning
Seasonal variations

One additional hour Christmas Eve, Boxing day and New Year's Eve.

Page 155



One additional hour on the Sunday preceding a Bank Holiday Monday

Licensable activities until 02:30 New Year's Eve (into New Year's Day), with the premises closing at
03:00

Conditions
General

Staff will receive training in relation to the Licensing Act, and the conditions on the premises licence
prior to being permitted to sell alcohol.

A record of all staff training shall be maintained at the premises and made immediately available upon
request to an authorised officer of the Council or the Police. The documentation relating to training
should extend back to a period of three years and should specify the time, date and details of the
persons both providing the training and receiving the training.

All pre-booked events or functions (‘the event’) will be risk assessed (‘the assessment’) and a copy of
that assessment stored in either paper or electronic format for 6 months after the event. The
assessment will include the following information:

0 The date, start and end time of the event

0 Expected number of guests

0 Whether the event is ticket only

0 y Number (if any) of SIA security to be employed for the event and the times they will be
working

A minimum of 50% of floor space on the ground floor and 30% of floor space on the First Floor (not
including dart oches, shuffle boards or other game tables/ equipment) shall be given over to tables
and chairs

Prevention of Crime and Disorder

1 No externally promoted events or bookings shall be undertaken and no external promoters utilised
at the premises.

2 The Premises Licence Holder must ensure that the Designated Premises Supervisor holds
membership of, and actively participates in, the Reading Pub Watch Scheme, including making use of
apparatus supplied as part of the scheme

3 All instances of crime or disorder are to be reported by the designated premises supervisor or a
responsible member of staff to an agreed police contact point.

4 The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure the premises’ digitally recorded CCTV system cameras
shall continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and recordings shall be kept for a
minimum of 31 days with time and date stamping. The entire licensable area shall be covered by the
CCTV. Recorded images shall be of such quality as to be able to identify the recorded person in any
light. Data recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer of Thames Valley
Police or Reading Borough Council together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the
provisions of the Data Protection Act. At least one member of staff on the premises at any time during
operating hours shall be fully trained to access and download material from the CCTV system.

Page 156



5 The provision of door supervisors who have been accredited by the Security Industry Authority or
any accreditation scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority, shall be on duty as follows:

e Friday, Saturday and Sunday nights if the premises intends to trade past midnight: a
minimum of 3x door supervisors from 21:00 until the close of the premises

e When operating under a TEN to extend the hours past the terminal hour permitted by this
licence: a minimum of 3x door supervisors from 21:00 until the close of the premises

e When showing senior Men’s England Football matches in either the World Cup finals or
European Championship finals: a minimum of 3x door supervisors from one hour before the
match until at least two hours after the match, or until the premises closes, whichever is
earlier.

6 At all other times door supervisors to be provided as required on a risk-assessed basis. Such risk
assessments will be regularly reviewed to ensure that door supervisor provision is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

7 Whilst Door Supervisors are employed at the premises a minimum of 1 Door Supervisor working on
the entrance/ exit to the premises, and 1 internally within the premises (rising to 2 when both floors
are in operation) will be deployed with digitally recording Body Worn Video (BWV). The BWV will be
used to record any incidents which occur inside or outside of the premises involving customers,
prospective customers or any staff member that impact on any of the four licensing objectives. Data
recordings shall be made immediately available to an authorised officer of Thames Valley Police or an
officer from the Reading Borough Council together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to
the provisions of the Data Protection Act.

8 The premises licence holder shall ensure that the following details for each door supervisor, are
contemporaneously entered into a bound register kept for that purpose:

(i) Full name,

(i) SIA Certificate number and or badge number, or registration number of any accreditation scheme
recognised by the Licensing Authority (including expiry date of that registration or accreditation),

(iii) The time they began their duty
(iv) The time they completed their duty.

This register is to be kept at the premises at all times and shall be so maintained as to enable an
authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable to establish the particulars of all door
stewards engaged at the premises during the period of not less than 31 days prior to the request and
shall be open to inspection by authorised officers of the Licensing Authority or a constable upon
request.

9 The Premises Licence Holder (PLH) shall ensure that all door supervisors whilst employed at the
premises shall wear hi visibility jackets/ tabards in bright green, yellow or orange in order that they
can be clearly visible and identifiable at all times to the public and via CCTV both internally and
externally. When tabards are worn, hi visibility armbands must also be worn that incorporate
displaying SIA badges. If hi visibility full sleeved jackets are worn the PLH must ensure that all door
supervisors badges are also displayed via an easily visible arm band of a different hi visibility colour to
the jacket that is being worn.

10 The DPS will draw up and operate a drugs policy (‘the policy') which will be disseminated to staff
and SIA door staff as required. The policy will set out that checks and measures to be used to deter
the taking of illegal substances and what measures are to be taken if it is suspected that customers
are taking or dealing illegal substances. This policy will be made available to the Police on request
and will be revisited and amended in line with agreed best practice.

Page 157



11 The premises licence holder shall require the designated premises supervisor, or in his/her
absence other responsible person, to keep an 'incident/refusals logbook in a bound book in which full
details of all incidents are recorded. This shall include details of any refused sales and shall give
details of the persons involved, incident description, time and date, actions taken and final outcome of
the situation. This shall be completed as soon as possible and in any case no later than the close of
business on the day of the incident. The time and date when the report was completed, and by whom,
is to form part of the entry. The logbook is to be kept on the premises at all times and shall be
produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable when required.

12 The premises licence holder or other responsible person shall ensure that there is a policy is in
place to prevent the sale of alcohol to customers who are drunk. The premises licence holder or other
responsible person shall ensure the policy is reviewed and updated on a regular basis. The policy
shall be available to the police or authorised officer of the council on request.

Public Safety

13 A written risk assessment shall be put in place to manage the queuing of patrons outside of the
venue on the public highway. This risk assessment shall be reviewed on a regular basis, be provided
in written form and be made available for inspection to officers of Reading Borough Council and
Thames Valley Police upon request

14 The premises licence holder shall ensure that all drinking glasses used within the premises are of
toughened or safety glass to the appropriate safety standard, in that they shall not produce sharp
shards when broken.

15 Except where expressly permitted no lasers, smoke producing effects, light shows (strobe lights)
or pyrotechnics shall be used at any time when licensable activity is taking place

16 No accumulation of combustible rubbish, dirt, surplus material or stored goods shall be permitted
to remain in any part of the premises except in an appropriate place and of such quantities so as not
to cause a nuisance, obstruction or other safety hazard.

Prevention of Public Nuisance

17 The Premises Licence Holder shall participate in the Local Town Radio Scheme when the
premises are opened for licensable activities after 2100hrs Monday to Sunday inclusive

18 A management plan (‘the plan’) will be drawn up for the proper management of the external areas,
to include regular supervision of customers, glass collection and the prevention of public nuisance

19 No drinks to be permitted to be consumed outside the front of the premises. Any off-sales must be
in sealed containers for consumption away from the premises.

20 No music or speech shall be relayed by external speakers.

21 All external doors and windows shall be kept closed other than for access and egress when
events involving amplified music or speech or taking place.

22 The DPS or designated manager shall ensure that no noise shall emanate from the premises nor
vibration be transmitted through the structure of the premises which gives rise to undue disturbance to
local residents.

23 The placing of bottles into receptacles outside the premises shall only take place between 08:00
and 19:00 hours.

24 Noise from any ventilation, refrigeration or air conditioning plant or equipment shall not cause a
nuisance to the occupants of any properties in the vicinity.

Page 158



Protection of Children from Harm

25 All staff to be trained in the prevention of underage sales to a level commensurate with their duties.
All such training to be updated as necessary, for instance following legislation changes. The training
should be clearly documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the member of staff
receiving it. The documentation shall be available for inspection on request by an authorised officer of
the Licensing Authority or a constable.

26 An approved proof of age scheme shall be adopted, implemented and advertised within the
premise such as “Challenge 25” whereby an accepted form of photographic identification shall be
requested before any alcohol is sold to any person who appears to be under 25 years of age.
Acceptable proof of age shall include identification bearing the customers photograph, date of birth
and integral holographic mark or security measure. Suitable means of identification would include
PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licence, military ID card, EU ID card and/or
passport

27 Publicity materials notifying customers of the operation of the Challenge 25 scheme shall be

displayed at the premises, including a Challenge 25 sign of at least A5 size at the entrance to the
premises and where practicable at each point of sale.

Page 159



The Scheme

We will be taking a tired premises and completely refitting and refurbishing it...

R

‘ ‘I ‘ 1M
m‘ “\“ “l,m\,,w

i

Page 160



We will be investing in the region of £500,000
to completely transform the premises.

'ONDoON DR
mo GIN e

s




|-
IANDWS 218

D)

D2 MIANE AINDWS D8

DOM3ANR.

%
i
g .
.
> e
. » - .
TS b
=N

The transformation will require a whole new layout, including an additional licensed area on the first
floor which will be our games room and where we will show sports...

Page 162



NATURAL LIGHT

RETRACTABLE CANVAS COVERING TO EXISTING PERGOLA

TIMBER BENCH SEATING WITH PLANTERS TO REAR

Allow 10 thoroughly ciean existing gents toilets and

ovide new vanily unit with
i and bib taps and repair
xisting foor fies where necessary.

Allow 10 lad rear
reclaimed timber boarding.

Allow 10 horoughly clean existng L
redecorate. Provide new limber boarding to rear wall of

ubicles, provide new vanity unit with
pipework and bib taps and repair existing floor tles where
acessary.

Sand and refinish existing timber
floorboards 1o staircase. Provide new non
Slip nosings with colour contrasting inlays.
and improve lighting.

Redecorate existing pergola and remove
‘Solid roof over. Provide new retractable
nvas roof covering.

Allow to sand and refinish exising
oking.

Install festoon lighting to existing pergola.

Radecorate existing pergola and remove
Solid r00f over. Provide new felractable
carwas roof covering

Construct new timber with
timber planter (o rear and new Venetian
fencing beninc
Provide metal trough planters with ciimbing
plants
Provide gate within new fence for
maintenance of condensers and exract,
Allow ‘0 extemal bar

Allow 10 extend roof terrace as indicated.
Provide new decking (o match existing,

New Venetian style fence paneis.

Staircase to second floor to be adapted
and moved back to accommaodate new
fire door to bottom. Relocate exising
(assumed) bathroom at second loor.

Construct new timber siud partfion to
provide suitable fira resistance 1o escape

Gonstruct new bar couner.

Giazed fire doors to be haid open on
s connected to the fre alarm

Allow 10 form new opening to

Exising dumb waiter t be exposed and
e = — - L
T 1 T shuffeboara
t ft 3
= ¥ shuffleboard }_U—F_
I m—
S = L
| T snutfeboars s —
TT 1T |
i — ——
1 o 1 2 3 d i3
Proposed First Floor Plan 1:50
Scale: 1:50 @ Al Meters

REVISIONS

A

Note

“Tris scheme has been produced sing drawings produced by oiner architects and tnerefore.
Design 1D cannot be held responsible for any iscrepencies with on sie dimensions. This
arawing is therefore not 1o be scaled and all dimensions are 10 be taken on sie prior 1o
ordering of any materials. Any discrepencies are (0 be feporied back [0 the designer.

5

rolink Business Cenre, Faversham, Kent, ME13 8GD

606 Fax 08712516713 E-mal: mail@design-id.d.uk

Page 163



Reinstate 2n0. existing windows.

DISHWASH

STAIRS
FROM I
CELLAR

PARTY WALL

CONCRETE EFFECT FLOOR TILES

SHELVING WITH METAL MESH DOORS

Remove raised floor and lay new timber
floorboards.

Prove ew heats iohen win wood fred

Allow for exposed extract as pizza oven |

doomed reauied by mechancal engineer

Sand and refinish
boarcing 1 starcass. Provid now o sip
nosings with colour contrasting inlays and
improve ighting

2
| KITCHEN B
[ —
! — %
| ! Alow to rodocorata oughout
1
| pick up 1 ‘
| i I
%
\ — X
S w — ] AN
!
= - T*::
Alow 1o thoroughly clean and redecoraie i i
existing wo. = Tt
== I ]
F PARTY WALL
| B ‘
~ 1 A i1
r Diswe | T [ ‘ Now fxed soating
| T
g disabiod we | } E,L n by
| T L
BAR | —
: servery | [ 1
Nl o crstuet o sy HEn Alow o uly comdor
Omm thick bulinose edge o front T L and lay new entrance matting.
ey we| I = s
o of e v | .
WASH I :Oi [ | floor ts.
| LT 1
SR =) funs: S —
h 1 A HL ove well liles at low level and clad
! | [ L’_l_'_'_r g saivaped tenber boarding
rebve idows 1 comaer ade and
M | [ — Sl 15 veromnl g 1o Froine
& i i board 1o ensure sultable fie resistance.
e T | ® oices maescanes it 28
I " ——t
Full eight merchandiss sheking wit metal - |
"Alow 10 0 behind Using redaimed = T T i
corrugated metal sheeting, - 1T i
— . ol crum tables with trmber
Salvaged timber floorboards. — |l
)¢ T New fxed seating
PARTY WALL H il
] 5 PARTY WALL
¥ Il 8
3
= i
T . - |
HL o firgt flopr 1 Provide new door opening up to first floor
= 1 trade area. Allow for new door to be held
Existing dumb waiter to be exposed and H —t ‘open on mag lock connected to fire.
o Sonscadl o GmeLre s o Good | | - — it
working order. Allow to lay new
= oot s
L]
Il
il S— o
A4 N rovice vison i prarises
\ L
MAIN
ENTRANCE
1 ? 1 2 3 d 3
|
Proposed Ground Floor Plan 50
Scle 1306 AL Meters
REVEIONS
L A i =

Note:

This schem has been araw thersfore
Do D et s s raaponil oy e apanccs wit on o dmepons Tra
rawing is herefore not 1o be scaled and all dimensions are 1o be taken on sit prior 1o
ordering of any materials. Any discrepencies are to be reported back to the designer.

WAL FINISHES

Existing brickwork retained
= = = = Exisling cormugated metal cladding retained
= — — = Existing timber paneling retained

Proposed timber cladding to match existing
Proposed

Pm sed @rpund

3 Jubiles Way, Eurol

¥ Business Conto, Favesharn, Kent V(S 66D
x 08712 516713 E-mall: mail@design-id.td.uk

Tel. 01785 537886

Page 164



VALP

\ \\ ~— v STREET
L

Art Gallery

El

H 'J—-: = Reading Museum 5”52
s .
Town Hall

JovaiaLN

\\
. \ !
L St
'd T, = i—
o
v 'i “ 01,,9 Cycle Hire Station
NN

!'. County Court . '

IS ‘”«j(l /\\ %

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

PARTY WALL

Cross Street

14

TRADE AREA

Site Location Plan

2 Scale: 1:1250 @ A3

) STORE/
CHILLERS

STAIRS
FROM
CELLAR

FIRE PRECAUTIONS LEGEND

Maintained Exit sign to B.S

Emergency lighting unit to be fitted with LED indicating healthy supply.
The units are to incorporate battery back up for three hours

N K

Non maintained emergency lighting unit to be fitted with LED indicating
healthy supply. The units are to incorporate battery back up for three
hours

Non-maintained Fire Exit sign

pizza oven

THEATRE
KITCHEN
&)
=
pick up

Heat or smoke detector

Heat or smoke detector together with integrated Fire Alarm sounder (of
at least 75 dB(A) as well as an integrated visual beacon

Visual Beacon

2& Fire Alarm sounder (of at least 75 dB(A) as well as an integrated visual beacon

@ Fire alarm push button
:D Fire alarm sounder
u FDB0sc  One hour fire resisting doors fitted with closer and
TRADE AREA intumescent smoke seals
FD30 Half hour fire door with intumescent strips, non-self closing
FD30sc Half hour fire resisting doors fitted with closer and
intumescent smoke seals
PB Push B:
e PARTY WALL ush Bar
@ & Water extinguisher
=
& CO2 extinguisher
(= Fire Blanket
=
A Foam Extinguisher
& Dry Powder Extinguisher
BAR
SER@R Wet Chemical Extinguisher
|:| Red line indicates areas for all licensable activities.
| AVAVLN
=
—
1
: ®
. =
2 =
PARTY WALL e
]
4
H PARTY WALL
TRADE AREA
to first floor
DI
WAIRER
=
e
BARREL P
DROP
=
A f
1
up
MAIN
ENTRANCE
Proposed Ground Floor Plan REVISIONS
1 Rev. [Date. [ Details. Name |
Scale: 1:100 @ A3 A 58,0120 | Layout revised to SUT olents requirements. RM

— oo Tle
Greene King Proposed Ground

Floor Licensing Plan
ToReeT = we
The Corner House A |1:100 @ A3|

5-6 Friar Street
Reading
Oct 2019
Page 16§CALE 1 :1 00 13 Jubilee Way, Eurolink Business Centre, Faversham, Kent, ME13 8GD

RG1 1DB
Tel: 01795 537896 Fax: 08712 516713 E-mail: mail@design-id.Itd.uk



~
~~ . ROOF TERRACE
~ .
~ .
~

.\.

VALPY

| e
L

Art Gallery

El
Sub Sta

Reading Museum
&
Town Hall

a
[
Shelter B *
Statue
1(1
i 9 bg \Cycle Hire Station

!'. County Court . ’

[——— b

[

Cross Street

14

7>
/\’5
<
Q
2\

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2019. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Site Location Plan

Scale: 1:1250 @ A3

FIRE PRECAUTIONS LEGEND

Maintained Exit sign to B.S

Emergency lighting unit to be fitted with LED indicating healthy supply.
The units are to incorporate battery back up for three hours

N K

Non maintained emergency lighting unit to be fitted with LED indicating
healthy supply. The units are to incorporate battery back up for three
hours

Non-maintained Fire Exit sign

Heat or smoke detector

Heat or smoke detector together with integrated Fire Alarm sounder (of
at least 75 dB(A) as well as an integrated visual beacon

Visual Beacon

2& Fire Alarm sounder (of at least 75 dB(A) as well as an integrated visual beacon

Fire alarm push button

:D Fire alarm sounder

FDB0sc  One hour fire resisting doors fitted with closer and

intumescent smoke seals

FD30 Half hour fire door with intumescent strips, non-self closing

FD30sc Half hour fire resisting doors fitted with closer and
intumescent smoke seals

Push Bar
Water extinguisher

CO2 extinguisher
Fire Blanket

Foam Extinguisher

Dry Powder Extinguisher

A\

BAR
SERVERY/

=~

TRADE AREA

Wet Chemical Extinguisher

Red line indicates areas for all licensable activities.

OB BPPIBR =

®
AL

= F— F—1 1

@ Proposed First Floor Plan

Scale: 1:100 @ A3

REVISIONS
Rev. | Date. | Details. Name.|
A | 28.01.20] Layout revised to sut clients requirements. RV

— L m
Greene King Proposed First Floor
Licensing Plan

ToReeT
The Corner House
5-6 Friar Street

Reading r Hs I .
RG1 1DB A

STawin By Sate
Oct 2019

13 Jubilee Way, Eurolink Business Centre, Faversham, Kent, ME13 8GD
Tel: 01795 537896 Fax: 08712 516713 E-mail: mail@design-id.Itd.uk




Borough Council
Working better with you

LICENSING ACT 2003 HEARING TUESDAY 30 January 2020 @1030HRS

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE

1. Premises:

The Hut Central Kebabs
39 St Mary’s Butts
Reading

RG1 1LG

2. Applicant:

Mr K Saleem

115 Church Road
Earley

Reading

RG6 1HG

3. Premises Licence:

There is currently a premises licence in place for this premises. Issued in
2005

Late Night Refreshment.

Monday 2300hrs until 0300hrs

Tuesday 2300hrs until 0230hrs

Wednesday to Friday 2300hrs until 0300hrs

Saturday from 2300hrs until 0330hrs

Sunday from 2300hrs to 0200hrs

Opening Hours

Monday from 0900hrs until 0300hrs
Tuesday 0900hrs until 0230hrs

Wednesday to Friday 0900hrs until 0300hrs
Saturday from 0900hrs until 0330hrs
Sunday from 0900hrs to 0200hrs

Copy of existing licence Appendix JC1

The existing premises licence holder has refused to transfer the premises
licence and has no right to trade from the above address.

4. Proposed licensable activities and hours:

The application is for the grant of a premises licence for the following
activities:

Late Night Refreshment

Monday 2300hrs until 0300hrs

Tuesday 2300hrs until 0230hrs

Wednesday to Friday 2300hrs until 0300hrs

Saturday 2300hrs until 0330hrs

Sunday from 2300hrs to 0200hrs

New Years Eve 0900hrs until 0300hrs the following day

Page 167



Opening Hours

Monday from 0900hrs until 0300hrs

Tuesday 0900hrs until 0230hrs

Wednesday to Friday 0900hrs until 0300hrs

Saturday from 0900hrs until 0330hrs

Sunday from 0900hrs to 0200hrs

New Years Eve 0900hrs until 0300hrs the following day

5. Temporary Event Notices

In considering any application the Licensing Authority should be aware of
the possible use of Temporary Event Notices to extend entertainment
activities or hours of operation. A premises may extend the hours or scope
of their operation by the use of Temporary Event Notices. Up to 15 events
per year can be held under this provision at a particutar premises. These
events may last for up to 168 hours provided less than 500 people are
accommodated and provided the total nhumber of days used for these events
does not exceed 21 per year.

6. Date of receipt of application: 9th December 2019

A copy of the application form is attached at Appendix JC2

| 7. Date of closure of period for representations: 3" January 2020

8. Representations received:

During the 28 day consultation process for the application, representations
were received from:

Thames Valley Police (Attached at appendix JC 3)
Reading Borough Council Licensing (attached at Appendix JC 4)
Mr Emekdar (attached at Appendix JC 5)

9. Licensing Objectives and Reading Borough Council’s Licensing Policy
Statement

In considering representations received the Licensing Authority has a duty to
carry out it’s functions with a view to promoting the four licensing
objectives, which are as follows:

the prevention of crime and disorder;
public safety

the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

Any conditions that are placed on a premises licence should be appropriate
and proportionate with a view to promoting the licensing objectives. The
Licensing Authority can amend, alter or refuse an application should it be
deemed appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Page 168



The Council’s licensing policy also places an onus on applicant’s who wish to

and disorder and potential public nuisance.

The Council’s Licensing Policy Statement:

7.15  Crime & Disorder Act 1998

7.15.1 In applying this policy, the Authority will have regard to its
obligations under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and
will do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in
Reading. The Authority will also have regard to the Safer Reading
Partnership, which incorporates both local and national strategies and
whose mission statement is “We will continue to make Reading a safer
place for those who live, work and visit, through a reduction in crime and
disorder”. In addition the Authority will liaise with the Reading Crime
Reduction Partnership in order to reduce crime, misuse of drugs and the
fear of crime.

8. Cumulative Impact And Need

8.1  Cumulative Impact Policy (CIP)

8.1.1 “Cumulative impact” for the purposes of this policy means the
potential impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a
significant number of licensed premises concentrated in one area. For
example, this may include the potential impact on crime and disorder or
public nuisance on an area that a large concentration of licensed premises
may have.

8.1.2 The cumulative impact of licensed premises is a proper matter for
the Authority to take into account in discharging its licensing functions and
in developing its licensing policy statement. This should not however be
confused with ‘need’ which relates more to the commercial demand for a
particular type of premises e.g. a pub, restaurant or hotel. The issue of
‘need’ does not form part of this licensing policy statement.

8.1.3 The Authority has considered in formulating this policy, in close
consultation with Thames Valley Police, whether there is a particular
concentration of licensed premises in a particular part of Reading, which is
already causing a cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing
objectives.

8.1.4 Concerns do exist about the number of licensed premises in parts of
the town centre, particularly in Friar Street, and Gun Street areas, together
with the impact that these premises have upon the licensing objectives. The
Council recognises the concerns of residents in areas with high proportions

Page 169




of licensed premises and will use best endeavours and all available
legislation so as to ensure these premises and the activities associated with
them are properly controlled and do not result in unreasonable disturbance
for residents.

8.1.6 It is recognised that pubs, nightclubs, restaurants, hotels, theatres,
and other clubs all sell alcohol, serve food and provide entertainment,
but with contrasting styles and characteristics. Proper regard will be
had to those differences and the impact they are likely to have on the
local community.

8.1.7 The Authority is keen to stress that as well as the licensing function
there are a number of other mechanisms for addressing issues of unruly
behaviour which occur away from licensed premises. These include:

(a)  planning controls;

(b) ongoing measures to provide a safer and cleaner environment in
partnership with local businesses and others;

(c)  the provision of CCTV surveillance in the town centre, provision of
taxi ranks, provision of public toilets, street cleaning and sweeping;

(d)  powers to designate parts of the Borough as places where alcohol
may not be consumed publicly;

(e)  confiscation of alcohol from adults and others in designated areas;

(f)  the prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at
who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk;

(g)  police enforcement of the law with regard to disorder and anti-social
behaviour;

(h)  police powers to close some premises for up to 24 hours in extreme
cases of disorder or excessive noise;

8.1.8 The Authority will address a number of these issues through the
Reading Community Safety Partnership in line with the strategic objectives
for crime and disorder reduction within the Borough.

8.1.9 The effect of keeping the cumulative impact policy, is to create a
rebuttable presumption that applications for new premises licences and club
premises certificates or material variations, will be refused, if relevant
representations are received. A rebuttable presumption is not a
presumption that is absolute; it is a presumption that may be overturned if
sufficient evidence can be provided against the presumption. Appendix C to
this reports list a number of policies and conditions that could be included
in an operating schedule and considered by the council.

Page 170




8.1.10 Applications, which are unlikely to have a negative effect on the

licensing objectives, are unlikely to illicit relevant representations. They,
therefore, are unlikely to progress to a hearing, with the consequence that
they are likely to be granted by officers under delegated powers.

8.1.11 Where during the application for the grant or variation of a premises
licence or club premises certificate, responsible authorities or interested
parties are concerned that the licensing objectives will be impacted upon,
there are likely to be relevant representations, which would lead to the
application proceeding to a hearing. If at that hearing, an applicant is able
to rebut the presumption of refusal by demonstrating there will be no
negative impact on the licensing objectives, a licence can still be granted.
However, if the presumption cannot be rebutted, the application is likely to
be refused.

8.2 Reasons for the CIP approach

8.2.1 The cumulative impact policy is a highly significant measure,
because it creates a presumption against a particular form of economic
development, and therefore, as a matter of good regulation a policy should
not be renewed unless there is a sound reason to do so.

8.2.2 The Council has undertaken research in respect of Reading town
centre that has identified high concentrations of licensed premises and high
levels of crime for offence types that are associated with the night-time
economy, alcohol and licensed premises.

8.2.3 Of the high number of licensed premises in Reading town centre, the
majority are well run. However, the sheer volume and concentration of
premises is having a negative impact on the licensing objectives.

8.2.4 As aresult, the Council, acting as the Licensing Authority for Reading,
after considering evidence of crime and looking at concentrations of
licensed premises in the borough, is satisfied that it is appropriate to keep a
CIP in the town centre in order to promote the licensing objectives.

8.2.5 The Council and partner organisations already employ a range of
mechanisms designed to prevent or limit the cumulative impact of any
problems arising from premises and their customers behaving
inappropriately or unlawfully once away from the premises. The measures
currently employed include the provision of night bus services, the use of
Taxi Marshals to supervise and control taxi ranks, the presence of Street
Pastors in the town centre late at night at weekends to assist people who
may be in difficulty, extensive CCTV coverage and monitoring of the town
centre, regular joint operations to detect illegal taxis, active use of
dispersal orders to improve the town centre environment, and the provision
of ‘Urilift’ toilet facilities in the town centre for people visiting the town
centre at night, in an attempt to cut down street urination.

8.3 Reading Central CIP Area

Page 171




8.3 3 The council considers it appropriate to continue with the existing CIP.
However, due to the redevelopment of Reading railway station and changes
to pedestrian flows, the area north of the railway station which includes
Vastern Road and Caversham Road may be considered as a possible
extension to the town CIP. Should evidence emerge of a rise in crime and
disorder in that area, the council will apply for an extension to the CIP
following the Secretary of State’s guidance in such matters.

8.4 General Approach to applications within the CIP area

8.4.1 The Secretary of State’s Guidance under the Licensing Act 2003
suggests that Local Authorities can, within a cumulative impact area, adopt
a policy of refusing all new licences subject to relevant representations
and the rebuttable presumption as outlined at paragraph 8.1.9 above being
made. It is not the Council’s intention to adopt such a broad approach. To
do so may operate disproportionately against some types of premises that
are unlikely to undermine the licensing objectives and others which can
operate without so doing earlier in the evening. The policy therefore takes
a more targeted approach by focusing on certain types of operation and
those that only operate beyond midnight. For certain types of premises
which are not normally associated with undermining to the licensing
objectives, the policy is neutral or even positive.

8.4.2 This policy has regard to Secretary of State’s Guidance which does
not support fixed terminal hours. The policy creates a presumption against
some premises operating beyond a certain hour and this is an appropriate
and proportionate response to the particular circumstances in the proposed
Reading Central CIP area. This is considered preferable than refusing
applications outright.

8.5  Application of this policy

8.5.1 This policy will apply to all applications for premises licences and
club premises certificates for material variations for premises within the
Reading Central CIP Area. Material variations include increases of hours,
capacity and all other variations that are likely to add to cumulative impact
in the Reading Central CIP Area.

8.5.2 The policy will only be applied where there have been relevant
representations. Where there are no relevant representations, it is the duty
of the licensing authority to grant the application subject to the conditions
in the operating schedule and the mandatory conditions imposed by law.

8.5.3 The policy takes a different approach to different types of premises.
In the case of applications for hybrid premises that would fall into more
than one type, the predominant use will be taken for the purposes of the
policy.

8.6  The Policy

Page 172




8.6.6 Late night food outlets: Applications for the sale of food primarily for
takeaway up to midnight will be granted where it is demonstrated that they
will not add to cumulative impact and that they will comply with the other
provisions of this licensing policy.

Late night food outlets are a major contributor to crime and disorder after
midnight. Therefore the policy is to refuse applications involving such sales
unless there are exceptional circumstances.

Outlets will need to demonstrate that detailed measures proposed in the
operating schedule will result in no increase in crime and disorder, will
satisfy the Council granting the application would not contribute to
cumulative impact, and there is compliance with the other provisions of this
licensing policy.

Integration with Planning

7.1 The Authority recognises that licensing applications should not be seen
as a re-run of the planning application process and that there should be a
clear separation of the planning and licensing regimes to avoid duplication
and inefficiency. However, the Authority will normally expect applicants to
demonstrate that, their proposed use of the premises is lawful in
planning terms, including complying with any conditions that may be
imposed upon a planning consent, prior to applications under this Act being
submitted.

Licensed premises in residential areas

11.4.1 In general the Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on
the individual merits of each application. However, when issuing a licence,
stricter conditions are likely to be imposed with regard to noise control in
the case of premises that are situated in largely residential areas. In
general, public houses located in and catering for residential areas wishing
to open beyond 11pm will need to demonstrate clearly that public nuisance
will not result from later operation.

Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
April 2018

Licensing Objectives and Aims:

1.5 However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and
purposes. These are vitally important and should be principal aims for
everyone involved in licensing work. They include:

« protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour
and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises

Steps to promote the licensing objectives:

Page 173




8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have
regard to the statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be
aware of the expectations of the licensing authority and the responsible
authorities as to the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge of their local area when
describing the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing
objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to
publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing
objectives and to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about
these matters. However, applicants are also expected to undertake their
own enquiries about the area in which the premises are situated to inform
the content of the application.

8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information
to enable them to demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to
take to promote the licensing objectives, that they understand:

« the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and
disorder hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas
where children may congregate;

+ any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable
activities; and

» any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or
voluntary schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors
and other schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.

8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their
application on how they will manage any potential risks. Where specific
policies apply in the area (for example, a cumulative impact policy),
applicants are also expected to demonstrate an understanding of how the
policy impacts on their application; any measures they will take to mitigate
the impact; and why they consider the application should be an exception
to the policy.

8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants
when determining the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. For example, premises with close proximity to
residential premises should consider what effect this will have on their
smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the promotion
of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which
may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where
there are no known concerns, acknowledge this in their application.

8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be
available in the licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly
available sources which may be of use to applicants include:

« the Crime Mapping website;

» Neighbourhood Statistics websites;

» websites or publications by local responsible authorities;

« websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and

» on-line mapping tools.

Page 174




8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the Views of responsible ]
authorities before formally submitting their application, they may find them

to be a useful source of expert advice on local issues that should be taken
into consideration when making an application. Licensing authorities may
wish to encourage co-operation between applicants, responsible authorities
and, where relevant, local residents and businesses before applications are
submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise.

8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient
information in this section to determine the extent to which their proposed
steps are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in the local area.
Applications must not be based on providing a set of standard conditions to
promote the licensing objectives and applicants are expected to make it
clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the premises.

8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that
the licensing objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no
disputes, the steps that applicants propose to take to promote the licensing
objectives, as set out in the operating schedule, will very often translate
directly into conditions that will be attached to premises licences with the
minimum of fuss.

8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate
to promote one or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because
they are adequately covered by other existing legislation. It is however
important that all operating schedules should be precise and clear about the
measures that are proposed to promote each of the licensing objectives.

The role of responsible authorities

9.11 Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified
of all new applications. While all responsible authorities may make
representations regarding applications for licences and club premises
certificates and full variation applications, it is the responsibility of each
responsible authority to determine when they have appropriate grounds to
do so.

9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field,
and in some cases it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be
the licensing authority’s main source of advice in relation to a particular
licensing objective. For example, the police have a key role in managing the
night-time economy and should have good working relationships with those
operating in their local area5. The police should usually therefore be the
licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters relating to the
promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any
responsible authority under the 2003 Act may make representations with
regard to any of the licensing objectives if they have evidence to support
such representations. Licensing authorities must therefore consider all
relevant representations from responsible authorities carefully, even where
the reason for a particular responsible authority’s interest or expertise in

Page 175



the promotion of a particular objective may not be immediately apparent.
However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to ensure that
their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be
subject at a hearing.

Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities

9.13 Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities.
A similar framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not
require responsible authorities to make representations about applications
for the grant of premises licences or to take any other steps in respect of
different licensing processes. It is, therefore, for the licensing authority to
determine when it considers it appropriate to act in its capacity as a
responsible authority; the licensing authority should make this decision in
accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003 Act.

Integrating strategies

14.63 It is recommended that statements of licensing policy should provide
clear indications of how the licensing authority will secure the proper
integration of its licensing policy with local crime prevention, planning,
transport, tourism, equality schemes, cultural strategies and any other plans
introduced for the management of town centres and the night-time
economy. Many of these strategies are not directly related to the promotion
of the licensing objectives, but, indirectly, impact upon them. Co-ordination
and integration of such policies, strategies and initiatives are therefore
important.

Planning and building control

14.64 The statement of licensing policy should indicate that planning
permission, building control approval and licensing regimes will be properly
separated to avoid duplication and inefficiency. The planning and licensing
regimes involve consideration of different (albeit related) matters.
Licensing committees are not bound by decisions made by a planning
committee, and vice versa. However, as set out in chapter 9, licensing
committees and officers should consider discussions with their planning
counterparts prior to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually
acceptable operating hours and scheme designs.

14.65 There are circumstances when, as a condition of planning permission,
a terminal hour has been set for the use of premises for commercial
purposes. Where these hours are different to the licensing hours, the
applicant must observe the earlier closing time. Premises operating in
breach of their planning permission would be liable to prosecution under
planning law. Proper integration should be assured by licensing committees,
where appropriate, providing regular reports to the planning committee.

Licensing Act 2003

The Licensing Act 2003 under Section 18 (6) also states that any relevant
representation should be considered in the context of:

Page 176




(a) the likely eftect ot the grant or the premises licence on the promotion of

theticensing objectives:

Therefore in the context of the grant of a licence, it is reasonable for the
Licensing Authority to base it’s decision on an application on what the likely
effects of granting a licence would have on the promotion of the licensing
objectives.

Case Law

East Lindsey DC v Abu Hanif (2016) case law underpins the principles widely
acknowledged within the Licensing Act 2003 that the licensing objectives
are prospective, and that the prevention of crime and disorder requires a
prospective consideration of what is warranted in the public interest, having
regard to the twin considerations of prevention and deterrence.

Similarly the case law of British Beer and Pub Association v Canterbury City
Council (2005) underpins the value of the Council’s licensing policy. Mr
Justice Richards stated: “The council is entitled to indicate in the policy its
own expectations with regard to the promotion of the licensing objectives;
and | do not think that an applicant can legitimately complain if a failure to
take account of those expectations gives rise to representations...An
applicant who does not tailor his application to the policy therefore faces an
uphill struggle.”

On Cumulative Impact - the case of Portsmouth City Council v 3D
Entertainment Group Ltd (2011) - confirmed that it is entirely down to the
applicant to rebut the Cumulative Impact policy. It was not down to the
police or the Council to abduce any evidence of negative cumulative
impact.

Page 177




Page 178



CICENSING ACT 2003
SCHEDULE 12
PART A

PREMISES LICENCE

Reading Borough Council being the Licensing Authority under the above Act,
HEREBY GRANT a PREMISES LICENCE as detailed in this licence.

rPremises Licence Number | LP9000107

Premises Details

Premises Name and Address

The Hut

39 St Marys Butts
Reading
Berkshire

RG2 OQE

Telephone Number [

Where the Licence is time limited the dates the Licence is valid

N/A

Licensable Activities

Licensable Activities authorised by the Licence

Late Night Refreshment - Outdoor

Authorised Hours for Licensable Activities

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Hours for the Provision of Late Night Refreshment

Monday from 2300hrs until 0300hrs
Tuesday from 2300hrs until 0230hrs
Wednesday from 2300hrs until 0300hrs
Thursday from 2300hrs until 0300hrs
Friday from 2300hrs until 0300hrs
Saturday from 2300hrs until 0330hrs
Sunday from 2300hrs until 0200hrs

Page 179



Opening Hours

Hours the Premises is Open to the Public

Monday from 0900hrs until 0300hrs
Tuesday from 0900hrs until 0230hrs
Wednesday from 0900hrs until 0300hrs
Thursday from 0900hrs until 0300hrs
Friday from 0900hrs until 0300hrs
Saturday from 0900hrs until 0330hrs
Sunday from 0900hrs until 0200hrs

Alcohol

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies

Premises Licence Holder

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence

Name: Murat Emekdar
Address: 9 Blacley Close, Earley, Reading, RG6 7YE

Additional Details

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where
the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

N/A

Name:

Address:

Telephone Number:

Designated Premises Supervisor

Personal Licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by the
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply
of alcohol

N/A

Personal Licence Number:

Issuing Authority:

This Licence shall continue in force from 16/07/2008 unless previously
suspended or revoked.

Dated: 16" July 2008

Head of Environment & Consumer Services

Page 180 2




Annex 1

Mandatory Conditions

Supply of Alcohol

To be applied where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:-

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of
the premises licence, or

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended

2 Every supply of alcohol made under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Film Exhibitions

To be applied only where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibitions of films

1 The admission of children to any exhibition of any film must be restricted in
accordance with section 20 of Part 3 of the Licensing Act 2003.

2 In the case of films which have been classified by the British Board of Film
Classification admission of children to films must be restricted in accordance
with that classification.

3 In the case of films which have not been classified by the British Board of Film
Classification, admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation made by the Licensing Authority.

Door Supervisors

To be applied where a premises licence or club premises certificate includes a
condition that any person must be at the premises to carry out a security activity.
[Except premises with a premises licence authorising only plays or films or
premises used exclusively by a club].

1 Each individual present at the licensed premises to carry out a security activity
must be licensed by the security Industry Authority.

Page 181 3




Annex 2

Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule

1. The CCTV system will be maintained and kept fully operational when the
premises are open to the public.

2. The area outside the premises will be cleared of litter at the close of
business.

Page 182 4



Annex 3

Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Page 183



Annex 4
Plans

As attached plan date. 10" August 2005

Page 184



A,yw/wém A~

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your
answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I’'We Mr Kamal Ahmed SALEEM

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the
relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description
The Hut Central Kebabs

39 St Mary’s Butts

Reading

Berkshire

RGI1 2LG

Post town | Reading Postcode RGI2 LG

Telephone number at premises (if any) N/a

Non-domestic rateable value of premises | £ 4850.00

Part 2 - Applicant details
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate

a) an individual or individuals * DJ  please complete section (A)
b) a person other than an individual *

i asalimited company/limited liability
partnership
ii  as a partnership (other than limited liability)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)
iii  as an unincorporated association or please complete section (B)
iv. other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete section (B)

c) arecognised club please complete section (B)

I I R I R O

d) a charity please complete section (B)

Page 185



€) the proprietor of an educational establishment please complete section (B)

O
f) a health service body [0 please complete section (B)
0

g) a person who is registered under Part 2 of the please complete section (B)
Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an

independent hospital in Wales

ga) aperson who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part [0 please complete section (B)
| of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within
the meaning of that Part) in an independent
hospital in England

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in ] please complete section (B)
England and Wales

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one box
below):

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the 5
premises for licensable activities; or

I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or

o

a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr X Mrs [ Miss [ Ms [] Sxt:;rp’ll:’ﬂ;é\ff))r
Surname First names
SALEEM Kamal Ahmed
Date of birth ( [ am 18 years old or over Please tick yes
Nationality British
Early

Current residential .
o g Reading
address if different from Berkshire

premises address RG6 1HG

Post town Reading Postcode RG6 1HG

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code” provided to the applicant by that service (please see
note 15 for information)

Page 186




SECOND-INDIVIBUAL APPLIGANT (fappicable

. Other Title (for
Mr [ Mrs [ Miss [ Ms [] example, Rev)
Surname First names
Date of birth [ 'am 18 years old or over [J  Please tick yes
Nationality

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service: (please see
note 15 for information)

Current residential
address if different from
premises address

Post town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please
give any registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a
body corporate), please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name

Address

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

Page 187



Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)
bstamu(@hotmail.co.uk

Part 3 Operating Schedule

. DD MM YYYY
i 2
When do you want the premises licence to start? [oB D G b b I

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when DD MM YYYY
do you want it to end? CTTTITTI 11

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)
Background

This is an application for the grant of a new Premises Licence for The Hut located at 39 St Mary’s
Butts, Reading RG1 2LG by Mr Kamal SALEEM who has been granted a long term tenancy
agreement from the Landlord of the property, the Reading Minster of St Mary the Virgin.

“The Hut’ is a small kiosk that is located in the central reservation in St Mary’s Butts opposite the
Church.

The Hut currently has a Premises Licence number LP9000107 that authorises the provision of
Late Night Refreshment off the premises only. The Premises Licence holder being a Mr Murat
EMEKDAR, who had a tenancy agreement granted by the Church authority for the past twenty
years or so, that was rescinded in the year 2018. Mr EMEKDAR ceased trading in that year and
has vacated the property but has chosen not to surrender the existing Premises Licence and for his
own reasons, has refused to transfer the licence to anyone else. I understand that each year, Mr
EMEKDAR has paid the annual fee when due. Of course, he can in law, refuse to transfer the
licence, as it is his possession. This creates the situation that he has the Premises Licence for The
Hut, but has no longer a legal right to operate a business from that address.

Engquiries have been made with the Licensing department as to whether the Premises Licence may
be revoked as Mr EMEKDAR no longer has the right of occupancy and therefore cannot trade.
The Licensing Officer has confirmed that there is not a provision for revocation under the
Licensing Act 2003 in such circumstances. | understand that the existing Premises Licence has not
been subject to any review hearings or performance reviews during Mr EMEKDAR’s ownership.

It is possible however, to apply for the Grant of a new Premises Licence. Mr SALEEM is now
making this application for the grant of a new Premises Licence for the property. This application
simply requests that authorisation for the provision of Late Night Refreshment for exactly the
same hours as the existing licence.

The principle of a second licence for a premises is based on a High Court ruling and [ cite
Poppleston and Allen:

“The term “shadow licence™ describes the situation where a premises licence is granted to one
party in respect of a premises where another party already holds a separate licence. Although they
are not explicitly referred to in the Licensing Act 2003, the concept of shadow licences was
approved under the modern licensing regime in a 2013 High Court case between Extreme Oyster
& Star Oyster Ltd. v Guildford Borough Council.”

Page 188




[TiS recognised that the premises now fall within the Reading Borough Council’s Cumulative
Impact Policy area and therefore this application has addressed this matter by adding on new
conditions within the operating schedule in respect of the four licensing objectives that should
address any concerns that the responsible authorities may have.

Following a discussion with the Licensing Officer from Thames Valley Police concern was
expressed that should a new licence be granted, if there were to be an issue as to how the business
was being operated, which Premises Licence would be taken to task. We say, that should a licence
be granted, it is this new licence that will be relevant. The Premises Licence held by Mr
EMEKDAR will in effect, be made redundant.

It is recognised that this is an unusual circumstance, however, we would ask that common sense
prevail in order that the Landlords and Tenant can go about their business with the benefit of a
premises licence.

The Cumulative Impact Policy was designed to test the robustness of applications for the grant of
new premises licence with a presumption of rebuttal for vertical drinking establishments, but not
to prevent inward investment to the town centre.

There has been similar scenario’s in Reading where the Licensing Committee have rightly, re-
instated Premises Licences where they have been lost either through surrender, or insolvency of
the holding companies, the Po Na Na, Bridge Street and the Sahara Bar in Gun Street.

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any
one time, please state the number expected to attend.

What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?

(please see sections | and 14 and Schedules | and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) Pledi tick all that

apply
a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) O
b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) |
¢) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) O
d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D) O
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) O
f)  recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) O
g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) O
h) a.nthir}g ofa simil.ar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) 0
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)
Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I) X

Page 189




Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

Page 190



A
Fa

Plays Will the performance of a play take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors O

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors 0

Day | Start | Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the performance of plays at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 191




B

Films

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors

Standard days and or outdoors or both — please tick (please read Indoors O

timings (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors OJ

Day | Start | Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please
read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 192




Pl
©

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please
read guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Page 193




D

Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and
timings (please read

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment
take place indoors or outdoors or both — Indoors O

please tick (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed
in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 194




h 1
|

Live music Will the performance of live music take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors O

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors 0

Day | Start | Finish Both O

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for
the performance of live music at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 195




F

Recorded music Will the playing of recorded music take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors Ol

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors O

Day | Start | Finish Both [l

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 196




Pa
U

Performances of dance

Will the performance of dance take place

Standard days and indoors or outdoors or both — please tick Indoors O

timings (please read (please read guidance note 3)

guidance note 7) Outdoors 0

Day | Start | Finish Both O]

Mon Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please
read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the performance of dance at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

Page 197




H

Anything of a similar
description to that
falling within (e), (f) or
(2)

Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be

providing

Day Start Finish | Will this entertainment take place indoors or Indoors J
outdoors or both — please tick (please read

Mon guidance note 3) Outdoors O

Both O

Tue Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
description to that falling within (e), () or (g) (please read
guidance note 5)

Fri

Sat Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the entertainment of a similar description to that falling within
(e), (N or (g) at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sun

Page 198




=

Late night refreshment
Standard days and
timings (please read
guidance note 7)

Day Start Finish

Will the provision of late night refreshment
take place indoors or outdoors or both —
please tick (please read guidance note 3)

Indoors ]
Outdoors X
Both O

Mon | 23:00 | 03:00

Tue | 23:00 |02:30

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Wed | 23:00 | 03:00

Thur | 23:00 | 03:00

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night

refreshment (please read guidance note 5)

Fri 23:00 | 03:00

Sat 23:00 | 03:30

Sun | 23:00 | 02:00

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for

the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those

listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance

note 6)

New Years Eve from 23:00 to 03:00 the following day.

Page 199




J

Supply of alcohol Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption | Op the

Standard days and — please tick (please read guidance note 8) premises O

timings (please read

guidance note 7) Off the 0

premises

Day | Start | Finish Both [l

Mon State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please read
guidance note 5)

Tue

Wed

Thur Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as

designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the
checklist at the end of the form):

me NOT APPLICABLE

Date of birth

Address

Postcode

Personal licence number (if known)

Issuing licensing authority (if known)

Page 200




K

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

None

L

Hours premises are
open to the public

Standard days and

timings (please read

guidance note 7)

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5)

Day Start Finish
Mon | 09:00 | 03:00
Tue | 09:00 |02:30
Wed | 09:00 | 03:00
Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open
to the public at different times from those listed in the column on
Thur | 09:00 | 03:00 | the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)
New Years Eve from 09:00 to 03:00 the following day.
Fri 09:00 | 03:00
Sat | 09:00 | 03:30
Sun | 09:00 | 02:00

Page 201




M

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General — all four licensing objectives (b, ¢, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

1.

The premises licence holder shall ensure the premises’ digitally recorded CCTV system
cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and
recordings shall be kept for a minimum of 31 days with time and date stamping. The
entire licensable area shall be covered by the CCTV. Data recordings shall be made
immediately available to an authorised Officer of Reading Borough Council or Thames
Valley Police together with facilities for viewing upon request, subject to the provisions of
the Data Protection Act. Recorded images shall be of such quality as to be able to identify
the recorded person in any light. At least one member of staff on the premises at any time
during operating hours shall be trained to access and download material from the CCTV
system.

Signage advising customers that CCTV is in use shall be positioned in prominent
positions;

The premises licence holder shall ensure that a door supervisor is employed on Friday
and Saturday evenings from 23:45 hours through to close of business the following day.

The Premises Licence Holder shall conduct a written risk assessment whenever late night
refreshment is taking place at the premises between Sunday to Thursday inclusive to
establish if door staff are required. The risk assessment shall be produced to an
authorised Officer of Reading Borough Council or Thames Valley Police upon request.

When employed, a register of Door Supervisors shall be kept. The register must show the
following details:

e Full SIA registration number.

¢ Date and time that the Door Supervisor commenced duty, countersigned by
the Duty Manager.

¢ Date and time that the Door Supervisor finished work, countersigned by the
Duty Manager.

¢ Any occurrence or incident of interest involving crime & disorder or public
safety must be recorded giving names of the Door Supervisor involved.

The Door Supervisor register shall be kept at the premises and be available
for inspection by an authorised Officer from Reading Borough Council or
Thames Valley Police upon request, and shall be retained for a period of
twelve months.

Page 202




10.

1.

All door supervisors whilst employed at the premises shall wear hi visibility jackets/
tabards in bright green, yellow or orange in order that they can be clearly visible and
identifiable at all times to the public and via CCTV both internally and externally. When
tabards are worn, hi visibility armbands must also be worn that incorporate displaying SIA
badges. If hi visibility full sleeved jackets are worn the PLH must ensure that ali door
supervisors badges are also displayed via an easily visible arm band of a different hi
visibility colour to the jacket that is being worn worn

Whilst Door Supervisors are employed at the premises a minimum of one Door
Supervisor working on the entrance/ exit to the premises, and one internally within the
premises will be deployed with digitally recording Body Worn Video (BWV). The BWV will
be used to record any incidents which occur inside or outside of the premises involving
customers, prospective customers or any staff member that impact on any of the four
licensing objectives.

Data recordings shall be made within forty-eight hours on request on to a USB stick
subject to data protection guidelines available to an authorised officer of Thames
Valley Police or Reading Borough Council together with facilities for immediate viewing
upon request, subject to the provisions of the Data Protection Act.

The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall keep and maintain all right
to work documents for all staff members. Right to work documents shall be kept at the
premises and produced to an authorised Officer of Reading Borough Council or Thames
Valley Police upon request.

The premises licence holder shall participate, as far as is practicable, in the Local
Townsafe Radio Scheme when the premises are open for licensable activities.

All incidents which impact on any of the four licensing objectives shall be recorded in a
register kept at the premises for this purpose. The names of the person recording the
incident and those members of staff who deal with any incident shall also be recorded.
Where known, any offenders name shall also be recorded.

(a) This record shall be available for inspection by a Police Officer or an authorised
officer of Reading Borough Council upon request and shall be retained for one year.
The record shall be signed off by the Designated Premises Supervisor or nominated
representative at the end of each trading session.

(b) A weekly review of the incident register shall also be carried out by the
Designated Premises Supervisor.

¢) Public safety

Page 203




1) The venue management shall have suitable risk assessments in place relating to slips,
trips and falls.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

1) A sign shall be displayed by the front door exit requesting patrons to leave quietly.
2) At the end of each trading session the staff shall conduct a litter patrol in the
immediate area to collect and to safely dispose of cartons and containers.

¢) The protection of children from harm

1) Staff shall be trained on the procedures for conflict management and that training shall
be recorded on the staff training records.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement

® | have made or enclosed payment of the fee.
® | have enclosed the plan of the premises.

® [ have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others
where applicable.

® [ have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be designated
premises supervisor, if applicable.

® [ understand that I must now advertise my application.

e I understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected.

® [Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not a
limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I have
included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom or
my share code issued by the Home Office online right to work checking service X
(please read note 15).

X X O XXX

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Page 204




———————— S AN-OFFENCE UNDER SECTION24B- OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 197 FORA————————————
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.

Part 4 — Signatures (please read guidance note 11)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance
note 12). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

e [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a
partnership which is not a limited liability partnership] 1 understand [
am not entitled to be issued with a licence if [ do not have the
entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if | am subject to a condition
preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if | cease to
be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

Declaration

e The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK
(and is not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work
relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her
proof of entitlement to work, or have conducted an online right to work
check using the Home Office online right to work checking service
which confirmed their right to work (please see note 15)

Signature Willioum Dovine
Date 6" December 2019
Capacity Licensing Agent, Silver Fox Consultants

For joint applications, signature of 2" applicant or 2™ applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please
state in what capacity.

Signature

Date

Capacity

Page 205



Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with
this application (please read guidance note 14)

W. Donne

Silver Fox Consultants

61 St Mary’s Butts

Reading

RG1 2LG

Post town | Reading Postcode | RGI1 2LG
Telephone number (if any) I 0773 873 4586

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional)
billdonne107@hotmail.com

Notes for Guidance

1. Describe the premises, for example the type of premises, its general situation and layout
and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where
your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will
be and its proximity to the premises.

2. Interms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

e Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

e Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in
community premises between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the
audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening
from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such
screening abides by age classification ratings.

e Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00
and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.

e Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest,
exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between
08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.
Combined fighting sports — defined as a contest, exhibition or display which
combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts — are licensable as a
boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event.

e Live music: no licence permission is required for:

Page 206




o]

s o . . .
4 PVITUTITANVG UT UL . .

any day, on any premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those
premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar
community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the
organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is
responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a
school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed
500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the
relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the
school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

e Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

(o]

O

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on
premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises,
provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a
church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community
premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol,
provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser
gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for
the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at
the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or
(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and
(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant
premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school
proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

e Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any
day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance
which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable.

e Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on
any day, with no limit on audience size for:

o

o

-

any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority
where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local
authority;

any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health
care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the
health care provider;

any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and
any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling
entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it
takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience,
and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for
more than 28 consecutive days.

3. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors

may include a tent).

Page 207



10.
11.
12.

For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant
further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified
or unamplified.

For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during
the summer months.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a
particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the
week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the
premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the
premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please
tick ‘both’.

Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to
the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless
of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not
exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of
gaming machines.

Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

The application form must be signed.

An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agent

must sign the application form.

. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

. Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications

from partnerships which are not limited liability partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is
resident in the UK who:
e does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
e is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the
carrying on of a licensable activity.

Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017
will become invalid if the holder ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not
subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this application
copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be
certified), or 2) by providing their *share code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry
out a check using the Home Office online right to work checking service (see below).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

e Anexpired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies
having the right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the
passport to copy].

e An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a

person named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

Page 208



Home Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a
national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by
the Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration
control, is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or
has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely
in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination
with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number
and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or
Ireland when produced in combination with an official document giving the
person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous
employer.

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and
is currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder
from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by
the Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently
stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a

national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family
member of such a national or who has derivative rights or residence.

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the
Home Office to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may

Page 209



stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the
holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity when
produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent
National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a
previous employer.

e A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office
under regulation 18(3) or 20(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area)
Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state
or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative
rights of residence.

e Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their
permission to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office
acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or reasonable evidence that the
person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration decision,
such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

e Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in the UK including:

o evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,

o evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family
member — e.g. a marriage certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth
certificate, and

o evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of
permanent residence in the UK or is one of the following if they have been
in the UK for more than 3 months:

) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the
employer,

(ii) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a
bank,

(iii) studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence
of sufficient funds; or
(iv) self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.

Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially
independent must also provide evidence that the European Economic Area national and any
family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the UK. This can include a private
medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided:

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;

(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in
the UK and is permitted to work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Page 210



us checing your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share
information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you
have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may
demonstrate their right to work by allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with
the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service,
applicants should include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon
accessing the service at https://www.gov,uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the
applicant’s date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority to
carry out the check.

In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the
applicant is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have
an immigration status that can be checked online. The Home Office online right to work
checking service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order
to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should
submit copy documents as set out above.

Page 211



Page 212



C

NP> HO

nwH44H4Cw

Licence Submission Plans

1
|
1
|
|
§ I
o
3 L h |
2 ' B 3 |
e >
P 3 [
|
|
x |
|
L § 1
|
el
K |
o
2 I
— | g |
- - = |
L i
1N ‘
= ) = !
- i
i
I
l
]

N<VP>PEZ Ho

w44 C

Page 213

Legend
— Licensable Activity
A

Fire Extinguishers

D Fire Exit Signs
Proposed
CCTV Camera

o

Position

Exit Route

Gas Safety Shut Off

Fire Blanket

General Notes

The plans are accurate to the visibie
nformation available to the surveyor
on the date of survey

Escape routes. signage fire and
safety equipment etc have been noted
in the locations on that day

CCTV Local ons are proposed

GK Consultancy is not iable for the

y. content or
‘with recommendations made in_any
assessment {fire_nisk hazard etc)
made by others of the premises of for
information conveyed on this dravang
pertaining to those assessments

In no event will GK Consultancy be
hab'e for direct ndirect. special

or
(including but not imited to economic
10ss, such as loss of profits
interrupt on, loss of revenue. loss of
goodwall or loss of anticipated
savings) ansing out of the use. or
nability to use or the faiure of
compliance of this plan

GK Consultancy i1s hmted in 1it's
hatility in respect of the plans
provided for submussion to
rectification / amendment of this plan
to the requirements of the council
only

The property was surveyed on
Saturday 23rd November 2019

Drawn By: GKK
Checked By: SCK

Drawing No: CK1/1
Rev: 1
GK Consultancy

Project Title:
Licence Submission Plan

Client:

Central Kebabs

39 St. Mary's Butts.
Reading

Berkshire
RG12LG

Scale

GK Consultancy =0

46, Magpie Way
Tilehurst

Reading Planner;

RG314SJ GKKeeble




Page 214



,Q,mp/;j nT L3I

Classification: OFFICIAL

THAMES VALLEY POLICE

Division/Station :Reading Police Station Licensing Dept

From : C2107 Declan Smyth To : Reading Borough Council

Subject :

Ref: 39 St Mary’s Butts, Reading, Berkshire, RG1 2LG Date : 18" December 2019

Objection
To whom it may concern

| C2107 Declan Smyth on behalf of the Chief Officer of Thames Valley Police wish to
formally object to the proposed application for a premises licence submitted in
relation to The Hut Central Kebabs, 39 St Mary's Butts, Reading, Berkshire, RG1
2LG by Mr Kamal Ahmed SALEEM.

Provision of late night refreshment:-
Monday 23:00 — 03:00

Tuesday 23:00 - 02:30

Wednesday 23:00 — 03:00

Thursday 23:00 — 03:00

Friday 23:00 — 03:00

Saturday 23:00 — 03:30

Sunday 23:00 - 02:00

(New Years Eve from 23:00 to 03:00 the following day)

Hours premises are open to the public:-
Monday 09:00 — 03:00

Tuesday 09:00 — 02:30

Wednesday 09:00 — 03:00

Thursday 09:00 — 03:00

Friday 09:00 — 03:00

Saturday 09:00 — 03:30

Sunday 09:00 — 02:00

(New Years Eve from 09:00 to 03:00 the following day)

Reading Borough Council Licensing Policy Statement includes detail of its
Cumulative Impact policy which exists in order to address the cumulative stress that
is caused by the high concentration of late night licensed premises within the defined
area of Reading Town Centre.

This cumulative impact has been determined within the policy to have a negative
impact on crime and disorder within the town due to the sheer volume and
concentration of licensed premises which has a negative impact on the four licensing
objectives.

Thames Valley Police object to this application as we believe that the Cumulative
Impact Policy (CIP) has not been fully addressed by the applicant. It is felt that if this

GEN46-LAN(§/95)
Classitcation]OPFICIAL Page 215




GEN46-LAN(5/95)

Classification: OFFICIAL

application is granted it will likely lead to the licensing objectives being undermined,
with specific regard to the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and
Prevention of Public Nuisance. All four licensing objectives are of equal importance.

The Council Licensing Policy Statement states:-

Late Night Refreshment (takeaways) and Conditions — General Approach

6.19 Late night food outlets are a major contributor to crime and disorder and anti
social behaviour within Reading. Applicants who wish to provide hot food or
drink after 2300hrs and up to 0500hrs, will need to demonstrate that their
proposed operation will not exacerbate issues of crime and disorder in that
locality.

6.20 Applicants for late night refreshment are expected to take cognisance of the
Secretary of State’s Guidance and to include appropriate and proportionate
measures within their operating schedule to assist in actively promoting the licensing
objectives.

6.21 The licensing authority will expect all applicants who wish to provide late night
refreshment to include measures for adequate staff training; measures to ensure that
no public nuisance occurs from the premises as well as additional measures to
assist in crime prevention such as CCTV and door supetrvisors.

6.22 Public nuisance can often occur from takeaways being sited in residential
areas. This could be in relation to the use of delivery vehicles and the congregating
of customers outside the premises. Applicants are expected to make an assessment
of their proposed locality and implement measures to avoid disturbing local residents
such as the use of electric bikes and the implementation of a dispersal policy.

6.23 Where it is practical, the authority will also look to ensure that all packaging
used for the provision of hot food and drink shall be made of recyclable materials or
be biodegradable. This will include all fixed premises and static vans.

The Secretary of States Guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003
states:

“8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application
on how they will manage any potential risks. Where specific policies apply in
the area (for example, a cumulative impact policy), applicants are also expected
to demonstrate an understanding of how the policy impacts on their application; any
measures they will take to mitigate the impact; and why they consider the application
should be an exception to the policy.”

In either circumstance it would be expected that the applicant would address the CIP
directly within their application to deal with this presumption of rebuttle.

However, this is not the case within this application and at no stage is the CIP
directly referred to apart from the applicant offering of conditions, and stating that this
would address any concers that the responsible authorities may have. The
conditions offered in the operating schedules are not comprehensive enough for the
hours applied for and Thames Valley Police do not consider that any type or number

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 216



Classification;: OFFICIAL

of conditions will be appropriate to mitigate the-potential undermining of the-licensing

objectives.

GEN46-LAN(5/95)

As a new premises application the Sub-Committee may consider that if the
applicant fails to rebut the presumption of refusal based on its application alone that
no further evidence is required to be provided in relation to supporting a decision to
refuse this application.Thames Valley Police would fully support that decision and
feel that this application in itself fails to both consider and address the policy and
therefore is likely to lead to an increase in crime and disorder.

The application states that it is for a “shadow licence” of an existing premises licence
currently held by an individual that no longer has access to the premises. It is also
suggested that the outgoing individual is refusing to transferred or sell the current
licence on. The application then makes reference to the high court case of Extreme
Oyster & Star Oyster Ltd. v Guildford Borough Council which provides legal
weighting to the matter of shadow licences. However, this case highlights a ‘shadow
licence’ being applied for by a landlord to protect their interests in any future
business. The applicant is not the landlord of this property that this licence is being
applied for, therefore the above case is not relevant in this premises licence
application other than providing that shadow licences may be permissible.

On the 15t December 2019 (Niche No. 43190374839) as of the writing of this
representation there has been a stabbing and a number of major instances of
disorder in the immediate vicinity/ area of the proposed licence. We are supplying for
further consideration a full list of URN'’s relating to this specific area which date back
to 15t December 2018 and may provide evidence which the Sub-Committee feel of
assistance in relation to the types of incident that Thames Valley Police have
recorded as calls for service from the St Mary’s Butts area. (SEE APPENDIX TVP-
DS1A, TVP-DS1B & TVP-DS1C). This report provides basic information in relation
to the amount of incidents that have been reported, as well as some indication as to
the type of incidents that have been notified to us as occurring in this specific area
historically.

The incidents have not been interrogated or changed or updated and we ask that
you place as much or as little weight on the evidence contained within these reports
as you see fit. (SEE APPENDIX TVP-DS1)

In summary Thames Valley Police believe that this application does not rebut the
presumption against the issuance of this licence and believe strongly that no
evidence has been provided within the application to provide assurances that may
lead the licensing sub-committee to rule in favour of this application.

We feel strongly that this must be decided upon as a new application and as such
the Cumulative Impact Policy has not been addressed..

We therefore respectfully ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to refuse this

application.

Thames Valley Police ask the Licensing Sub-Committee to please have due regard
to the following paragraphs from within the Council Statement of Licensing Policy

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 217



GEN46-LAN(5/95)

Classification: OFFICIAL

which have not been included within the body of this representation, but which we
feel are pertinent in this situation:-

12.2 Cumulative Impact for the purposes of this policy means the potential
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of
licensed premises concentrated in one area. For example, this may include the
potential impact on crime and disorder or public nuisance on an area that a large
concentration of licensed premises may have.

12.10 This assessment will apply to all applications for the grant or variation of a
premises licence or club premises certificate and all premises that may benefit
from a premises licence or club premises certificate. This includes material
variations for increased hours for licensable activity; increased capacity and any
other matter that may add to cumulative impact in the Town Centre Cumulative
Impact Area. Section 5A of the Licensing Act 2003 uses the phrase ‘to grant any
further relevant authorisations’ in relation to Cumulative Impact Assessments.
The Authority interprets that to mean all grant and variation applications in the
relevant area. A material variation to increase the scope of a licence — whether
that be for extended licensable activities; extended hours or an increase of
capacity — is, by all definition, a grant of a new relevant authorisation in the

area as it replaces the currently existing one. This is consistent with the
Secretary of State’s Guidance and the explanatory notes to the Policing and
Crime Act 2017 which was the legislation that inserted Cumulative Impact
Assessments into the Licensing Act 2003. The Home Office have also confirmed
that this is the intent of the legislation.

12.11 The Authority has considered in formulating this assessment - in close
consultation with Thames Valley Police - that significant concerns do exist over the
high concentration of licensed premises within the town centre area. The high
concentration of licensed premises is already causing a negative cumulative impact
on one or more of the licensing objectives. Therefore granting further licences or
certificates or variations to licences and certificates may be inconsistent with the
Authority’s duty to promote the licensing objectives and protect the public as a
whole.

12.12 Concerns do exist about the concentration of premises in parts of the town
centre, particularly in Friar Street, Gun Street, St Mary’s Butts and adjoining
roads, together with the impact these premises are having upon the licensing
objectives. These concerns and the associated impact on the crime and disorder
licensing objective are underpinned by the evidence in this assessment.

12.13 The effect of the Cumulative Impact Assessment is to create a presumption
that applications for the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate or
material variations within the stated area will be refused if relevant

representations are received. This is because of the high concentration of licensed
premises already in existence in the town centre and the further undermining of
the licensing objectives that is likely to occur if further licences are granted.

12.31 Late Night Refreshment Outlets (takeaways): All applications for late night

food establishments are likely to attract representations unless the applicant can
demonstrate that there are exceptional reasons to grant such a licence. Late night

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 218



Classification: OFFICIAL

food outlets are a major contributor to crime and disorder within the late night

economy, therefore the general policy is to refuse such applications.

Late night food outlets will need to demonstrate within their operating scheaule
detailed and robust measures to mitigate issues of crime and disorder associated
with operating within the night time economy. It is not acceptable or conducive to
the promotion of the licensing objectives for late night food outlets to simply
operate to the minimum of standards. Any applicant will be expected to operate to
the highest of standards which actively promote the licensing objectives and the
provisions outlined in the Council’s licensing policy.

Late night food outlets that sell alcohol will also be expected to demonstrate how
they will responsibly retail alcohol on and off the premises. If it cannot be
demonstrated that any alcohol will be sold responsibly and in accordance to the
provisions in this policy, then that also will likely attract representations.

APPENDICES

Appendix TVP-DS1 — POLICE.UK, Detailed Statistics for the Abby/ Battle — October
2019 to November 2018

Appendix TVP-DS1A - Demand & Vulnerability Module (DAVM) — Top 50 List of
locations Crime Statistics - December 2018 to November 2019

Appendix TVP-DS1B - Demand & Vulnerability Module (DAVM) — 12 months of
incidents/ URN’s - December 2018 to November 2019

Appendix TVP-DS1B - Demand & Vulnerability Module (DAVM) — Date & Time
Figures — December 2018 to November 2019

GEN46-LAN(5/95
Clasaifiation: OFFICIAL Page 219



Page 220



B v T sT MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LN o 2 8..>_cc.a
va I STMARYS BUTTS READING e - o 2 .Mwuﬂ&..wo!.
23) STMARYS BUTTS READING RG1 206 i T T T T 24w
mé lz>w<m BUTTS READINGRG1ZN = 1] . -I._- - . -om.wcc...ﬁml
25) SR ST VARYS BUTTS wmﬂbﬂﬂ.mrz - ) 0 1 283ane
mwvlll.r. M ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LG T o Ty 25018
27) MR ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LS . i ) o 17 md,?.nhm .
28) Iﬂgsmmcdwtnnwuﬂcwﬁ an . . o ER - 05-Aug-19 )
29) lﬁllr ) im4§»<mmcdmmm>u_zam9 26 0 1 16-Ju-19
30) I ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LN R 1 o 1 1 30-Now19
w.mv||m$z>m<mwcaxm>o_zox9~_.z : T g 1T " 24Now-1e
32) RN < MARYS BUTTS READING - T T innﬂmﬂw-l
33) ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 P o T I R T i._sm...mw.. 6 .
34) l] — MR ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 e o h 0 o 1 . a.._..__ 6 x
35) Iqusn,a BUTTS READING RG12LG = 0 ) 1 B 3.)5.8
36) S ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG12LG N N 9 T 04- mmu;w i
37) S ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LG - T o 1 : :_..>:w.8.
38) SN \\ARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2N : o . ltxm o 1mﬂ.>cw-ﬂw .
39) o 0 )
40) . ‘o 0 R

AT — o o P e
Am - =— e

) S I . e i Sl
4a) . W= e o T

45) i - L||. ~ |o - 0 o
4% B S T T e

s ara s pesmae, L U
Am.v - T - 0 E.m. o

49 - o o 1
WoP : e N i 0 0

Page 221



Repeat Addresses

Batect LR

NemAnNrnood Abbey / Battle Type

(ai]

P30 s Besisi | "ST MARYS BUTTS

Select multiple addresses

Doutle-click on a celumn header to sort

TS SRR PRI

27-Nov-19

1) STMARYS BUTTS READING 1 34 95

2) SRR 57\ BUTTS READNG RG12LN S 22 17-Nov-19
3) SEEEEEESEENE ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 ZLN . o 2 T 21-0ct-19
4) SRR ST ARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LG o 3 - ) il.i! 26018
5 @ Iwﬂgmg»gzozoé a6 T 1 © 30-Nov-19
6) ST MARYS BUTTS READINGRG1 ZLN N - 1 9 2ot
7) D ST MARYS BUTTS READNG o T T T8 12septs
8) STMARYSBUTTS mm>u_zo ..... e 0 o !u 17-Aug-19
9) NN ST MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 208 2 2 5 13Nov-19
10) MEEENIND ST MARYS BUTTS READNGRG1ZIN T 4 06-Oct-19
11) I ST WARYS BUTTS READING RO1 21G o 0 4 17-Jul-19
12) SN ST ARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LN e 0 4 01-Apr-19
13) SRR 7 MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LN o 1 3 tosepts
tc .mq MARYS BUTTS mm>u_zm o - - 2 3 . Nm.oomw
15) SIS ST MARYS BUTTS READING o . 0 3 15Mayte
16) MEEEMBENNENS ST WARYS BUTTS READING RG12LG Y 3 28-Aug-19
17) SEEEN) =7 MARYS UTTS READING RGIZN N o s mﬂ)ct!mlémi
18) | 18) IS ST MARYS BUTTS READING ROt 2LN I T 17-Nov-19
19) () MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LN - T 2 ' 18-Sep-19
20) [l MARYS BUTTS READING RG1 2LN == - 1 o . iwz T 0s0Oct1s

Page 222



Attendance Figures

Attendance Times*

1st Quartile

Median

3rd Quartile

1.1mins

3.2mins

7.5mins

10.0mins

20.4mins

35.4mins

Response Grading __|Total Incidents] Attended|% Attended
Immediate 130 127 97.7%
Urgent 34 30 88.2%
By Arrangement 14 4 28.6%
By Appointment 2 0.0%
Telephone Resolution 63 6 9.5%
Other

1.2mins

5.4mins

14.3mins

* only calculates if there were 5 or more
attended incidents

Immediate & Urgent incident resource commitment

Total commitment time (in minutes)

| 1

Avg.-mins per incident:

| 0

Page 223



Date and Time Figures

Hour

Mon| Tue|Wed|Thu

00:00 - 00:59

01:00 - 01:59

02:00 - 02:59

[03:00 - 03:59

04:00 - 04:59

05:00 - 05:59

06:00 - 06:59

Month{Count] %
Dec 23 | 9.5%
Jan 15 | 6.2%
Feb 21 | 8.6%
Mar 18 | 7.4%
Apr 20 | B.2%
May 20 | 8.2%
Jun 11 | 4.5%
Jul 25 110.3%
Aug 23 | 9.5%
Sep 18 | 7.4%
Oct 29 |11.9%
Nov 20 | 8.2%

07:00 - 07:59
08:00 - 08:59
09:00 - 09:59
10:00 - 10:59
11:00 - 11:59
12:00 - 12:59
13:00 - 13:59
14:00 - 14:59

15:00 - 15:59
16:00 - 16:59
17.00 - 17:59
18:00 - 18:59
19:00 - 19:59

NN

20:00 - 20:59

21:00 - 21:59

22:00 - 22:59

23:00 - 23:59

NWIWINW

Njw

Nl

wWiN

WIN

NS~

Page 224



l %v0 |l NOSH3d ONISSIN
l %¥0 |} 183.10dd
l %P0 | d31S3N03Y SNOILYAYISHO

b %0 |l LINIAIONI - SNIFD

l %P0 |1 ALINNINNOD/SSANISNG AHVY194Nd

3 %0 |l STTAHINALHTLOHd ANNOFA/LSO1

} %0 |l J1d AMNPCNI

l %¥'0 |l JHNSOdX3 TVNXES

3 %¥0 | LINVSSY TvVNX3S

2 %P0 |} J.1d ATNO FOVIANVA

| %v'0 | H3H1O FON3440 TVNX3S

| %¥'0 |l LIN3IAIONI 3 LVH

| %0 |l d340LINOW LON 3181aNnV
[4 %60 |C Ad39490d

[4 %60 |C Q3INWHIINOD ¥3ANY.LNI
} b %60 |2 ONIANIEA DILYHEI/SNOHIONVYA
Z L %EL |E JFONADITTALNI
4 3 %e L |€ AYINONI/AYINITIA FDOVSSIN
} € %L ¥ FONITOIA D1LSANOA

[ 14 4 %9¢C |9 HNOIAVYHIG TVIOOSILNY
€ L [4 %9'C |9 HIHLO/LJ4THL
L4 } 14 %8t |6 NOVILVY TVNOSHAd
el } [4 3 %CL |1l T1vO A3 LdNHEILNI/AINOANYEY
4 3 € L L %L . |8l HIHLO/LINVYSSY
l 3 L Ll %G8 |0C JONV.LSISSY HO4 1S3N0DIY
A A 9 L %6'8 |LC LNIAIONI - SNOANVTIIOSIN
€ } S 8l %G LL|LC FAVH4TIM TYNOSHId HO4 ¥v3d
6 € gl %6°L1L |82 FTIOIHINNOSHIAJ/ONI/SIHIO SNS
9 l l o %0'¢C IS SSIHO0Ud NI NOILLYOHILTVY
suIpjuonnjosay suoydeje | [jusuiuioddy Ag) Juswiabuelry Agliusbin aleipawiw) LA FLTe) uoneoiisseld gng

SaInblj uoneoyisse|)

Page 225



Page 226



Classification: OFFICIAL
Appendix — TVP-DS1

Ml hittps /www.policeuk thames-yaliey/14464/cnmer- ¢ O + @ € () Abbey / Battle neighbourhood... | Il Detailed statistics for Abbey...

POLICE. UK T younr neighbourhiood Shage this page

Home > Thames Valiey Police = Abbey / Battie > Crime map =
In this neighbourhood

f 5 " Detailed statistics for Abbey / Overview
- Battle Crime map

Stop and search

Ity

- ra
. Policing team
b
Y News and events
Y MOpLoNs E—
© Mapbox , © OpenStreetvap Local policing priorities
Performance
Community Payback
Contents
Comparison of crime types in this area between November 2018 and October 2019 Related pages
Companson of outcomes in this area between November 2018 and October 2019
Crime levels in this area between November 2018 and October 2019 Find out more about Thames
Valley Police's perforrnance on
HMICFRS's website

Download crime data for this area as a CSV file

Compare cnme levels with other
similar areas

Comparison of crime types in this area between November 2018
and October 2019

Anti-social behaviour
Bicycle theft

Burglary

Criminal damage and arson
Drugs

Other crime

Other theft

Possession of weapons
Public order

Robbery

Shoplifting

Theft from the person
Vehicle crime

Violence and sexual offences

0 25 50 75 100
Number of crimes

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 227



Classification: OFFICIAL

Appendix — TVP-DS1

Crime type Total Percentage
Anti-social behaviour 30 7.28%
Bicycle theft 15 364%
Burglary 7 1.70%
Criminal damage and arson 28 6.80%

Drugs 10 243%

Other crime 10 243%

Other theft 39 947%
Possession of weapons 3 0.73%
Public order 34 8.25%
Robbery 1% 3.64%
Shoplitting 81 19 66%
Theft from the person 19 461%
Vehicte crime 0 0.00%
Violence and sexual offences 121 29.37%

Comparison of outcomes in this area between November 2018
and October 2019

i

Under investigation
No further action

I Offender dealt with by
police

I Offender sent to court

Il Ofiender deatt with at court

=

Outcome type Total Percentage

Under investigation 66 17.28%
Under investigation 46 12.04%

Status update unavailabte 20 5.24%

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 228



Classification: OFFICIAL

Appendix - TVP-DS1
No-furtharaction 248 £4.92%
Format-action-is-notin-the-publie-interest 6 6-60%
Further action is not in the public interest 0 0.00%
Further investigation is not in the public interest 3 079%
Investigation complete; no suspect identified 154 40.31%
Unabie to prosectute suspect 91 23.82%
Offender dealt with by police 20 5.24%
Action to be taken by another organisation 0 0.00%
Offender given a drugs possession waming 0 0.00%
Offender given penalty notice 0 0.00%
Offender given a caution 13 3.40%
Local resolution 7 1.83%
Offender sent to court 29 7.89%
Suspect charged 29 7.59%
Suspect charged as part of another case 0 0,00%
Offender deatt with at court 19 4.97%
Court case unable to proceed 0 0.00%
Defendant sent to Crown Court 0 0.00%
Defendant found not guilty 0 0.00%
Offender given absolute discharge 0 0.00%
Offender given conditional discharge 0 0.00%
Offender ordered to pay compensation 0 0.00%
Offender fined 5 1.31%
Offender deprived of property (] 0.00%
Offender given community sentence 1 0.26%
Offender given suspended prison sentence 0 0.00%
Offender sent to prison 1 0.26%
Offender otherwise dealt with 0 0.00%
Court result unavailable 12 3.14%

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 229



Classification: OFFICIAL
Appendix — TVP-DS1

Crime levels in this area between November 2018 and October
2019

Showing: All crime

50

e
=

0
230
K
B
g2
€
Z
10
0
$ § 5 § 7 ® % 3y 8 & & ¢
E &2 3y % gz ¢ @ @ ® ¥ =% ¥
s 2 & 3 © 8 @
© @ w0
Month Total
October 2018 32
September 2019 41
August 2019 37
July 2019 38
June 2019 35
May 2019 37
April 2019 27
March 2018 26
February 2019 36
January 2019 38
December 2018 35
November 2018 30

Classification: OFFICIAL Page 230



[ e SN [ T e e R e el e T e o M e S T ]
Data downloaded from the Demand and Vulnerability module on 18/12/2019 14:47:26
URN & Date Time |Opening Sub Classification Response Grade OSGR At Scei
189 - 30-NOV-18 | 03:14|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MAR|Telephone Resolution| 471300173300
218 - 30-NOV-19 | 03:49|ASSAULT/OTHER MARYS BUT By Appointment 471294173344
827 - 27-NOV-19 | 15:30|ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL BUTTS READINGBY Arrangement 471294173344
207 - 24-NOV-19 | 03:01JALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 629
244 - 24-NOV-19 | 03:52|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS T MARYS BUTTS READIlImmediate 471358173350{ 2008
264 - 24-NOV-19 | 04:35|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MAHK Urgent 471287173388| 299
1243 1 24-NOV-19 ] 21:05|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 361
1009 4 23-NOV-19 | 17:55]ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL |{ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{Telephone Resolution] 471294173344
220 - 17-NOV-19 | 03:29/SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE Immediate 471294173344| 151
829 - 17-NOV-18 | 15:28{SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/NEHICLE T MARY{Telephone Resolution| 471287173388
1010 1 17-NOV-19 | 17:19|DANGEROUS/ERRATIC DRIVING  |ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
1246 41 13-NOV-18 | 20:07]ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTlimmediate 471294173344| 1764
210 - 10-NOV-19 | 04:08]ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 221
1265 1 08-NOV-19| 20:10JALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUT1limmediate 471294173344 510
1348 1 07-NOV-19 | 20:49|DOMESTIC VIOLENCE Immediate 471294173344 564
866 - 05-NOV-19 | 16:12|ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344
160 - 04-NOV-19 ] 08:07|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE [ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 160
264 - 03-NOV-19 | 04:21]ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate | 471294173344 71
149 - 01-NOV-19 | 03:52]ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 497
14 - 01-NOV-19 | 00:10|JABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL |ST MARYS BUTTS READINTelephone Resolution| 471294173344
235 -26-OCT-19 | 04:31|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{Immediate 471294173344 2
1361 {26-0CT-19 | 21:09]FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE T MARYS BUTTS READ|Urgent 471300173400
221 - 26-OCT-19 | 04:11]REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE Urgent 471351173386] 338
127 - 25-OCT-19 | 03:39/ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Immediate 471294173344 234
1378 4 25-0CT-19 | 21:22|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT Immediate 471294173344 162
1475 -24-0CT-19 | 21:49|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344
113 - 22-OCT-19 | 03:30]ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 198

Page 231



339 - 21-0CT-19 |10:04 ST MARYS BUTTS READIN@Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
1534 - 21-0OCT-19| 22:57|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MAlImmediate 471294173344| 206
198 - 20-OCT-19 | 03:20|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Immediate 471351173386] 1070
717 - 18-OCT-19 1 14:27|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution] 471294173344
216 - 15-0OCT-19 | 08:22|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINd Immediate 471294173344 7
1291 - 12-0CT-19 | 20:33JALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Immediate 471300173300] 402
111 - 12-OCT-19 | 02:53|ASSAULT/OTHER Immediate 471351173386] 153
84 - 11-OCT-19 ] 02:32]JALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 176
110 - 11-OCT-19 | 03:39|MISCELLANEOQOUS - INCIDENT Urgent 471287173388| 252
345 - 10-OCT-19 | 09:53|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 200
23 - 10-OCT-19 | 00:45|THEFT/OTHER ST MARYS BUTTS READINdImmediate 471294173344 30
147 - 06-OCT-19 |02:17|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS T MARYS BUTTS READINImmediate 471294173344 133
238 - 06-OCT-19 | 04:42|ASSAULT/OTHER ST MARYS BUT]|Telephone Resolution| 471287173388
1238 - 06-OCT-19 | 20:39|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE I Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
990 - 06-OCT-19 | 17:45|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344
230 - 06-OCT-19 | 04:26|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/NEHICLE Immediate 471294173344 2695
46 - 05-OCT-19 | 00:25|MISCELLANEQUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 205
141 - 03-OCT-19 | 04:04|ASSAULT/OTHER ST MAlImmediate 471294173344| 685
13 -03-OCT-19 1 00:10{FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE [ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 276
740 - 02-OCT-19 | 14:28|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/NVEHICLE ST MARYS BUTT|Telephone Resolution| 471345173391
1558 - 01-OCT-19 | 22:16|ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL [ST MARYS BUTTS READING Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
96 - 01-OCT-19 | 04:10JABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL ST MARYS BUTTS READ|Urgent 471287173388| 1481
276 - 29-SEP-19 | 03:42|ASSAULT/QOTHER ST MARYS BUTTS READINEImmediate 471294173344 32
187 - 28-SEP-19 | 03:55|ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL [ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{ Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
198 - 28-SEP-18 | 04:25|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTTS READIN@Immediate 471294173344 69
901 - 27-SEP-19 | 16:02|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE |ST MARYS BUTTS READING Immediate 471294173344 1
1362 - 24-SEP-19 | 20:01|THEFT/OTHER ST MAR|Immediate 471300173300] 649
1479 - 23-SEP-19 | 22:54|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTTS READINGBY Arrangement 471294173344| 834
92 - 21-SEP-19 01:22|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE [ST MARYS BUTTS READIN@Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
444 - 18-SEP-19 | 11:01{INTRUDER CONFIRMED MARYS BUTTS READQ Telephone Resolution| 471287173388
885 - 14-SEP-19 | 14:56| MESSAGE DELIVERY/ENQUIRY ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
1437 - 12-SEP-19 | 21:28|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE ST MjUrgent 471700173300] 527

Page 232



636 - 12-BEP-19 | 13:34|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
44 - 10-SEP-19 01:.09|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Immediate 471294173344 303
1499 - 07-SEP-19 | 22:36]|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT Immediate 471300173300 25
215 - 07-BEP-19 | 04:09]ASSAULT/OTHER Telephone Resolution| 471300173300
1320 4 06-SEP-19 | 20:32]JALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 2
1312 1 06-SEP-19 | 20:27/ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MAR|Immediate 471300173300| 558
474 - 05-8EP-19 | 11:38|ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution] 471294173344
766 - 04-BEP-19 | 15:07|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE ST MAR]}Telephone Resolution] 471347173374
163 - 31-AUG-19 | 00:01{SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE ST MARY{Urgent 471287173388| 1376
79 - 29-AUG-19 | 01:39|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MAR|Telephone Resolution] 471294173344| 1639
1107 1 29-AUG-19 | 17:35|ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ST MATelephone Resolution| 471359173361
1425 4 27-AUG-19 | 19:45|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE ST MA/lmmediate 471294173344| 260
1324 - 24-AUG-19 | 20:16|MESSAGE DELIVERY/ENQUIRY ST MATelephone Resolution{ 471359173361
129 - 17-AUG-19 | 02:29|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/NEHICLE |{ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 5
83 - 14-AUG-19 | 01:50|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MAR|Telephone Resolution| 471300173300
46 - 13-AUG-19 | 00:57]FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE [ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{immediate 471294173344| 352
504 - 13-AUG-19 | 12:16|PERSONAL ATTACK Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
344 - 11-AUG-19 | 07:47|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINdImmediate 471294173344 68
1177 - 11tAUG-19 | 19:26|DOMESTIC VIOLENCE ST MARYS BUTTS READIN(Iimmediate 471294173344 2
349 - 10-AUG-19 | 08:33|AUDIBLE NOT MONITORED ST MAR]Telephone Resolution| 471347173374
72 - 09-AUG-19 ] 01:53|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT T MARYS BUTTS READI{Urgent 471294173344 4912
100 - 08-AUG-19 | 02:18|ROBBERY ST MAImmediate 471294173344| 464
767 - 07-AUG-19 | 14:49]FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE ST MAUrgent 471359173361| 2119
1719 -|06tAUG-19 | 22:18|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTT{Immediate 471345173391] 400
102 - 05-AUG-19 | 02:54|INTELLIGENCE ST MARYS BUT]Immediate 471287173388 3544
570 - 05-AUG-19 | 12:35|HATE INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTT{By Appointment 471345173391
253 - 03-AUG-19 | 04:46|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARlimmediate 471294173344 79
922 - 02-AUG-19 | 15:33|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE |ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{!mmediate 471294173344| 103
976 - 01-AUG-18 ] 15:33|SEXUAL OFFENCE OTHER ST MARYS BUTTS READIN¢Immediate 471294173344 598
751 - (1-AUG-19 | 13:37|THEFT/OTHER ST MARYS BUT]Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
1190 -|01;tAUG-19| 17:21|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTTS READIN(Immediate 471294173344 102
258 - 28-JUL-19 | 03:46|ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL Immediate 471351173386| 277

Page 233



317 - 28-JUL-19_ | 04:50]REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE Urgent 471351173386] 838
162 - 26-JUL-19 | 03:26|ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344

1177 - 25-JUL-19 | 16:56]INTELLIGENGE Telephone Resolution| 471294173344

132-22-JUL-19 | 03:01|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS {Immediate 471294173344 527
1175 - 22-JUL-19 | 17:08]ASSAULT/OTHER ST MARY THE VIRGIN ST M|immediate 471700173300 _ 99
33 -19-JUL-19 | 00:25|ASSAULT/OTHER {immediate 471294173344] 118
1763 - 18-JUL-19 | 23:54| ROBBERY ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344] 7
659 - 17-JUL-19 | 13:07|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE ST MAUrgent 471359173361] 5813
22 -16-JUL-19 | 00:23|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE ST MAR|Urgent 471379173361

1474 - 15-JUL-19 | 19:38]ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344

131-13-JUL-19 | 02:00]DAMAGE ONLY RTC {Immediate 471300173300 381
264 - 13-JUL-19 | 04:41|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Immediate 471351173386| 656
107 - 12-JUL-19 | 02:12|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344] 106
115 - 11-JUL-19_ | 02:47]ABANDONED/NTERRUPTED CALL |ST MARYS BUTTS READING Urgent 471294173344

126 - 09-JUL19_ | 04:08 ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344] 4
88-08-JUL-19 | 01:44|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344] 69
215-07-JUL-19_ | 02:49]THEFT/OTHER — | ST VA Telophone Resolution] 471294173344

720 - 07-JUL-19 | 14:12| ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL |ST MARYS BUTTS READING Telephone Resolution] 471294173344

855 - 05-JUL-19 | 13:55|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READING Telephone Resolution| 471294173344

1837 - 05-JUL-19 |20:57[SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344] 278
1436 - 04-JUL-19 | 18:40|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE _|ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344] 1422
1829 - 03-JUL-19 | 23:58]ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344] 378
150 - 02-JUL-19__| 04:03|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Immediate 471294173344] 385
803 - 02-JUL-19_ | 13:45|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE ST M/Urgent 471700173300] 1154
173 - 30-JUN-19_ | 01:35 Immediate 471294173344 3
113-27-JUN-19_| 03:03|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READINGUrgent 471294173344 537
542 - 24-JUN-19_| 11:55|SEXUAL ASSAULT ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344] 3
80-21-JUN-19 | 01:26]ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 1
127 - 15-JUN-19 | 01:46|ASSAULT/OTHER ST MARYS BUTTS READINGBy Arrangement 471294173344

69 - 15-JUN-19__ | 00:54| ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGIimmediate 471294173344 568
1251 - 12-JUN-19 | 19:57|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT {Telephone Resolution| 471294173344 366
1033 - 07-JUN-19 | 16:21|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE T MA[Urgent 471294173344] 439

Page 234



1633 1 03-JUN-19 | 22:48[SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE Telephone Resolution| 471351173386

1602 ; 03-JUN-19 | 23:05|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE ST MAImmediate 471294173344

41 - 011-JUN-19 00:31 ST MARY THE VIRGIN ST M{lmmediate 471700173300] 105
728 - 30-MAY-19 | 14:40]ASSAULT/OTHER ST MARYS BUT1|By Arrangement 471294173344

119 - 29-MAY-19 | 02:34|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 362
1573 1 24-MAY-19 | 21:43|ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ST MAUrgent 471359173361| 2123
639 - 24-MAY-19 | 13:17|THEFT/OTHER T MARYS BUTTS READ|By Arrangement 471287173388

106 - 22-MAY-19 | 00:15|ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ST MARYS BUTTS READINGBy Arrangement 471294173344 803
1146 1 21-MAY-19 | 18: 18| REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE T MARYS BUTTImmediate 471294173344 146
843 - 20-MAY-19 | 15:53|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MA Immediate 471294173344| 231
1038 1 19-MAY-18 | 17:32|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINQUrgent 471294173344| 1281
1066 1 18-MAY-19 | 17:32|ASSAULT/OTHER By Arrangement 471294173344

71-15-MAY-19 | 01:47|MISCELLANEOQUS - INCIDENT T MARYImmediate 471294173344| 392
1514 1 13-MAY-19 ] 21:39| THEFT/OTHER T MATelephone Resolution| 471359173361

1207 1 13-MAY-19 | 18:19|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE Immediate 471294173344 860
1337 1 11-MAY-19 | 20:00|ASSAULT/OTHER Immediate 471294173344| 328
682 - 11-MAY-19 | 13:05/SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE ST MA{immediate 471294173344 0
1027 1 09-MAY-19 | 17:45]ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ST MARYS BUTTS READINGUrgent 471294173344| 1712
1244 - 09-MAY-19 | 20:00/ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL [ST MARYS BUTTS READINTelephone Resolution| 471294173344

887 - 09-MAY-19 |} 16:10|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE Urgent 471294173344 2414
221 - 05-MAY-19 ] 04:12{ASSAULT/OTHER ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 228
1169 1 01-MAY-19 | 17:56|/ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL [ST MARYS BUTTS READING Telephone Resolution] 471294173344

112 - 01-MAY-19 | 02:57|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/NVEHICLE [ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 2
1272 - 29-APR-19 | 19:23|ASSAULT/OTHER T MARYS BUT|immediate 471287173388| 147
246 - 28-APR-19 ] 04:28/ASSAULT/OTHER ST MAR|Immediate 471300173300( 1195
232 - 28-APR-19 | 04:02|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE Immediate 471351173386/ 185
1070 - 28-APR-19 | 18:28[SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/NEHICLE |ST MARYS BUTTS READING Immediate 471294173344 3
186 - 27-APR-19 | 04:17|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 427
1549 - 27-APR-19 ] 22:10JALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTT{immediate 471345173391 1
1403 - 25:APR-19 | 21:33|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 5
574 - 22-APR-19 | 13:45|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE |ST MARYS GRAVEYARD ST/Immediate 471406173325| 152
1315 -|22tAPR-19 | 21:14]|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS [immediate 471294173344 330

Page 235



1258 - 14-APR-19 | 21:15|SEXUAL EXPOSURE ST MAR|Immediate 471300173300 673
241 - 14-APR-19 | 04:38|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS REAlImmediate 471300173300] 122
1110 - 13-APR-19 | 18:58|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE ST M{immediate 471700173300} 334
1321 - 13-APR-19 | 21:18|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTT{Immediate 471345173391 108
951 - 07-APR-19 | 16:18|ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ST MARYS BUTTS READINGBY Arrangement 471294173344
1356 - 06-APR-19 | 21:08|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT Urgent 471700173300| 1174
1319 - 06-APR-19 | 20:43|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE Telephone Resolution| 471300173300
1548 - 05-APR-19 | 21:38|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 g3
473 - 05-APR-19 | 11:42|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE [ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{Telephone Resolution| 471294173344 2
303 - 02-APR-19 |10:09 ST MAR|Immediate 471300173300 32
230 - 01-APR-19 | 09:06|PERSONAL ATTACK Urgent 471288173388| 401
298 - 31-MAR-19 | 08:10|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE Urgent 471288173388| 1500
634 - 30-MAR-19 | 12:10|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READINGBy Arrangement 471294173344
1638 - 29-MAR-19] 22:10|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE [ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 46
161 - 23-MAR-19 | 02:11|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT Immediate 471351173386 22
1418 - 22-MAR-19] 20:06|/ASSAULT/OTHER ST MARY THE VIRGIN ST M{immediate 471700173300 772
55 - 22-MAR-19 | 01:25|MESSAGE DELIVERY/ENQUIRY ST MARYS BUTT{Urgent 471345173391 939
358 - 16-MAR-19 | 08:38|PERSONAL ATTACK ST MARYS BUTTS READ Telephone Resolution| 471287173388
189 - 16-MAR-19 | 03:23|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344
210 - 16-MAR-19 | 03:55|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE TR{Immediate 471294173344 122
196 - 14-MAR-19 ] 08:30|INTRUDER CONFIRMED {Telephone Resolution| 471288173388
584 - 13-MAR-18 | 12:50|INJURY RTC ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 505
254 - 10-MAR-19 | 04:35|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 3
201 - 09-MAR-19 ]03:57|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Immediate 471351173386| 506
1388 - 08-MAR-19 20:16|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
100 - 07-MAR-19 | 02:59]ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 142
1354 - 05-MAR-19] 20:02|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST M{lmmediate 471700173300 1
946 - 03-MAR-19 | 17:08|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MAllmmediate 471294173344 111
846 - 02-MAR-19 | 14:50/ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL |ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
1091 - 28-FEB-19 | 17:30|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MA|Telephone Resolution] 471294173344
10 - 25-FEB-19 00:12 T MARYTelephone Resolution| 471294173344
1124 - 23-FEB-19 | 17:36|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE {Immediate 471294173344| 1917

Page 236



130 - 22-FEB-19 | 04:21|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 220
1654 1 22-FEB-19 | 22:38|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE [ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 148
34 - 21-FEB-19 00:42|ABANDONED/INTERRUPTED CALL ST MARYS BUTT{Telephone Resolution| 471345173391
156 - 20-FEB-19 | 06:22|PERSONAL ATTACK ST MA By Arrangement 471294173344 5337
114 - 20-FEB-19 | 03:20|PERSONAL ATTACK ST MATelephone Resolution| 471294173344
75 - 19-FEB-19 01:31]PERSONAL ATTACK ST MAlUrgent 471294173344] 124
163 - 19-FEB-19 | 06:23|PERSONAL ATTACK ST MAUrgent 471284173344 4749
127 - 18-FEB-19 ] 04:28/ASSAULT/OTHER limmediate 471294173344 576
229 - 16-FEB-19 ] 04:06 immediate 471351173386] 203
182 - 16-FEB-19 | 03:02|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
151141 16-FEB-19 | 21:26|MISCELLANEQUS - INCIDENT ST MAR|Urgent 471300173300f 785
201 -16-FEB-19 103:24 Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
58 - 15-FEB-19 01:24|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS T MARYS BUTTS READINImmediate 471294173344| 456
913 - 14-FEB-19 | 15:50|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MAlImmediate 471294173344] 209
51 - 11-FEB-19 01:18|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINdImmediate 471294173344} 1292
227 -/10-FEB-18 | 04:11|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYImmediate 471294173344 91
87 - 07-FEB-19 03:27|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Telephone Resolution| 471294173344
1229 -1 03-FEB-19 | 21:28|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTT{Urgent 471345173391} 861
18 - 31-JAN-19 00:38/SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE [ST MARYS BUTTS READING Immediate 471294173344 60
261 - 29-JAN-19 ] 09:21|LOST/FOUND PROPERTY/VEHICLE By Arrangement 471325173334
926 - 29-JAN-19 [ 17:05]INTELLIGENCE ST MARYS BUTTS READIN(Telephone Resolution] 471294173344
244 - 27-JAN-19 | 05:14|BURGLARY BUSINESS/COMMUNI Urgent 471294173344 3256
1236 - 25-JAN-19 |21:16|DOMESTIC VIOLENCE Immediate 471294173344] 209
892 - 24-JAN-18 117:22|DOMESTIC VIOLENCE Urgent 471294173344| 9742
482 - 23-JAN-19 | 12:46]DANGEROUS/ERRATIC DRIVING ST MAlimmediate 471294173344 8
198 - 20-JAN-19 | 03:37|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGBy Arrangement 471294173344
1001 -/ 20rJAN-19 | 18:42|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE ST MARYS BUT]Immediate 471287173388| 185
198 - 19-JAN-19 | 04:17|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Immediate 471351173386
30 - 17-JAN-19 00:45|SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE {ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344
163 - 13-JAN-19 | 03:28{ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READING Immediate 471294173344 109
175 - 05-JAN-19 ] 03:50|CRIME - INCIDENT Immediate 471351173386] 147
46 - 05-JAN-19 00:40]OBSERVATIONS REQUESTED ST MARYS BUTTS READINGBY Arrangement 471294173344 0

Page 237



628 - 03-JAN-19 | 14:25|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344| 1025
119 - 31-DEC-18 | 03:37|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 4712941733441 130
23 - 30-DEC-18 00:15{MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MATelephone Resolution| 471359173361

206 - 29-DEC-18 | 04:33JALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTT]Immediate 471345173391 363
292 - 23-DEC-18 | 05:12|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTTS READING Immediate 471294173344 3
1176 - 22-DEC-18 | 18:29|PERSONAL ATTACK Urgent 471284173344

1656 - 21-DEC-18 | 23:20|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 3
127 - 20-DEC-18 | 04:10|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE ST MARYS BUTTjimmediate 4713451733911 935
882 - 20-DEC-18 | 16:39|ANTISOCIAL BEHAVIOUR ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344

33 - 18-DEC-18 00:51|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE ST MARYS BUTT|By Arrangement 471345173391

1455 - 17-DEC-18 | 23:19|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS Urgent 4712941733441 2896
187 - 16-DEC-18 | 02:28|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 3
258 - 16-DEC-18 | 04:08|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINdImmediate 471294173344 3
103 - 14-DEC-18 | 02:43|ASSAULT/OTHER ST MARYS BUTTUrgent 471294173344 1274
812 - 13-DEC-18 | 15:19{SUS CIRCS/INC/PERSON/VEHICLE |ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344 709
102 - 12-DEC-18 | 03:04|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUT|Immediate 471287173388| 500
1045 - 08-DEC-18 | 16:07|PERSONAL ATTACK Telephone Resolution| 471288173388

1038 - 07-DEC-18 | 16:34|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE Immediate 471294173344 7
22 - 06-DEC-18 00:25|FEAR FOR PERSONAL WELFARE |ST MARYS BUTTS READIN{Immediate 471294173344 213
650 - 06-DEC-18 | 13:30|MISCELLANEOUS - INCIDENT ST MARYS BUTTS READINGTelephone Resolution| 471294173344

1376 - 04-DEC-18 § 21:19|PROTEST Telephone Resolution} 471351173386 3
293 - 04-DEC-18 | 09:27|MISSING PERSON ST MA Telephone Resolution| 471294173344

1214 - 02-DEC-18 | 20:12|ALTERCATION IN PROGRESS ST MARYS BUTTS READINGImmediate 471294173344| 652
170 - 01-DEC-18 | 02:14|REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE ST MARYS BUTTS READINGUrgent 471294173344| 1001

Page 238



€% Reading
Borough Councul

Working better with you
| Name of Officer Robert Smalley
Type of Application Premises Licence - Grant - Licensing Act 2003
Name of Premises The Hut Central Kebabs
Address 39 St Mary’s Butts
Reading
RG1 2LG
Licensable Activities Provision of Late Night Refreshment
Finish Times Mon |Tue |[Wed |Thu | Fri |[Sat |Sun
- —4-0300 1-0230-1-0300-1 0300-+-0300+0330--0200

Content of Application:

The application was submitted on behalf of Mr Kamal Ahmed Saleem for
the grant of premises licence on 06 December 2019. The applicant has
applied for late night refreshment. The hours of operation that have been
applied for for the provision of late night refreshment are: Mon - 0300hrs,
Tues - 0230hrs, Wed - 0300hrs, Thurs - 0300hrs, Fri - 0300hrs, Sat - 0330hrs
& Sun - 0200hrs.

The Premises is located within the Council’s Cumulative Impact Area.

Licensing Officer’s Comments:

This premises currently has a licence with number LP9000107. The holder of
this licence has vacated the property and has decided not to transfer or
surrender the licence.The premises requires a premises licence for Late
Night Refreshment to operate as a takeaway from 23.00 hours to the
terminal hours stated above. These hours in this location have the potential
to undermine the Licensing objectives of Prevention of Crime and Disorder,
Prevention of Public Nuisance and Public Safety. The licensing team wish to
make representation against the application submitted on behalf of Mr
Kamal Ahmed Saleem to licence the premises known as The Hut Central
Kebabs, 39 St Marys Butts, Reading , RG1 2LG for the following reasons:

1. The application is contrary to the Council’s Cumulative Impact
Assessment as prescribed in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. The
policy at 12.12 specifically mentions St Mary’s Butts as a source of concern
due to the numbers of existing licensed premises. Appendix RS-1 exhibits
Appendix 4 of this policy which illustrates the consistently high levels of
violent and sexual offences that occur in the St Mary’s Butts area of town.

Page 239




Appendix RS-2 provides the most up-to-date crime statistics for St Mary’s
Butts and it clearly shows that not only are there high numbers of crime in
the area, but also that the number of crimes between midnight and 0400hrs
are consistently higher than at any other time of the day. In the past few
weeks as of the writing of this representation there has been a stabbing and
a number of instances of disorder in the immediate vicinity of the proposed
licence.

2. The application states that it is for a shadow licence of an existing
licence currently held by an individual that no longer has access to the site
but has to date not transferred or surrendered the current licence. The
application then makes reference to the high court case of Extreme Oyster
& Star Oyster Ltd. v Guildford Borough Council which provides legal
weighting to the matter of shadow licences. However, this case highlights a
‘shadow licence’ being applied for by a landlord to protect their interests in
any future business at their property. In the above case the claimant stated
their intentions in respect of the future of its business at the premises were:

“§) To protect it in the event that its tenants went into liquidation or
surrendered its licence, or was the subject of review proceedings.

ii) To protect it in the event that its tenants failed to pay / were late
paying their rent.

iii) In the event that it gave notice to quit and retake possession pending
redevelopment of the premises, to enable it to run the premises in the
meantime.

iv) To enable it to market the premises or parts of the premises should the
tenants stay in possession for the full term of the tenancy that had a one -
year ‘break’ clause.”

Mr Saleem is not the landlord of the property that this licence is being
applied for, therefore the above case is not relevant in this application
other than providing that shadow licences may be permissible.

Paragraphs 9.23 and 9.24 of Reading Borough Council’s Statement of
Licensing Policy provide an explanation of the meaning of the term ‘shadow
licence’ and details the Authority’s stance on the matter. Specifically, 9.24
states ‘Any application for a ‘shadow licence’' and any enforcement action
that may need to be taken will be dealt with in accordance with this policy
and the measures already set out. This would include, for example, a
prospective applicant for a ‘shadow licence’ in the Council’s Cumulative
Impact Area being able to rebut the presumption of refusal against such
licences being granted in that area.’

It is the opinion of the Licensing Authority that an application for a shadow
licence does not provide any inherent evidence in terms of rebutting the
Authority’s Cumulative Impact Assessment. The original licence that this
application is proposing to shadow was granted before the Cumulative
impact Assessment formed part of the Authority’s Licensing Policy and
therefore this application can’t be considered on the same grounds as the

Page 240




originat-appticatiom—Weappreciatethat thecurrentticence;if transferred;
could be used as per the hours stated on it and it is our interpretation of
this application that this is the main point being put forward to rebut the
Cumulative Impact Assessment, in that granting a shadow licence will not
provide any more negative impact on the area, as it is, in all practicality,
simply replacing a current licence. However, despite cognisance of
this point, the matter of the fact is that the current licence, in all
practicality, is no longer active and therefore not causing any negative
impact. Since this licence has been dormant the levels of crime have
remained very high in this area and the likely effect of granting this licence
will only compound this issue.

3. When looking to grant a premises licence, the licensing authority and
other Responsible Authorities have to determine what the likely effect of
granting any licence would be on the promotion of the licensing objectives.
This is consistent with section 18 (6) of the Licensing Act 2003. The licensing
objectives are prospective as outlined below and given all of the above
reasons-we-respectfully submit-that this application be refused.

The approach of the Licensing Team:

The Responsible Authorities named in the Licensing Act 2003 have to ensure
that the licensing objectives are all actively promoted to prevent crime
and disorder and public nuisance. All four licensing objectives are of equal
importance.

Case Law and Secretary of State's Guidance (April 2018)

Section 1.5 of the Secretary of State’s Guidance states that the Licensing
Act 2003 also supports a number of other key aims and purposes. These are
vitally important and should be the principal aims of everyone involved in
licensing work: They Include protecting the public and local residents from
crime, anti-social behaviour and noise nuisance.

Section 18 (6) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that representations shoutld
be about the likely effect of the grant of a licence on the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

Therefore as outlined in the Court of Appeal Licensing case Hope and Glory
v City of Westminster (2011) EWCA Civ31 - licensing decisions ....involve an
evaluation of what is to be regarded as reasonably acceptable in a
particular location...(this) is essentially a matter of judgement rather than
amatter of pure fact’.

Further, in the High Court case of East Lindsey District Council v Abu Hanif
(2016) EWHC 1265 (admin) Mr Justice Jay reaffirmed the position that
Licensing authorities need not wait for the licensing objectives to be
undermined before it takes action on a licensing application. Mr Justice Jay
stated that ‘the prevention of crime and disorder requires a prospective

Page 241




consideration of what is warranted within the public interest having regard
to the twin considerations of prevention and deterrence’.

Lastly, the case of the British Beer and Pub Association v Canterbury City
Council clearly indicates the use of the Council’s policy in guiding applicants
when applying for a licence. Mr Justice Richards stated that:

“The council is entitled to indicate in the policy its own expectations with
regard to the promotion of the licensing objectives; and | do not think that
an applicant can legitimately complain if a failure to take account of those
expectations gives rise to representations...An applicant who does not tailor
his application to the policy therefore faces an uphill struggle.”

The Secretary of State’s Guidance (latest edition of April 2018) at
paragraphs 8.41 to 8.49 specifically outline what an applicant should
address in order to be able to demonstrate that the proposed use of the
premises for licensable activities would not undermine the licensing
objectives.

8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to
have regard to the statement of licensing policy for their area. They
must also be aware of the expectations of the licensing authority and the
responsible authorities as to the steps that are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge of
their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to
promote the licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible
authorities are expected to publish information about what is meant by the
promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that applicants can
readily access advice about these matters. However, applicants are also
expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which the
premises are situated to inform the content of the application.

8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information
to enable them to demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to
take to promote the licensing objectives, that they understand:

« the layout of the local area and physical environment including crime and
disorder hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas
where children may congregate;

« any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable
activities; and

« any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or
voluntary schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors
and other schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.

8.43 Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their
application on how they will manage any potential risks. Where specific
policies apply in the area (for example, a cumulative impact policy),
applicants are also expected to demonstrate an understanding of how the

Page 242




DO “V 1MDd 0]} NEeWw app d O'."”"- are S\A" | AKE U ¥ A
the impact; and why they consider the application shoutd be an exception
to the policy.

8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants
when determining the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. For example, premises with close proximity to
residential premises should consider what effect this will have on their
smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to ensure the promotion
of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which
may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where
there are no known concerns, acknowledge this in their application.

8.45 The majority of information which applicants will require should be
available in the licensing policy statement in the area. Other publicly
available sources which may be of use to applicants include:

+the-Crime-Mapping-website;

» Neighbourhood Statistics websites;

» websites or publications by local responsible authorities;

» websites or publications by local voluntary schemes and initiatives; and
« on-line mapping tools.

8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible
authorities before formally submitting their application, they may find them
to be a useful source of expert advice on local issues that should be taken
into consideration when making an application. Licensing authorities may
wish to encourage co-operation between applicants, responsible authorities
and, where relevant, local residents and businesses before applications are
submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise.

8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient
information in this section to determine the extent to which their proposed
steps are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in the local area.
Applications must not be based on providing a set of standard conditions
to promote the licensing objectives and applicants are expected to make
it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the
premises.

8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that
the licensing objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no
disputes, the steps that applicants propose to take to promote the licensing
objectives, as set out in the operating schedule, will very often translate
directly into conditions that will be attached to premises licences with the
minimum of fuss.

8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate
to promote one or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because
they are adequately covered by other existing legislation. It is however

Page 243




important that all operating schedules should be precise and clear about the
measures that are proposed to promote each of the licensing objectives

The Council’s Licensing Policy:

When making an application, the applicant is supposed to have read and had
regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing policy. The onus is on the
applicant to demonstrate that their proposal promotes the licensing
objectives and is compliant with the expectations laid out in the guidance
and Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy. The application, as submitted,
is contrary to the following paragraphs:

6.19 Late night food outlets are a major contributor to crime and disorder
and anti-social behaviour within Reading. Applicants who wish to provide
hot food or drink after 2300hrs and up to 0500hrs, will need to demonstrate
that their proposed operation will not exacerbate issues of crime and
disorder in that locality.

6.20 Applicants for late night refreshment are expected to take cognisance
of the Secretary of State’s Guidance and to include appropriate and
proportionate measures within their operating schedule to assist in actively
promoting the licensing objectives.

6.21 The licensing authority will expect all applicants who wish to provide
late night refreshment to include measures for adequate staff training;
measures to ensure that no public nuisance occurs from the premises as well
as additional measures to assist in crime prevention such as CCTV and door

supervisors.

6.22 Public nuisance can often occur from takeaways being sited in
residential areas. This could be in relation to the use of delivery vehicles
and the congregating of customers outside the premises. Applicants are
expected to make an assessment of their proposed locality and implement
measures to avoid disturbing local residents such as the use of electric bikes
and the implementation of a dispersal policy.

6.23 Where it is practical, the authority will also look to ensure that all
packaging used for the provision of hot food and drink shall be made of
recyclable materials or be biodegradable. This will include all fixed
premises and static vans.

7.1 The Licensing Act 2003 gives the licensing authority the power to make
decisions about the hours during which premises can conduct licensable
activities as part of the implementation of this policy. The licensing
authority will make appropriate decisions on licensing hours for the locality
of each premises. All applications will be considered on its individual merits.

7.2 When an application receives representations, the authority may
consider reducing the opening hours and times for licensable activities if it
considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Page 244




7.3 As part of the operating schedule submitted with any application, the
applicant is expected to take cognisance of the guidance, this policy and
any other available data pertaining to their prospective locality and the
potential impact their operation may have on that area.

7.4 Where it is deemed appropriate and proportionate to do so, the
authority may seek to reduce the hours for licensable activities in order to
promote an orderly and gradual dispersal from a certain area or certain
premises.

7.16 There are concerns about noise, nuisance, crime and disorder and anti
social behaviour in respect of premises open late and providing hot food and
drink. Operators and potential applicants of late night refreshment venues
wishing to open past 11pm will need to demonstrate that there are suitable
policies and procedures in place to mitigate any undermining of the
licensing objectives from their operation. If suitable practices and policies
are-not-put-in-place-and it-is the belief of the-Autherity that crime and
disorder and/or a public nuisance is likely to occur due to the late operation
of late night refreshment premises, then the Authority will look at reducing
the hours and or (subject to relevant representations being received)
removing late night refreshment from an application in its entirety.

7.17 The Authority - whilst taking each application on its own merits - is
unlikely to grant excessive hours to any premises if it believes it will
undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives in the locality where it
proposes to operate. Applicants should ensure that their application takes
cognisance of the information availabte - including crime data - and ensure
that the operating scheduled is tailored accordingly. Premises within the
Council’s town centre Cumulative Impact Area will also need to ensure that
they rebut the presumption of refusal against applications in that area.

Cumulative Impact: The approach of Reading Borough Council

The Cumulative Impact Policy and designated area were introduced due to a
high concéntration of licensed premises within the town centre and the
impact these premises were having on the promotion of the Licensing
objectives. The policy, stated in the Council’s Statement of Licensing
Policy, details the rationale of this approach. It also creates a rebuttable
assumption that applications for the grant or variation of a premises licence
or club premises certificate within the Cumulative Impact Area will be
refused or limited - if relevant representations are received - unless the
applicant is able to demonstrate within their operating schedule that there
will be no negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing
objectives. This is detailed within Sections 12.13 to 12.15 and is entirely
consistent with the relevant paragraphs of Chapter 14 of the Secretary of
State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act 2003. 12.13 of the Council’s
Statement of Licensing Policy states that it will apply to all applications for
premises licences and club premises certificates as well as material

Page 245




variations within the Reading Central CIP Area. Material variations include
increases in hours, increases in capacity (licensable area) and any other
variation that are likely to add to the overall cumulative impact in the area.

One further point to make on Cumulative Impact is with reference to the
stated case of R (on the application of Portsmouth City Council) v 3D
Entertainment Group (CRC) Ltd [2011] EWHC 507 (Admin). The Learned
Judge Supperstone within paragraph 11 of the judgement stated that
Magistrates had erred in law by incorrectly applying Portsmouth’s
Cumulative Impact Policy in a way that required the Council and Police to
abduce evidence that there would be a negative cumulative impact. He
went on to state in paragraph 18 of the judgement that the burden was
entirely on 3d Entertainment Group to persuade the Licensing Authority that
the operating schedule was such that there would be no cumulative impact.
in short therefore, the onus is on the applicant to rebut the Council’s
Cumulative Impact Policy if applying for a grant or variation within the
cumulative impact area and this should primarily be done through the
operating schedule of the submitted application form. The applicant in this
matter has not rebutted the policy.

Cumulative Impact

As stated above, the Cumulative Impact policy was introduced in Reading
town centre as a means to tackle the issues that arise from such a high
concentration of licensed premises within such a small area. Because of the
high levels of crime within the town centre and in an effort to prevent
further stress being placed upon the town, applicants would have to
demonstrate that they can rebut the presumption of refusing a grant or
variation of a premises licence. If relevant representations are received and
the applicant is unable to demonstrate that their proposed operation will
promote the licensing objectives and cause a negative cumulative impact,
then the application is likely to be refused. This is stated at paragraph at
12.15 of the Council’s Cumulative Impact Assessment.

Late night food outlets:

12.31 All applications for late night food establishments are likely to attract
representations unless the applicant can demonstrate that there are
exceptional reasons to grant such a licence. Late night food outlets are a
major contributor to crime and disorder within the late night economy,
therefore the general policy is to refuse such applications.

Late night food outlets will need to demonstrate within their operating
schedule detailed and robust measures to mitigate issues of crime and
disorder associated with operating within the night time economy. It is not
acceptable or conducive to the promotion of the licensing objectives for
late night food outlets to simply operate to the minimum of standards. Any
applicant will be expected to operate to the highest of standards which
actively promote the licensing objectives and the provisions outlined in the

Page 246




C L : : e s
Cotncit's-ticensingpotiey:

12.34 The above paragraphs (12.27 to 12.33) as well as the other statements
in this assessment - particularly paragraphs 12.13 and 12.23 also apply to
applications seeking to significantly increase capacity; applications that
seek extended opening hours; applications for ‘shadow licences’ (see
paragraph 9.23 and 9.24) and any other matter the Authority deems may
undermine its ability to actively promote the licensing objectives.

The conditions offered in the operating schedules are not comprehensive
enough for the hours applied for and we do not consider that any type or
number of conditions will be appropriate to promote the licensing
objectives.

It is therefore not credible that the Cumulative Impact policy has been
rebutted and that the likely effect of granting any licence would have a
detrimental impact on the town as a whole.

I have stated previously why the licensing team believe the application
should be refused. If the committee is satisfied that the measures contained
within the application rebut the Cumulative Impact Assessment, are
appropriate and proportionate to actively promote the licensing objectives
and is satisfied that they will be implemented by the applicant, then we
would respectfully ask for the terminal hour for licensable activities be
reduced to 0000hrs every day and the following conditions be attached to
any licence:

1. The premises licence holder shall ensure the premises’ digitally recorded
CCTV system cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open
to the public and recordings shall be kept for a minimum of 31 days with
time and date stamping. The entire licensable area shall be covered by the
CCTV. Cameras shall be positioned in a way that the entire area surrounding
the premises is recorded. Data recordings shall be made immediately
available to an authorised officer of Thames Valley Police or Reading
Borough Council together with facilities for viewing upon request. Recorded
images shall be of such quality as to be able to identify the recorded person
in any light. At least one member of staff on the premises at any time
during operating hours shall be trained to access and download material
from the CCTV system.

2. Signs shall be placed in prominent positions on the premises notifying
customers that CCTV is in operation.

3. All incidents which impact on any of the four licensing objectives shall be
recorded in a register kept at the premises for this purpose. The names of
the person recording the incident and those members of staff who deal with
any incident shall also be recorded. Where known, any offenders name shall
also be recorded;

Page 247




(a) this record shall be available for inspection by a Police Officer or an
authorised officer of Reading Borough Council upon request and shall be
retained for one year. The record shall be signed off by the nominated
representative at the end of each trading session;

(b) a weekly review of the incident register shall also be carried out by the
nominated representative.

4. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall participate
in the Local Town Radio Scheme when the premises are opened for
licensable activities Monday to Sunday inclusive.

5. The premises licence holder or nominated representative shall keep and
maintain all right to work documents for all staff members. Right to work
documents shall be kept at the premises and produced to authorised officers
of Reading Borough Council and Thames Valley Police upon request.

6. The immediate vicinity outside of the premises and in any external areas
associated with the premises shall be kept clear of litter.

7. All takeaway packaging and utensils for use by customers shall be made
of biodegradable or recyclable materials.

8. Clearly legible and suitable notices shall be displayed at all exits
requesting customers to respect the needs of local residents and to leave
the premises and area quietly.

NB: The applicant shall not conduct licensable activities until the above
measures are in place and it is confirmed to the Licensing Authority that the
conditions are being fully complied with. Any licensable activity that takes
place at the premises not in accordance with a licence is an offence under
Section 136 (1) of the Licensing Act 2003.

Dat
R:ceeived 06/12/2019 | pate pue 03/01/2020

[Date[19 [12_[2019]

Page 248




APP.U\J\')( R S— .1

Appendix 4

Violence and Sexual Offences within the Town Centre Cumulative

Impact Area - January 2017 to March 2018
anuary 2017

: 46% NAPIER Rp
%
GREAT *“°§“s 2 F
ORBURY R

ASON ST
© . BAYTEST

“eva 3p

LE RD

Page 27 of 42

Page 249



L T

4% NAPIER RD
°
<
2
9
LYS S
AT KNOL
G FoRraygy Ro
Forbury
- Gardens
TYLE ST

2
m
[
o
»

Page 28 of 42
Page 250



March 2017

™™™
4%‘ NAPIER RD
o
c
G 55T
GREAT KNOLLY
Forbury
IATTLE ST %

' Gardens _

BAKER 57
L/
Ugs'ko
n
';T-‘ [
o < o
s' s v 8 l ;': &. ana a z
Page 29 of 42

Page 251



April 2017

6%' NAPIER RD
Q
[ A
®
EAT KNO
)
Forbury
EST Gardens

BAKERsT
o,
-~ b3 B 1’
G i g DRI 5 3
Page 30 of 42

Page 252



)
¢

Page 253

. o Forbury

NAPIER RD

,'F_o'.QBURY RD

© Gardens
".

Page 31 of 42



une 2017

-

%, a
[V
e}
[
o
AT KNOLLYS 3
FO_RBURY RD
Forbury
Gardens
fLE ST

!
VE”’(/‘-
[a)
&
Ta
S
1S WOOY8
»HOSILVN
&
o

Page 32 of 42

Page 254



dbo NAPIER RD
Ia
e
)
EAT KNOVLYSS F
(¢)
WELDALE sT o RBURY R
" Forbury
LE §T

 Gardens

BAKER g7
Sr%
o
B2
: o
N 2 x % 3
i E % = E3
S ' o g % s : ]
2 .onel o -] L 5 ;
Page 33 of 42

Page 255



4

NAPIER Rp

FORBURY R

f Forbhfy
Gardens

K
QUEENS i
84
KER ST _'3“ %
" oe
- %,
RS’Q 1w
\v)
WO
o 5 %
m
e ST "
- ’é Q a & 3\ ‘
& LIz 1

Page 34 of 42
Page 256




September 2017

NAPIER RD

TLE ST g
Ken.
& ot
SOLDSMID Rp
NS RE
QUEE
BAKeg ST
®
Sr Rp

Page 35 of 42

Page 257



October 2017

RD -

£ W7,
2 R,
5 mﬂo
4% NAPIER RD
(]
-
E
a7 KNOLLYS S
.S - ' 74 Ferbury
g 5P -RUAR = -Gardens
rEst 700 : a1 . |

s
r‘?o
[l
[o]
- I
2 m s
P : 2 L %3
Z
& ry .o 8 ) p‘. . = :
| Z
5 (ASTLE(.$ S E % a4 ; ]
Page 36 of 42

Page 258



November 2017

v

i R —
’% NAPIER RD
%
GREAT KNOLLYS S F
; ._ORBURYRD
' Forbury
TTLE ST

" Gardens

o
2 . :
9 m .. )
A 2 B % 3
§ (4, TS 2 ?'.2 46}, = %
& castiE 2 13 Y |
Page 37 of 42

Page 259



December 2017

- e
Sl ¢
% NAPIER RD
(=}
)
C
]
0
LLys ST
2 FoR
BuRy 5
l. : 7 v o
~ Forbury
* Gardens
“LE ST .

Ky
7‘00
[
: ,_
o g
2 © 3 B |
‘ F3
@ el B o b ’ N
Page 38 of 42

Page 260



January 2018

vp
S i ‘E,
oy i

Io‘

. ﬁ% NAPIER RD
2
3
GREAT KNOLLYS 5T
L8 - Forayg,
WELDAL RBURY 5 ’

' '?dﬁuw

\TTLE ST " Grdens 9

[
2 x % 2
3 l E 1‘3}. 4 % 2:
& racnieC 2 n 3 3

Page 39 of 42
Page 261



February 2018

Io‘

R

% -
%
[
©
T KNOMLYS S
FOI_!_BURV P !

. Forbury

Garderrlys 7

TLE ST I :

Rs
o
[#]
PR \
1 © p % .
A : 3 % = 3
rao o1 » A 3 )
S' (,“ (o] m /‘_‘\ = 5 1
& ractiLE ) 3 4 \

Page 40 of 42
Page 262



March 2018

= FORBYRY o

y  Forbury
Gardens

GOLDOSMID R

BAKER
£} 4 73‘ %
LA
Rs).e 3 :
o
QP““ 3
~ =m
2 m :
z © _
& ‘; 3 § ! g 6“1(& CROWN
) * g : J
& castiE 3 ] A
& S ] 13

Page 41 of 42
Page 263



Page 264



N2 194 ontavau seine sauvw D (02

N2 10 oniavay sLuna sasvw (D (64

NZ 1oy oNavsy suine sauviy 15 (TN (81

N2 10u oNavaY s1ine sasvw 1 (TR ()

o tou oNavay sLina saxvw s NS (9|

onavay sLina sasvw 1s (TN (S|

oniavay sLina sauvw 1sflB (b1

N2 100 ONIaVEY S0 sauviv 19 TN (€1

N2 10y oNavaS sLung savw s TN (C|

O LOU ONIavV3Y s1una saxvw 1< (TN (1}

NZ 193 oNiavay sing sasvw 1o ST (O

52 1oy onavay swung saswn o S (6

oNovay sunasavkis (8

onavay sLing savw 1o (TN (2

N 1oy onigvau suna savvn s EIEID (9

o sou onavay sL1ng saxvw 1 NN (S

o 1ou oNavaY sLLng sauwvw 1 (NS (v

N 1o oniavar suena sasvw 15 TN (¢

N2 10% onviava suuna s s TN (2

RIS T|Tc|o|o|~ju|r(Ticioiminoioiolc|nio

Sjelnjwlo|lrlr|lo|a|-jo|oj~|n|ojojo|n]+|~

$9sSaIppY Jeaday

Page 265



Page 266



(o5

(6t

(sy

(V24

(ov

(sv

(]

(ev

v

(X4

14

(6

61-Bny-ig

W1z 158 oniavay swung savivw RN (S¢

816yt

o 1od onavay siuna sauvn 1o (NNEENEN (2€

61-495-%0

81-8nv-01

6i-mrel

8i~xdvpi

sz 1ou ongvay sutne sauvw sl (€€

NN““F‘"’\"\‘FFFF"I‘FFFF‘-°°°°°°°°°°°°

clol~|lojolo|olojo|~|l~|lo|ojojOo|~|Oj0|O|O(O|lO|Q|OCIO|O|O|O|OC|O

8i-dv-22 onavay swna s 15 IR (2¢
SL-AONIT W2 154 SNaovaY sLLna eaxvi 15 < RIS (1€
61-"ON-0¢ Nz Lo4 SNiGv3Y s100e saxvii s (RN (0
8Lr9L o1z 1oy onava sLang sayvie s S (62
61-8ny-s0 N 1oy onavay sLina sasw 1s D (82
61-By-10 s 1ou oniavay swna sauvw ST (22
81152 9% 154 oMavay sLung sauv 1 (IS (o2
8l-uer-62 Nz L5 Snavay sLung savw 1s TN (ST
8i-6nv-60 Nz 194 onavay sLing saxwn [l (¥2
6L-AONDZ o1 194 ongvau sune saswn s (€2
81-6nv-62 onovay s1na saxvw 15 (TEINENEIN (22

61-6ny-90

Page 267



Page 268



861 [preelLp6Zliv | sjeipawwPpNIAVYIY SL11LNE SAYVW 1S SSIHOO0YU NI NOILYOHILTV]0E€0| 61-1002Z-€ll
YPeeLI 62 LY juonnjosay auoydeia)] PNIGV3d S1LNG SAHNVIA LS| 310IHIA/NOSHId/ONI/SOHID SNS|6Y:12 | 61-130-¥C - SLvl

7oL |pPEELLYETL LY ejelpaww| LNIQIDNI - SNOANVTI3DSIN|CZ LE | 61-100-62 - 8LE1
yeT  |vpeeLLyeCLiy ajelpawiw| SSTHUO0Nd NI NOLLYDHILIV[6E:€0| 61-100-62 - LCI
BEE  |98CELLISELLY JuebIn| JONVLSISSY HO4 1S3N0IM{LL¥0]| 61-120-9¢ - L2C
00¥ELL00EL LY Juabin JHV413IM TVNOSHId HO4 Uv34(60:12| 61-100-9C - L9E1

2 ¥PECLLYECLLY ojelpoww|PBNIAVYIY S1LNEG SAMVIN LS IN3AIDONI - SNOANV1TI30SIN|LE V0| 61-10092 - §€C
YYeC. 1621 Ly [uoRNjosey suoydejel PNIAV3Y SLLNE SANVIN 1S] T1vO A31dNYY3INI/AINOANYEY[0L:00| 61-AON-10-¥l

/6y |¥PEELLPECLLY ajelpoww|bNIaVYIY S11NG SANVYIN LS SSTUO0HC NI NOILYOHILTV|2S:€0| 61-AON-1L0 - 6%l
1. |¥peELL¥62LLY ajelpswwW|PNIAYIY SL1LNG SANVIN LS SS3UO0H NI NOILYOH3LIV]ie¥0| 61-AON-€0 - ¥9¢
DOL |PPEELLYECLLY alelpawW|BNIAVIY SLLNG SAMVIA LS| THVAT1IM TYNOSHId HOd ¥v34]20:80] 6L-AON-+#0 - 091
Y¥ee. L v82} v juonnjosey suoydole) DNIAV3Y SLLNE SAYVN 1S TIVD A3.LdNYYIINVAGINOANVEY|ZL9L | 61-AON-S0 - 998

PoS |pPEelLv6ClLlY ajelpawiui| 3ONIT0IA DILSANOA|6+:02 | 6L-AON-L0 - 8¥EL
DLG |yPEELLYECLLY ajelpaww| g SAYVIN LS SSIHO0Hd NI NOILYDYHIALTV]0L:0C | 6L-AON-80 - S9¢C1
L2C |vbeelLybelLLy sjelpawWwW|PNIAY3Y S1LNG SAYVIN 1S SSTUO0H NI NOILYDHILTV|80:-#0] 61-AON-OL - 01¢
_ﬂot reeLLY6ZLLY ajeipawiwii 1NG SAYVIN LS SS3UO0Hd NI NOILYOH311Vv]20:02 | 6L-AON-€1 - 9¥Cl
YPECLI 621y [uonnjosay euoydajel PNIGY3Y SLLNE SANVIN LS|  ONIAING JLLVHYI/SNOYIONVA|6L:LL | 61-AON-ZIL - 010

88€€.1 2821 Ly [uonnjosay auoydsid LAYV L FIDIHINNOSHIAJ/ONYSOHIO SNS|82:GL | 6L-AON-Ll - 628

1S)  |¥PEeLLY6CLLY ajelpaww| FIDIH3IANOSHIJ/ONISOHID SNS|62:€0} 61-AON-Li - 02¢
YPecl L y6el Ly juonnjosey suoydee] ENIAVIY S11NE SAYVIA LS| TV G3.LJINUYILNIVAINOONVEV|SS-LL | 61-AON-€¢C - 6001

KT L ST A CTATA S sjelpaww|PNIAY3Y S11N9 SAYVI LS| IT0IHIANOSYHIJ/INISIAUID SNS|IS0:12 | 6L-AON-¥C - E¥CL
{66Cc |88€€LL.L8CLLY uabin 1N3AIONI - SNO3ANVTI3OSIN|SE 0] 61-AON-¥C - 92
{8002 10GEE€L18GEL.LY ajelpawwy| SSIUO0Ud NI NOILYOHILTV|CS:€0] 6L-AON-C - ¥¥e
(629 |v¥eEiLIyECLiy ajelpaww|f SSTUOO0HUC NI NOILYOHILTIVILOE0 ] 61-AON-¥C - L0C
FreeLLpeTLLY juswobueuy Agk TIVO A3 LdNHHILNIAINOONYEV]0E:GL | 6L-AON-LC - 128
yYESLLPBZLLY Jusujuioddy Ag HIHLO/LINVYSSV|6+:€0] 61-AON-0€ - 8LC
00€S.L00EL P Juonnjosay suoyds|ay SSIAUO0Ud NI NOLLYOHILTV|PL:€0] 6L-AON-0€ - 681

19951V UOSO| - SpelD)iSsuodsay| uonesyisse|d qnrs buiued} SwLL 1@ 2NN

Page 269

9Z:/bb 1 6LOZ/24/81 UO einpows AJljiqeieuinA pue puews( aYj Woij papeojumop ejeq

. [ 4 A N iy e E e T DM e R T P e



Page 270



¥2S  |00€€LL00LLLY | Jusbinyl 1S FUVIT1IM TYNOSHId HOd Hv34|82:LZ | 61-d3SCL - LEVI
YYEELLPETL L Juonjosay suoydsia L PNIAV3Y S1ING SAHVI LS AMINONI/AYIAITSA IOVSSIAN|OSFL | 6L-d3S-TI - 588
88€€/128¢L L juopnjosay suoydaial Qvay SLLNG SAHYIW A3INHIINOD MIANULINILO:LL | 6L-d3S-8L - ¥
YPEELL Y621 Ly juonnjosey auoydeje DNIAVIY S1LNG SAYVI LS| F1OIHIANOSHIA/ONISOYHID SNS|2e:l0] 61-d38-12 - 26

ye8 |bPEELLPECLLY ewsbueuy AGPNIGVIY SL1LNEG SAYYW 1S JONV.LSISSY ¥HO4 LSIN0IY|#S:2C § 61-d3S-€T - 6.V}
579 {00€€LL00EL LY SjelpauwtviN LS HIHLO/143HL]|10:0C | 61-d3S-¥C - ¢9Ei
. weeLiveeLLy ajeipaWW| DNIAVIY SLING SAHVN LS| FHVI1IM TVNOSHId HOd ¥v34[20:9L | 61-d3S-2C - 106
59 yeeLLyeeliy ajelpawwbNIQV3Y S11NG SAYVYIN 1S IONV.LSISSY ¥O4 LSIND3Y|SZH0| 61-d3S-8C - 861
YrecZL b6l L juonniosey auoydoiol DNIGVIY S.LLNG SANVIN LS| T1vO 3.LdNYYIINIVGINOAONYEY|GS€0| 61-d3S-8Z - 81

4> yreeLiveCLLy ajeipaww]pNIgGvIY S1LNG SAHVIN LS H3IHLO/LINVYSSV|2h:e0| 6l-d3S-6C - 948
j8F| |88CELLL8CLLY Wwebinjqvad SLLNG SANVI 1S TIvO A3LdNYUILNVAGINOANVEV|0L:¥0]  61-100-10 - 96
YPECLL¥62L v juonnjosay suoydejal DNIAVIY SLING SAHVIN LS| TIvO 31dNYH3INVAINOONYEV|9)-22 | 61-100-10 - 85§l
L16ECLLSPEL LY juonn|osay suoydaja] il NG SAYVIN 1S JIOIHINNOSHIL/ONISDHID SNSigZ:vl | 61-100-20 - 0.

DLC | WVEELIPECLLY ajeipawwi| PNIAVIY S11LNG SAYVIN LS| FHV41IM TVNOSHId HOd ¥v3d[01:00] 61-100€0 - €}
689 |bYEELIVECLLP Sjeipawwi N 1S YIHLO/LINVSSV{¥0:70| 61-100-€0- LYl
0C |vreeLiveeliy 3jelpaww|pNIgVIY SLLNEG SAHVIN 1S LN3QIONI - SNOINVTIIDSIN{SZ:00| 61-100-60 - 9%
692 |vPECLIVECLLY sjelpawiw| FIDIHINNOSHIAJ/ONISOHIO SNS|92:#0| 61-100-90 - 02
¥¥EELL ¥6ZL LY JuolN|osaY Suoydale L PNIQVIY SLLNE SAHVIN LS INIQIONI - SNO3NVTIAOSIN|SY-ZL | 61-100-90 - 066
YYEELLYEZ] P UONNIOSTY Suoydod) JYVAI3M TVNOSHId HOJ ¥v3j6€:0C{ 61-100-90 - 8ECL
88€€.1.82) Ly juonnjosay auoyde@Liing SAYVIN LS H3HLO/LINVYSSV|Zh 0| 61-100-90 - 8€2

[EEL |¥YEELLPETLLY SjelpawWiNIgv3y SLING SAHVIN L SSIUO0Ud NI NOILVOUILIV]LL:Z0| 61-100-90 - L¥i
(o€ weeLlLveelLy SjelpawWibHNIQVIY SLLNG SAHVIA LS H3IH1O/L43HL|S¥:00] 61L-100-01 - €¢
[0z [vPeeLivEeLip ajelpawwiPNIGVIY S11NE SAHVYI LS 3ONV.LSISSY HOd LSINDIYU|EG:60| 61-100-01 - St
[esz [88e€s1.82LLp waBiN{AUVIN 1S INJAIONI - SNOINVTIIOSIN{6E€0] 61-100-LL -0l
(9Ll |vveeLiveClLy SjelpowW| PNIQVIY SL1LNTG SAUVIN LS SSIYO0U NI NOLLYOUILTVIZEZ0| 61-100-L1 - ¥8
Gl |98eE/ilSELLY sjeipaww| HIHLO0/LINYSSV|eS:20] 6L-1002L- LIl
Z0b  |00EELLOOCLLY Sjelpawi| 1S SSIUO0Ud NI NOLLYOYILTV|EE:0Z | 61-100-Cl - 1621
1A weelivect Ly SjeipewwW|PNIAYIY SLLNG SAYVIN LS| FHVITIM TYNOSYHId O Hv3d|2¢:80]| 61-100-Gl - 912
¥PEELLY6Z| L Juopnjosay auoydeja PNIAVIY SLLNE SAYVIN LS IN3QAIONI - SNO3INVTIADSIN{LZvL] 61-10081 - L1/

1001 |98€ELLLSELLY sjeipswiw| SSIUO0UC NI NOLLYOHILTV|02:€0]| 61-1D00-0C - 861
90C |¥EELLYBCLLY ajelpawwi v LS SSIUO0UC NI NOILLYOHILTV|LG6:2C | 6L-100-1C - ¥ESL

YEELLYBTL LY JUOlINjoSaY euoydea)

¥0:0L

61-100-1¢ - 6¢€¢€

Page 271

NIQV3X SLLNE SAHMVIN LS



Page 272



/17 [98EELLIGELLY Sjelpawul] TIv0 03 1dNYY3INVGINOGNYEV[or'€0 ] 61-1Nr-8C - 852
20l |vvEciLy6eLly SfeIpoWWDNIQVIY S1LNE SAHYIN LS 3ONV.LSISSY ¥Od 1S3N034|b2:Z1 | 61-ONV-10 - 0641
YYEELLY6CL.LY [uonnjosay euoydele 1 1ING SAUYIN .G\IT WIHLO/LISHL[ZE€L | 6L-ONV-10- 16L

B6C_ |vbeclivBeLly SleIpeWWHNIVIY SLLNE SANVI 1S Y3H.LO JONI340 VNXIS|EEGL| 61-ONV-10- 926
£0L _|vVEELIV6CLLY SreipowwipNIAVIY SLLNG SAYVIN 1S| 310IHIANOSHIJ/ONISOHID SNSIEESL | 6L-DNY-20 - 226
BL __|vveeliveelly SleIpeWWIRIVIN LS SSIYO0Nd NI NOLLYOU3L V|9V ¥0| 61-ONV-€0 - €52
|6ECLLGVELLY jusunuioddy Agl1ing SANVIN 1S INJQIONI 31VH|SEZL | 6L-DNV-60 - 0.G

¥vGe |88€€L1/82L LY jeipsww| NG SANVI 1S 3ONIOIMIZLINI|¥5:20]| 6L-9NV-S0 - 204
0¥ | F6EELIGVELLY oleipawW{1[1NE SAHVIN 1S SS34O0ud NI NOLLYOY3LTv|81'22 | 8L-ONV-80 - 611
6L1C_|19CELIBSELLY WeBinyN LS 3uv413M 1YNOSH3d Y04 uvad|evvi | 61-ONV-20- /0L
bov__|vheclivbeLly SjeipsWwi N LS Ad38804[81°20| 6L-9NV-80 - 001
[zrey [vwEciiveeLly WabiN)iavaY S.1LNE SANVIN L INIQIONI - SNOINVTIIOSIN[ES: 0]  61-9NV-60 - 22
[ VZEELLLVEL Ly |UoBN|oSaY suoydsaL [ Q3-0LINOW LON 318IdNV|EE'80] 61-ONV-0I - 6v€
& [wecLiveerly SEpsWWIPNIQVIY_SLLNG SANVIN LS JONTIOIA DLLSANOA|9Z6L | 6L-ONV-LL - 2211
[gs__ [vvecliveeiiy SielpeWwpNIQVIY SLLNEG SAHVIA LS SSIUO0Yd NI NOLLVOYIL1V|Z¥:20| 61-ONV-L1 - ¥¥E
[ YYECLLY62) Ly uonnjosay ouoydop1viN IS MOVLLY TVNOSHId|9L ¢l | 6L-ONV-EL - #0G
[ese[vveeLLv6CLiy SpeipewwhNIAVIY SLLNG SANVIN LS] JuVI1IM TYNOSH3d HOd ¥v3d[Z6'00] 61-ONV-ElL - 9F
00ECZL00EL LY [uonnjosay euoydeiel RIVIN LS IN3QIONI - SNOINVTIZOSIN[0S:10|  61-ONV-vl - €8

IS lvecLivbeLly SEIpoWWIPNIGVIY SLLNE SAYVWN LS| ST1OIHIAVNOSHI/ONISOYID SNS[62:20] 61-9Nv-LL - 621
LOEELL6SEL LY [UoRN|OSey euoydsiel N 1S AYINONS/AHIAITZA IOVSSIN|9L:0Z [ 61-ONV-¥2 - ¥ZEL
looz__[vieELiveetil SjeipewuiviN 1S F10IHINNOSHIJ/ONISOHID SNS|S¥6l | 61-ONY-22 - Sevl
L9EELEB6SEL LY [UoBN|oSaY suoydaje LN 1S YNOIAVHIE TVIDOSILNV|SE 21 | 61-ONV-62 - 2011

[6€9L [¥¥EE/Lv62L P [HORNjOSSY uoydaeLMVIN 1S SSIU90Ud NI NOLLVOUILIV|[6E'L0| 61-ONV-62 - 61
OLCL [88EELLLBZLLY WSBINIAUVIN 1S F10IHINNOSYIJ/ONISOUID SNS[10:00] 61-ONV-LE - €91
y2EELVZVEL LY [UORNjoSeY euoyds/oL[MVIN LS T10IHIANOSHIJ/ONISDYID SNS|Z0:GL| 61-d3S+0 - 994
YPeelLv62)Lp |uoiniossy euoydee INIQVIY SLLNE SANVIN LS| T1VO 031dNUYIINVAINOANVEVY|8ELL | 61-d3S-S0 - viv

865 |00EELLO0ELLY SRIpOWW|RIVIN LS SSTHO0Yd NI NOILYOYIL1V|22:02 | 61-d3S-90 - ZLEL
Z___ |weelivbelly SleIpeWWPNIGVIY S1LNE SAHVIN LS SS3490Ud NI NOLLYOU31Tv[2€02 | 61-d3S-90 - 02Z€L
00E€Z100€ LY [UON|0SaY duoydeial RN LS YIHLO/LINVSSY|60:70| 61-d3S-20-GIZ

GZ__ |00EELILO0ELLY SIEIPOWWI RIVIN 1S INIGIONI - SNOINV TT3ISIN{9E2Z | 61-d3S-20 - 66¥1
€0E_ |vvEELL¥BTLLY speipaww} SSTUO0Yd NI NOILVOU3LTV[60:L0|  61-d3S-0i - ¥
YWEELLY6C) LY [lonnjosey euoydel L INIAYIY SLLNE SAUVW LS IN3QAIONI - SNOINVTIZ0SIN[VEEL | 61-d3S-21 - 9€9

Page 273



Page 274



By |vreeLLy6elly | usbInvN 1 JONV.LSISSY ¥Od 1S3N03H|129L | 61-NNr-20 - €€01
DOE | vvEE.LY6e) LY |Uonnjosay suoydaiaL] INIQIONI - SNOINVITIOSIN|ZS6L | 61-NNr-2l - 1621
B9S | VPEELLY6CLLY SjeIpaWW| DNIQVIY SL1LNE SAYVIN 1S SS34D0Yd NI NOILYOY3LTV[#S:00] — 61-NNr-Gl - 69
YYEELLYBTL LY wswsbuely AgPNIGVIY S.LLNE SAYVI 1S Y3HLO/LINVSSV]|9¥' 10| 61-NArSL - 221

| |vvEELLYBeLLY SleIpsWWIDNIGVIY S1LNG SAHVIN 1S SS3990ud NI NOLLYOY3LIV|92:10]  6L-NNr-i2 - 08
£ |vyecLiIvbelly S)eIpSWWIDNIGVIY SLING SAHVIN LS 1INVSSY VNX3S|SSLL| 6L-NAr+2 - 2bS
/€S |vPEELLYBELLY JusBINDNIGVZY S1LNE SAYVI LS INIAIONI - SNOINVTI3OSIN[E0€0] 6L-NNr-L2- €Ll
£ |vvEcLLb6eLly SleIpawiu| GE:10| 6L-NNr-0€ - €21
PSLL |OOEELL00LLLY uSBININ 1S ITOIHIANOSUIJ/ONI/SIYIO SNS|Sv:€L | 61-1NF-20 - €08
G8C_ |vec/LyBelly Sjeipowujj SSIYO0Yd Ni NOLLYOU3LIV[E0-¥0| 61-1Nr-20 - 0S1
BLE |vvEELLY6CLLY SIeIpSWWIDNIGYIY S1LNE SAYVI 1S SSIUO0Yd NI NOILVOU3L1V|8S5:€2| 61-1Nr-€0 - 6281
Zevl |vreeliveelly SielpeWW| DNIGVIY SLLNE SAHVIN 1S| 34V 13M TVNOSYH3d ¥Od dv3d[ov:8lL | 61-1Nr+0 - 9Evl
8/7 |#¥ee.Ly6eL .y [Uonn|osay euoydole LDNIAVIY S11N8 SAYVIN 1S| S10IHIA/NOSHIJ/ONISINHIO SNS[.6 02| 61-1Nr-G0 - 2€81
YPEELL Y62 LY [Uonn|osay suoydeel BNIAY3Y S1LNE SAHVIN 1S SSI¥O0Hd NI NOILVOUILTV|SS'€L | 61-1Nr-G0 - 668
VPESLL¥62L Ly [HoNnjosay euoydeel PNIAVIY SLLNG SAYVW LS| T1vD a3LdNYY3INVGINOANVEV|ZL:vL | 6L-1Nr-20- 022
TYEELLy62L Ly juoanjosey euoydeeL YW LS I W3HLO/LI3HL|6¥20| 6L-1Nr-20-Gle
l6s__|vvEELIPB2LLY SleIpaW|DNIGVIY SLLNE SANVIW LS SS3u90ud NI NOLLVOY3LTv|rp10]  61-1Nr-80 - 88
v [wweeliv6eily SleIpSLWIBNIGVIY S1LNE SAUVIN LS 80'¥0| 61-1Nr-60- 921
[ YPEELLY6CLLY UsbINPNIQVIY SLLNE SAMVI 1S| T1vO Q31dNyyaINVGINOANVEV]|Lv:20]| 61-10r-LL -Gt
[oo1 _ [v¥eesiv6eLly SjeIpowll| PNIGV3Y S1LNE SAYVI 1S SSIY90dd NI NOLLYOU3L1V[et 20| 61-Inr-2l - 201
[og9 _ [9BEELLLSELLY Sje|pauwiul| SS34O0ud NI NOLLVOY3L1V[1¥¥0]| 61-IN-€L - ¥O2
18€_ |OOEELL00ELLY Sjeipawui} D18 AINO IOVWVG[00:20]| 6L-INrEL - LEL
YPEE.L¥6e) Ly juonnjosay euoydeld LDNIGYIY SLLNE SAYVW LS| TIvO a31dNYY3.INVGINOGNYEY|8E:6L | 61-INM-SL - vivi
JOSELLBLELLY JUSBIN VN LS TI0IHIAVNOSHIJ/ONISOHIO SNS[ez-00|  61-INM9L - 22

[c185 [19€€.165ELLY JusBInyiN 1S UV 13M TVNOSY3d HOd uv3d|Z0°€L | 61INM-Z1 - 659
L |wweeliveeily SjeIpeWWIPNIaY3Y SLLNE SAHVI LS Ad38804|¥5:€2 | 61-1N-81 - €941
8Ll |VWEELLVBLLLY Sfeipawiu]| 93HLO/LINVSSV[G2:00]  6L-1N(-6} - €€
|66 |00EEZL00ZLL¥ SieIpaWWIYN LS NISHIA THL ANV LS WIHLO/LINYSSV[80:2L | 61nr-22- GZ11
125 |vvEeLLv6eLly Sjeipawiul] SS34O0ud NI NOILYOH3L1V[10:€0| 61-INr-ge-2€l
YYEELL¥62LLY [uonnjosay suoydajel 3ONIOIMIZLNI|9S:9L | 6LINr-ST- 2211
YEELLY6eLLy uonnjosay suoydeiol PINIAYIY S1LN8 SAYVI LS| TIvO G31dNYY3INVAINOGNVEY|9Z:e0| 61-1Nr-92 - 291

8€8  |9BEELLIGELLY uehin JONVLSISSY 404 1S3N03A|0S:¥0]  61L-1NF8Z- LIE

Page 275



Page 276



DEE | WPEELLYECLLY ajeipawi| SSIUO0Ud NI NOLLYDHILIV|PL:LE | 61-¥dV-CC - SLEL
PGl |GCEELIO0PLLY aleipaww|[ LS AHVAIAVYO SAUVN LS| FHVA1IM TVNOSHId HOd ¥VI|StE€l | 61-HdV-2¢C - ¥L6
5 yreeliveelly ojeippwwibNIAY3Y SLING SANVW LS| FHUVII3IM TVYNOSHId HO4 HVI|EE: L2 | 61-HdV-SZ - €E0VI
_‘ LBEELLSYELLY sjeipawiwlilINgG SAHVIN 1S SSIUO0¥d NI NOLLYQHILTVI0L:2T | 61-¥dV-LC - 6VGL
TP |¥YEELIVECLLY dleipdWWIPNIAY3Y SLLNG SAYVI 1S AN3AIONI - SNOANVTIIOSINILL:Y0 ] 6l-¥dV-2C - 981
3 wreeLlveCl iy ajeipaww(PNIAY3IY S11NE SAYVYW LS| I10IHIANOSHIJ/ONI/SDHID SNS|82:8l | 61-Hdv-8C - 0201
B9l |98eelLIGELLY ejeipawiw| JIDIHIANNOSHIL/ONISINID SNS|20:+0] 6L-UdV-8C - 2€2
611 |00EELIO0ELLY SjelpaluWi VN LS HIHLO/LINVSSV|8Z:0 | 61-HdV-8¢C - 9¥C
/Pl [88EELLL8CLLY sjeipawuwl L INg SAHVIN L H3HLO/LINVSSV|EZ 61 | 61-UdV-6Z - €LCl
4 PPEELLYECLLY ajeipaww|pNIAYIY SLLNG SAYVW LS| ITOIHIANOSHId/ONI/SOHIO SNS|L6:20] 6L-AVIN-I0-2CL)
YPEELL¥BC) Ly juonnjosay suoydele 1 PNIGYIY S1ENG SAUVIN LS| T1VD A31dNUU3LINVGINOAGNYEVIOG:LL | 61-AVIN-L0 - 6911

BZC |VPEELIPECLLY SlelpawwipNIGy3y SL1NEG SAYVIN LS H3IHLO/LINVSSV|ZL: V0] 61-AVIN-GO - L2C
piLyC IvPeeLiy6ClLY yusbin) JONVLISISSY HO4 1S3ND3H[0L:9L | 6L-AVIN-60 - 288
YPESLLP62L LY Juonnjosay auoydajal NIQYIY SLLNG SANVIA LS| 11V 31LdNYHILNVAINOGNYEV]00-0Z | 61-AVIN-60 - ¥l

cLll |bpeelLvecliy JUSBINPNIAYIY SLLNE SAYVN 1S HNOIAVHIE TVIQOSILNV|SY:LL | 6L-AVIN-60 - L20)
D wreeliveelly SjejpawwiiviN 1S JIDIHINNOSHIAL/ONI/SOHID SNS|G0:EL ] 6L-AVIN-L| - 289
BCE |VYEELLYBCLLY sjelpswiw] H3HLO/LINVSSV|00:0Z | 61L-AVIN-LL - LEEL
1098 |¥PEELLYECLLY sjejpaww| JIDIHINNOSHIJ/ONYSIHID SNS{6L:8L | 6L-AVIN-EL - L0Z)
[ L9EELLBSEL LY [uoun|osay duoydadL N L HIHLO/L43HL|6E:LZ | BL-AVIN-EL - ¥LSI
lcee  |yyeeLiyblliy 9JelpAWWI \HVYIN L AIN3QIONI - SNOINVII3OSINGLP: L0  6L-AVIN-GEL - LL
yeeLLveCLLY juewsbueuy Ag HIHLO/LTINVSSV|CE LL | 6L-AVIA-8L - 9901

L8C) IVPEELLPECLLY webiNPNIAVIY S1LNE SAYVIN 1S| FUVATIM TVNOSHId HOd HV3|CE:LL | 61-AVIN-61 - 8E01
LEC |WEELLYECLLY Sjelpawiwi N 1S JONVLSISSY HO4 1S3INDIY|ES:SL | 6L-AVIN-OC - €48
AT LAY A5 L TATA Sjelpawwil NG SAYVIN L JONVLSISSY HOd 1S3ND3Y|8L 8L | 6L-AVIN-IC - 9¥LL
€08 [VVEELLYBCLLY Jswabueny AgPNIGYIY SLiNG SAYVIN LS HUNOIAVHIE TVIDOSILNV|SL:00] 6L-AVIN-ZZ - 901
88EeLLL8CLLY JuswabueLy Aglavay SLLNG SAYVIN L H3HIO/L4IHLIZLIEL] 6L-AVIN-PC - BE9

€2iC |LOEELL6GELLY wsbinyin 1S HNOIAVHIE TVIOOSILNV|EV: LT | 61-AVIN-¥C - €261
29€  |VPEELLYECLLY aleipaww)| PNIGY3Y S11NG SANVI LS| IT10IHIANOSHI/ONYSIUID SNS|PE-20| 6L-AVIN-6C - 611
weECLLYECLLY Juswabuely AglLiNg SAYVI LS H3IHLO/LINVSSY|0V:¥L | 6L-AVIN-0E - 82L

G0l |00€€LL00LLLY sjeipaww|fiN 1S NIOYIA JHL AUV LS 1€:00] 6L-NNr-10-L¥
yrEELLYECL LY SlejpaWWiGN 1S JHV413M TYNOSHId ¥Od ¥vI4iS0:€C | 61-NNI-€0 - €09}

98€€.L LGEL LY Juonnjosey suoydaja) JTIOIHINNOSHIAJ/ONI/SIHID SNS|8P:Ze | 6L-NNF-GO - €91

Page 277



Page 278



/161 |vrEELLvBELLy | Sjeipawiw| IIDIHINNOSHIAd/ONIVSIHIO SNS|9E:2L | 61-934-€C - ¥2lL1
YPEELLYECL LY Juonnjosay suoydale | (HVIN L Z1:00 6L-83d4-62- 0l
yyeeLL¥B6ZL.LY juonnjosay suoydsja) WiN LS JONVISISSY 04 1S3NDAY|0e:LL | 61-934-8C - 1601
YYEELL Y621 LY [UORNoSoY Suoydeo 1 PNIGYIY SLLNG SANVIN LS| 1TvO A31dNUYILNVAINOANYEVI0S YL | 6L-HVIN-C0 - OV8

LLL  |¥PECLivETLiY SjeipsWWwi N 1S SSIUO0Ud NI NOLLYOHILIV|80:2L | BL-HVIN-€0 - 976

L 00€€L1004LLY ajelpoawwif 1S SSIHO0U NI NOILLYIHILTV|20:0Z | 6L-UVIN-GO - #GEL

gyl |vveeLlvBeliy ajelpaww| NIy SLLNG SAHVIN LS SS3HO0¥Ud NI NOLLYQYILIV|6S5:C0| 6L-¥VIN-Z0 - 00}
YrEELL BT LY [uonnjosay suoydajel SSIHO0Ud NI NOILYOHILTV|9L:02 | 6L-HVIN-80 - 88E€1

[90S  |98€ElL1lSELLY sjejpawiw| SSIUO0Ud NI NOLLYOYILTV|ZS:€0| 6L-¥VIN-60 - L0Z
3 weeLIveCL Ly ajelpaWWIPNIAY3Y SLLNG SAYVIN LS JONVLISISSY HO0d 1S3NDIY|SE-¥0| 6L-UVIN-OL - V52
[0S  [¥PEELLYETLLY ajelpawwipNIaQVIY S1LNE SAHYW 1S OLY AMNCNI0G:ZL | 6L-UVIN-El - ¥8S
88E£.188¢| LY [uonnjosay euoydajel | A3WYIINOD HIANULNIj0E:80| BL-¥HVIN-PL - 961
[cC) |¥vEELLIVBCLLY Sjelpauwiiy | FUV413IM TYNOSHId HOd HV34|6G:€0| 6L-MVIN-GI - 01LC
yeeLLveilLly SeipawwPNIQYIY SLLNE SAYVYIN LS| T1DIHINVNOSHIJ/ONIVSIYHIO SNS|ee:€0| B61-HVIN-SL - 681
88€€.1 /82| ¥ Juognjosay auoydael vy SLLNE SAUVW 1S MOVLLY TYNOSHId|8€:80 | 61-MVIN-OL - 8G€
{6€6 _|16SELISYELLY usbin|llNg SAYVIA LS AHINONF/AHIAITIA IOVSSIN|SCL0|  61L-HVIN-CC - SS

C¢l.L |00EELL00LLLY SleipawwifiN 1S NIQYIA JHL AHVIN LS Y3IHLO/LINVSSVY[90:02 | 6L-UVIN-ZC - 8Ll

[44 g8eeLLLSELLY sjelpawiw| IN3AIONI - SNOINVTIIOSIN|LL:20 | 6L-HMVIN-EC - LSl

or yreeLLpeCLLY Seipeww]HNIAYIY SLLNG SAYVIN LS|  FHVITIM TYNOSHId HOd Hv3d|01:¢Z |61-HVW-6C - 8€9L
yEELLYBZLLY juswebueny AGPNIQY3Y SLLNG SAYVA LS IN3AIONI - SNOINVTI3DSIN|0L:ZL | 61-HVIN-0F - ¥€9

00S| |88€EL188CLLY usbin JONVLSISSY ¥O04 1SIND3UI0L:80 ) 61-HVIN-L€ - 86¢

Loy |88EELL88CLLY jusnin MOVLILY TYNOSHId[90:60] 61-¥dV-10 - 0€C

[43 00€ELL00ELLY Sjeipauiw| 1S 60:01 | 61-1dV-20 - €0€

[4 YYeELLvBe ) Lp juonniosey euoydee L PNIAVIY SLLNG SAYVIN LS| I10IHIANOSHI/ONISIHIO SNS|ey:LL | 61-ddV-G0 - ely

€6 yeelivelliy sjepaww|pPNIaVIY SLLNEG SAYVYW 1S SSIUO0NU NI NOLLYOHILTV(8E L2 | 61-HdV-GO - 8¥G
00€ELL00E L LY Juoinjosay auoydejel piVIN LS IYVJ1IM TYNOSHId HOd HY3|er0Z | 61-HdV-90 - 6LEL

vLLL |00EELLO0LLLY JusBINN LS INIAIONI - SNOINVTIIOSINIG0: 12 | 61-HdV-90 - 9G€1
 4sXTAN{TATA4 yewabueuy AGPNIQVIX SLLNY SAYVI LS JNOIAVHIE TVIDOSILNV[8L:9L | 61-¥dVv-L0 - LG6

G0l |l6EELiSVELLY ajelpawiwiil 1Ng SAYVIN LS SSINO0Hd NI NOILYOYILTV|8L:LZ | 6L-¥dV-EL - LZEL

FE€E  |00€€LL00LLLY SjeipaWwirN 1S IYV4T1IM TYNOSHId HOd HVAH[8G:81 | 61-HdV-EL -OLLL

Zcl  |00€ELL00ELLY Sleipaww|jy3y SLLNG SAHVA LS SS3UO0Ud NI NOILYOYILTVIBE Y0 | 61-HdV-¥i - L¥C

€19 |00€EL100€LLY sjelpawW| VN LS JANSOX3 TYNXAS|SL:LZ | 6L-¥dV-¥l - 8GZ)

Page 279




Page 280



L00L |VvEELLYBLLLY JUSBINPNIQVAY S11Nd SAYVIN 1S JONV.LSISSY 404 1S3N03y[vi:20] 81-030-10-0LL
lese_|wweelivbeLly SpeIpaww| BNIQVIY S1LNE SAYVIN LS SS3HO0Ud NI NOLLYOY3L1v|21:02] 81-030-20 - Y12}
[ YYEELLYEZL LY [UORN|OSaY suoydaRLM 1S NOSY3d ONISSIW|/Z:60 | 8L-030-¥0 - €62
[E__ [98EELLLSELLY [uoRnjosay suoydeL 153104d[61:12| 81-030-¥0 - 9ZEL
| YYEELLYBZL LY [UORN|OSSY suoydsieL NIAYIY S.LLNG SAHVN 1S INIAIONI - SNOINVTIZOSIN|OEEL | 81-030-90 - 059
[Elz_[vecLiveeLly SEipewWWIBNIGVIY SLLNG SAUVIN 1S Juv412M TYNOSHId ¥Od ¥va4d[S200| 81-030-90- 22

L lwyeeliveelly SepewL] Juv41IM TVNOSYH3d YO Yv3d|ve:9l | 81-030-20 - 8€0L

88CE.188C) Ly [Uonnjosay euoydajel MOV.LLV TYNOSY3d|20:91 | 81-030-80 - G¥0L
loos |sse€LL2821l¥ SjeipewwiL [ NG SAUVIN 1S JONVLSISSY 404 1S3n034[+0:€0| 81-03a-21 - 20L
[60L _|vvEELivbEL Ly SjeIpeWW| DNIAVIY SLLNG SAHVI 1S] T10IHIA/NOSHIJ/ONISOHIO SNS|6L:GL| 81-030-€L -218
vicl |WWEELLYBZLLY WwsbiNiLNg SAYVI LS j Y3HLO/LINVSSY|e¥z0]| 81-030-I - €01
e |vweeiiveeiiy Speipeww PNIAVIY SLLNG SAHVIN LS| FuVI13M TWNOSH3d HO4 ¥v3d[80:¥0] 81-D30-91 - 852

€ |vveeliiBelly SpelpewW| BNIQVIY S1LNE SAHVI LS SS34O04d NI NOILVOY311v|8220]| 81-030-91 - 281

lo6sz_|vvEELIvBeLLy uebin SS3Y90Ud NI NOILYOYILTv|61:€2 [ 81-030-L1 - SS¥)
\6ECLLGVELLY Jowebuely Ag L1 NG SAMVIN 1S 3uv413M TVNOSHId 04 ¥vad[16°00]  81-03a-8l - €€
YEELLY6C ) LY [uonnjosay suoydee i HNIAYIY S.LLNG SAHYI LS JNOIAVHIE VIDOSILNV[6€:91 | 81-030-0Z - 288
GE6 | IBEELLGVELLY sjeipaww} 1 1NG SAUVIN 1S Idv413M TYNOSU3d Y04 uva3[01:¥0| 81-030-02 - 2t
€ |vvEELI¥BeLLY SjeIpewW| PNIAVIY S1LNE SAYVI 1S JONVLISISSY 404 1S3n03yj0z-€2 | 81-030-12 - 98654
VWEELIVBCLLY juabin MOVLLY TYNOSY3d|62:81 | 81-030-22 - 911
€ |wweelivbeLly SjeIpoWWPNIAYIY SLLNE SAHVW LS SONVLSISSY 304 1S3N03(¢1:S0| 81-030-€2 - 26
€98 |I6EELISYELLY Sielpoww[} 111G SAHVIN 1S SS3Y90Yd Ni NOILLYOY3LTv[eev0| 81-030-62 - 902
19ECLL6SE L Ly [uopnjosay suoydaie LN 1S IN3AIONI - SNOINVTI30SIN{GL:00] 81-030-0¢ - €¢
0SL_ |vPEELI¥BCLLY oleipoWWI ENIGYIY S1LNE SAYVIN 1S SSI¥O0Ud NI NOLLVOu3LTv|/€'€0| 81-03Q-I€-6LL
GZ01 |¥¥eSLL¥62L Ly Mopnjosey euoydael INIQV3Y SLLNE SAYVIN LS| JHVI13M TYNOSH3d 804 dvad|sevl | 61-NVI-€0 - 829

Page 281




Page 282



D YYEELLYOCLLY Juawsbueuy AGPNIGVIY S11N8 SAHVN LS a3.1S3N034H SNOLLYAYISH0|0+:00 61-NVI-G0 - 9%
/L |98EELLISELLY sje|pawiw| ANIAIONI - JNIYD[0G:€0| 61-NVI-G0 - SG.1
0L |PPEELLYECLLY sjelpaww|PNIQY3Y SLLNE SAYVIN LS SSAYO0Yd NI NOLLYOHILTVI82:€0] 6L-NVIr€l - €91
YPESLI 621 b juonnjosay suoyde LONIGV3Y S.LLNE SAHVIN LS| FTOIHIAVNOSHId/ONI/SOHID SNS|G+-00 6L-NVI-LL - 0€
O98EELLISELLY sjeipaul] SS3UO0Hd NI NOLLYONHILTV|LL:P0| BI-NVI-61 - 861

G8L  [88EEL148CLLY ajelpawwi} iNG SAHVYW 1S THV413M TYNOSHI HOd ¥vad|eh8l | 61-NVr-0Z - 100
precLLYECLLY wowabueuy AgPNIQY3Y SLLNE SAYVI 1S SS34O0Yd NI NOLLYOHILTV|LE:€0| 61-NVIr-0Z-861

B PPeELLYBCLLY SjelpawwiviN LS ONIAIYA JLLYHYI/SNOYIONYA|{9Y-CL | 6L-NVI-€C - 28¥%
Cyl6 |WPeELLvECLLY jusbin JONTTOIA DLLSINOA|ZZ:2L | B6L-NVIr-vT - 268
BpoC |PPEELLYECLLY Sjeipauw| JONITOIA DLLSINOQA|9L LT | 6L-NVI-GZ - 9ECl
(A L4 XA L TATAS jusbin INNWNOD/SSINISNEG AMV1OHNA[PL:S0| 6L-NVI-LC - ¥¥C

[ PPECLLPBZL LY Juonjosay auoydaR1PDNIaYIY S1LNE SAUVIN LS JONIOITIZLNI|SO0:LL | 6L-NVIr-6¢ - 9¢6
[ YEEELLGCELLY juswabueuy Ag FTOIHINALYIJONd ONNO-A/LSOT|12:60] 61-NVI-6Z - 192
[og yEELILYBELLY ajelpaWWPNIAYIY SLLNEG SAHVIN LS| IT1OIHIAVNOSHIH/ONISIHID SNS|8E-00 6L-NVr-1€ -8l
198 |16ECLISPELLY wabintl1Ng SANYN LS JONVLSISSY HO4 LSINOIY|8Z:LZ | 61-G34-€0 - 62Cl
YPEELLYEZL LY juolinjosay auoydajay SSIUO0Ud NI NOLLYIHILTV|LC:€0 61-834-20 - /8

16 yrecLiIvEet iy sjelpsWWh\HVIN LS JONVLSISSY ¥04 1S3N03M|LL:v0| 61-834-01 - L2
¢6CL |[vreeliveelly ajeipawW| PNIQVIY SL11NE SAYMVYIN LS SSIUOOU NI NOLLYDOYILTVI8L- 10 6L-g34-L1L - 1S
602 |pPEELIYECLLY ajelpawwiviN 1S JONVLISISSY ¥Od 1S3NO3M|06:GL | 61-g934-vI - €16
oGy  |WWEELLPECLLY ajelpawwiNIavay SLLNE SAYVIA L SSIHO0Ud NI NOLLVOHILTV|VC:LO 6L-g934-61 - 8§
YPECLLPEC | LY uonnjosay auoydsid) y2:€0| 61-93d4-91 - 10T

G8.L |00€ELL00ELLY WUSDINRIVIN LS IN3AIDNI - SNO3INVTI3DSIN{9Z: L2 | 61-833-01 - L1§G1
YYECLLYEZL LY [uoun|osey suoydael SS3IHYO0Ud NI NOLLYOYIL1V|2C0:€0| 61-834-91 - ¢8l

€0C |98EELLISELLY Sjelpaww]| 90:¥0} 61-834-9l - 6¢¢
9.5 |vieeliveeiiy ajeipawiu| Y3HLO/LINVSSV8Z:¥0} 61-934-8l - LCL
Bv.ly (YPEELLPECLLY usbinviNl 1S MOVLLY TYNOSYHId[€2:90] 61-834-61 - €91
yel  |vPEELLYECLLY uebINivN LS MOVLLY TVNOSYH3d|l€:10 61L-934-61 - S
YYEELLYEC| L [Uonnjosay auoydojoL M LS MOVLLY TVNOSYH3d[02:€0| 61-834-0C - ¥Ii

LEEG |WPEELIVECLLY uowsbueny AgN LS MOV.LLY TVNOSY3d|22:90| 61-834-0¢ - 861
LBEELLGPEL LY [uognjosay auoydapliling SAHVA 1S TV Q3.LdNYYUILNI/AINOANYEV|Cr-00 6L-934-1¢ - ¥t

gl |bPEELIPECLLY aeipoww| HNIGVIY SLLNG SAYVN LS| 3¥v413IM TYNOSHId ¥Od dv3dige-ec| 61-8347¢c - ¥S9l
022 |WEELIPECLLY SjelpawwPNIAY3Y S1LN8 SAHVN LS SSIUO0H NI NOLLYOHILTV|IZ:¥0| 61L-834-22 - 0F)

Page 283




Page 284



g su iBAY

}

“(ssjnuitrul) swin IUSURUILICO Eﬁ

u.v“.-

Sjuaproul pepusje
QIOW 10 G aUeM alal] JI Sejemofed Afuo ,

Sulwe 'yl

sSUIWy'G

SUIWZ' |

Sulwyy"'Ge

SUIWy 02

m:.Ee 9

SuIwgG /

mc_EN m

{AJWIWOD 3.503.3:%@:_ «:aw_b 9 ojejpowiu] |

ICTe)
%S 6 9 €9 uonnjosay auoydsis |
%0°0 (4 yusuguioddy Ag
%982 2 vl Juswebuelly Ag
%¢ 88 0 e uabin|
%L L6 12\ o€l Sjeipaww|
D2PUSHY. %| PoPUSHY [Siuopiou| [E}01]  Duipeld) esuodsey

S3INBiJ SoUEpUSHY

Page 285



Page 286



_ ¢ [65:€Z - 00:€2

Z | ¢ |65:cC-00Ce

3 Z 16512 -00'12

Z Z 65-02 - 00-0C

Z |65:61 - 00:61

65-81 - 00:81

G 65-Z1 - 00°ZL

3 65:91 - 00:91

€| ¢ 65:Gl - 00:G1

4 Z | ¢ 6571 - 0071

Zle. 6S-€1 - 00:€}

2 65-Cl - 00:Cl
”_ 6G-11 - 0011 %c8 | 02 | AON
w 65:01 - 0001} %611 62 | PO
_ Z 65:60 - 00-60 %yl| 8L [ des
Z 65-80 - 00:80 %S6| € | DBV
65:20 - 00-20 %e0L] s2 inr
. 65-90 - 00:90 %Sy [ Ll unf
Z 6G-G0 - 00:S0 %c8| 02 | Aenw
6570 - 00-+0 %8| 0¢ | 1dv
[ 65:€0 - 00:€0 %yl| 81 | JeW
3 65:20 - 00-20 %98 | L2 | qed
66:10 - 0010 %c¢9| GL | uer
65-00 - 00:00 %G6| €¢ | 9ed
FW JNOH % .«::OO. UOWN

Page 287




Page 288



%V 0

NOS¥3d ONISSIN

l
L %0 | 183.L0¥d
l %¥0 (I g3.1S3N0D34 SNOLLYAYNISEHO
l %0 |l INIAIONI - SNIRID
L %v0 |l ALINNINWODJ/SS3NISNE AUVIONNE
I %0 |l SITOIHINALHIJOHd ANNOJ/LSOT
b %¥0 |l OLd AYNCNI
l %0 |l FNSOdX3 TVNX3S
I %¥0 |l 11NVSSV 1vNX3S
b %0 |l 0.1y AINO 3OVINVA
L %v0 |1 H3IH10 JONIH4H0 TVNX3S
b %¥'0 i LN3AIONI 3LVH
l %y 0 |1l J34OLINOW LON J181dNV
[4 %6°0_|C Ad3880d
[4 %60 |2 G3NYIINOD ¥3ANY.LNI
L L %60 |C ONIARA JLLVHHI/SNOYIONYA
[4 b %EL | JONIOITIILNI
[4 l %EL |€ AYINONIAYIAITIA IOVSSIN
2 € %Ll |V JIONITOIA JLLSINOA
[4 [4 4 %97¢ |9 HNOIAVH3E TVIDOSILNY
£ l [4 %9¢C |9 HIHLO/LJIHL
14 l L4 %8¢ |6 MOVLLY TVNOS¥3d
€l 4 [4 b %L |41 TIvO d3LdNHUILNI/GINOANYEY
4 L £ b L %LL |8l H3IHLO/LINVSSY
I l L L %S'8 |02 JONVLSISSY dOd 1S3N0IY
L b 9 L %68 |1 LN3dIONI - SNOINVITIOSIN
£ } G 8l %S 1L 142 FHV4I3IM TYNOSHId ¥HO v
6 € 9l %6°11 {8¢ FTOIHINNOSHIJ/ONISIUID SNS
9 l o %0°€C | VS SSTUO0Ud NI NOLLYIHILTV
qOjuonn|osey suoyde|e] usunuioddy . 3|juedifjelelpawwyj - 9% uNoy _ = 7 uonedussep qng

seJnbij uonesyisse|)

Page 289



Page 290



Mppendden 3¢ S
ChamEeau, Jean

From: Murat Emekdar

Sent: 31 December 2019 00:01

To: Licensing

Subject: The Hut, Central kebabs - 39 St Mary's Butts, Reading Berks, RG12LG

This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP. THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.
Dear Sir/Madam,

| am writting to you in realtion to the licensing application pending for the above premisses. | would like to
object against this licensing application.

I am the current holder of the licence for this premisses to sell late night refeshments after 11pm. | did not
surrender my licence. | am still paying and maintaining the licence. | am currently unable to operate the
premisses as the operator licence was not issued to me by the chuch. The church has been given the Hut
by the Reading Brough Council over 100 years ago but the Reading Brough Council still own the land.

In 2018 April there was a dispute between the new church administration and myself, they have decided
unfairly not issue the operators licence to my name. They did not recognise the Reading brough councils
recommendation to issue the operators licence to me. | have put a very adventageous bussiness plan that
was in the favour of the Church but due their arrogance they did not accept it. They have rented the
operators licence to some other people but the people were not successful and they gave it up afer 12
months. Now the premisses has been rented out to another operator, to my competitors in the trade.
They are proposing the same business as me and wants to operate the same hours. | was the original
founder of the kebab trade in the premisses. | have never given up the licence and neither given my
consent. The current operator has contacted number of people in the community and offer to sublet the
their licence for cash - this is unlawful to my knowlege. | am hoping to operate the business again, | am
hoping that the Reading Brough Council will take back the place from the Church and allow me to operate
my licence and my trading rights in this premisses.

| have operated that business responsibly without any disorder since 1998. In 1996, | was serving in a
kebab van outside the Hut but the operator of the Hut at that time asked me to move in to the Hut, and
they asked for the church to appove - the church appreoved it. | have hold the license since 1998 and
proove that | can be compliant with Health and Safety and keep te public in order around the Hut. | have
never had any trouble , | have kept very good relationships with the other businesses and public around
the hut. | have proved many years that | am the better and safer operator of the business. | would like to
carry on with my business in the premisses and | object the new licensing hours.

If you have any questions please let me know and | would be very pleased to attend your offices to dicuss
this matter further if needs to be.

Thank you very much
Best Regards

Murat emekdar.

Click here to report this email as spam.

Page 291



Page 292



	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3 APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE - MATCHBOX
	4 APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE - THE HUT
	The Hut appendices




